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The Tuition Assistance Program in the Military
by

Clinton L. Anderson
Introduction

The Tuition Assistance (TA) Program has been the principal vehicle for helping enlisted
active duty servicemembers afford the costs of participating in college programs and
courses since May 7, 1947. The significance of the TA Program is that servicemembers
have the means to participate in college courses at minimum costs without depleting the
Veterans Educational Assistance benefits that the servicemember may be entitled to
receive. The level of support for Tuition Assistance is a clear barometer of a military
service's attitude toward educational development: when Tuition Assistance is reduced,
enrollments decline. When it ceases, their soldiers, sailors, airmen, or marines simply
feel that they cannot afford to go to school.

The TA Program began by providing 100 percent of the tuition for military personnel
enrolled in accredited institutions. Because of budgetary and other considerations, the
U.S. Congress quickly placed limitations on percent of tuition that the military could pay.
Currently, Congress limits payment of tuition assistance to 75 percent with up to 90
percent for enlisted soldiers in grades E-5 and above with less than 15 years of military
service. The Services can reduce the percentage of tuition assistance below the maximum
allowed by Congress and place additional restrictions on the payment of tuition assistance
due to fiscal necessity. In instances where specific military services have attempted to
eliminate tuition assistance or drastically reduce the percentage of payment, storms of
protests have arisen from thousands of servicemembers. Generally, the Military
Departments and Services maintain the 75 percent payment rate.

Data from recent studies indicate that there is a strong and consistent association between
participation in the Tuition' Assistance Program and retention in the military, and strong
and significant correlation between participation in the TA program and enlisted
promotions (Boesel & Johnson, 1988). In a special Navy Report regarding the Tuition
Assistance Program, the two major conclusions were:

Seventy-five percent of the TA users are prime retention candidates in the E-4 to E-6
pay grades. For example, tt e average TA user has been in the Navy over six years and
has completed almost two years of college credit since enlistment.

The availability of TA was cited by a majority of the users as an important factor in
their decisions to enlist and reenlist in the Navy; for many itwas the deciding factor,
TA is perceived as an entitlement or right. Reductions in the level of assistance, as
with any other benefit, have a negative impact on morale, consequently, the incentive
to stay in the Navy (Naval Training Systems Center, 1988, p. 5).

Legislative Intent and Statutes

Based on a historical search of legislative actions, it is clear that Congress has endorsed
the military's initiatives to provide voluntary adult and continuing education to
servicemembers that is "in addition to" military training. Evidence includes a long and
continuous chain of enabling legislation allowing the military to use DoD appropriated
funds for payment of tuition for off-duty training or education. The military requested
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aad received permanent authority for the tuition assistance program to help
servicemembers participate in academic and vocational subjects in order that they may"(1) improve their value to the service; (2) have an opportunity to continue civilianeducation while in the service; and (3) make profitable use of their spare time."(Subcommittee Hearing on S.3401, to Authorize the Furnishingof Information,Radio,and Television Entertainment, and Civilian Education for Personnel in the ArmedForces, and For Other Purposes, House of Representatives, Committee on the ArmedServices, Subcommittee No. 3, Washington, DC, Monday, June 21, 1954)

Statutes show Congressional concern that servicemembers, while in service, be "giventhe opportunity to study and receive instruction upon educational lines of such characteras to increase their military efficiency and enable them to return to civil life betterequipped for industrial, commercial and general business occupations." (Title 10, U.S.Code, Section 1176.) In other words, it was Congress' intent that the military can andshould provide adult and continuing education to active duty servicemembers that (1) willsupport their military duty performance, (2) will assist military personnel management(recruitment, retention, promotion, and qualification for job training), (3) will aid intransition from military to civilian life, and (4) will encourage fulfillment of theindividuals' aspirations for academic education by wisely using their leisure time.

While lawmakers clearly felt that education would enhance military effectiveness as acomplement to the military training that the services provided separately, no evidencewas found that Congress intended tuition assistance be integrated with military training orrestricted to military-related subjects. On the contrary, opportunity for servicemembersto participate in academic and vocational subjects is definitely to be provided "in additionto" military training, not as part of military training.

A more detailed historical profile of legislative actions follows:

1778: In 1778 General George Washington recognized the need for providing basicacademic instruction to illiterate, convalescent soldiers following the bitter winter atValley Forge (Wilds, 1938). The purpose of this instruction appeared to have nothing todo with requirements for literacy to perform military jobs. Instead, it was aimed atproviding enlisted men with the ability to real their Bibles in hopes of spiritualenrichment and a better life in the future.

1839: Chaplains were formally charged with the education responsibility. (Duffy, 1983)Washington's initial efforts were later incorporated into an 1839 statute permitting "theadministrative council at each Army post to hire a chaplain who also act as a schoolmaster." (White, 1963, p. 479)

1866: During the Civil War, a number of educational activities were implemented for thebenefit of "Negro enlistedmen." (Bahney, 1968) But after the War these educationalactivities languished. An important step in the establishment of an organized systemcame on May 2, 1866, when Representative James A. Garfield, long a friend ofeducation, proposed legislation requiring the establishmentof "post schools." Instructionin those schools as to be "in the common English branches of education" and especiallyin United States history. Garfield's stated purpose of such schools was to instillpatriotism and provide enlisted men with cultural opportunities as well as to reduce crimeand vice rates by eliminating idleness, the ix rent of all wickedness. ( CongressionalGlobe, 39 Cong., 1 Sess., p. 2350.) This proposal was incorporated into the ArmyReorganization Bill which also stipulated that the post or garrison commander would beresponsible for providing a suitable room or building (United States Statutes at Large,XIV, p. 336)
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1916: The foundation of current in-service voluntary educatioa programs can be traced in
the Army to a June 3, 1916 provision in Title 10, Section 1176, authorizing "instruction
of soldiers in addition to military training:"

In addition to military training, soldiers while in active service shall hereafter be
given the opportunity to study and receive instruction upon educational lines of such
character as to increase their military efficiency and enable them to return to civil life
better equipped for industrial, commercial and general business occupations. Civilian
teachers may be employed to aid the Army officers in giving such instruction, and
part of this instruction may consist of vocational education either in agriculture or the
mechanic arts. (Page 736, United State Code 1946 Edition, enclosure 1)

1947-1948: War Memorandum No. 85-40-1, 7 May 1947, with Change 1, dated 2
February 1948, is often cited as the forerunner document delineatingpolicy on payment
of tuition for extension courses taken by military personnel at a nearby accredited school
or college during off-duty time. (See enclosure 2) At first, authorization was for 100 per
cent payment of tuition, but Change 1 quickly reduced this authorization to 75 percent.

1952- Temporary Congressional authority for the conduct ofthe information and
educational activities was given with respect to the Army and the Air Force in the act of
June 5, 1952, in the following language:

The Secretary of the Army is authorized, out of any moneys available for the
Department of the Army, to provide for entertainment and instruction in connection
with the welfare of enlisted personnel. (Act cited in Senate Report 1336 (83-2)
11729)

1954- Senate Report 1336 (83-2) Armed Forces Information and Education Programs
cites the purpose of the legislation was "to provide statutory authority to the three
military departments for the conduct of information and educational activities for military
personnel." Department of Defense previously had only temporary authority without
uniformity among its departments. With respect to the Navy and the Marine Corps, the
only authorization for the conduct of information andeducation programs was contained
in annual appropriations acts. Senate Report 1336 (Enclosure 3) states:

The witness from the Department of Defense pointed out that the Department wishes
to continue to provide its military personnel with opportunities to increase individual
ability through training and education....

The Subcommittee Hearing on S.3401, to Authorize the Furnishing of Information,
Radio, and Television Entertainment, and Civilian Education for Personnel in the Armed
Forces, and For alter Purposes, House of Representatives, Committee on the Armed
Services, Subcommittee No. 3, Washington, DC, Monday, June 21, 1954, provides a
record of the testimony of Major General H.N. Hartness, Department of Defense Witness
in support of an act to authorize the furnishing civilian education for personnel in the
Armed Forces, and for other purposes. Excerpts from his testimony follow:

I am sure all of you are thoroughly in agreement that our service personnel must be
well informed. When they come into the service they experience many changes from
their former lives; they have been separated from their families and friends; they are
in new surroundings, in a new setting; they undergo rigorous training; they may be
committed to immediate participation in military action if the situation demands it.
They have a right to know why all this has happened to them. They must have a clear
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understanding of the principles of the democracy they have been called upon to
defend. And they must be fortified against enemy propaganda.

The education phase is designed to provide a program of academic and
vocational subjects in order that service personnel may (1) improve their value to the
service; (2) have an opportunity to continue civilian education while in the service;
and (3) make profitable use of their spare time.

The educational opportunities made available by the Armed Forces have proved their
worth from three points of view. The service profits by the man's improved
performance of duty and his increased capability for the assumption ofgreater
responsibility. the man himself increases his chances of promotion; improves his
prospects for civilian life after his service is completed; continues, though at reduced
speed, his civilian education program; and makes profitable use of time that might
otherwise be wasted or misused. The Nation benefits, since our democratic form of
government requires educated citizens in the armed services as well as in civilian life.

Later, in answering a question asked by Congressman Wilson, MG Hartness indicated
that the appropriations for off -duty education is "not part of his (service member's)
military training." (p. 5095) Congressman Wilson later expressed his support for this
program by saying:

It seems to me that this program is a good encouragement to the GI benefit program.
We have been talking about the drop in enlisted men rates, and I think this sort of
program might very well keep men in the service as long as they have this partial
payment by the Government and some encouragement by the Government to
complete their education. (p. 5101)

Based at least in part on this testimony, the Congress authorized on May 13, 1954, the
furnishing civilian education for personnel in the Armed Forces through tuition assistance
funding. (See Enclosure 4 for a partial text of MG Hartness' testimony.)

1991- Title 10, United States Code, Section 2007, provides the current legal basis for the
payment of tuition for off -duty training or education. (See Title 10, Section 2007, as
shown in both the 1991 and 1990 United States Code Annotated, Supplementary
Pamphlets at enclosure 5. )

DoD Policy

The Tuition Assistance Program is integral to the Voluntary Education Program for
Military Personnel as presented in DoD Directive 1322.8, July 23, 1987. Military
Services implement this Directive by establishing and maintaining voluntary education
programs within their specific Services. DoD Directive defines "Tuition Assistance" as
follows:

Funds provided by the Military Services to active military personnel to pay a
portion of the charges for voluntary education programs.

"Voluntary Education Programs" are defined as "programs of study in which Service
members elect to participate." Enclosure 2 of DoD Directive 1322.8 provides additional
direction to the military services with regard to the establishment of "Voluntary
Education Programs:"
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Each Military Service shall establish comprehensive voluntary education programs
that encompass a broad range of educational experiences including, but not limited to,
functional skills development, high school completion programs,
occupationalitechnical programs, and associate, baccalaureate, and advance degree
programs.

The Military Services shall provide support essential to operating an effective
voluntary education program. (p.2-1)

DoD Directive 1322.8 states that it is DoD policy to:

a. Establish voluntary education programs to provide opportunities for Service
members to achieve educational, vocational, and career goals.

b. Allow Service members, subject to the requirements of military duties, access to
educational opportunities available to other eligible citizens.

c. Provide equal access to, and support of, educational opportunities for all Service
members. (p. 2.)

(The full text of DoD Directive 1322.8 is at enclosure 6.)

Service Poli

A historical review of the voluntary education program within the military services
reveals that the program proponent has traditionally rested ht the human development,
information, personnel staff family. The military services have kept the education staff
function separate from military training and have generally avoided co-mingling of
education and training funds and personnel resources. Based on recent data, tuition
assistance has had the most impact on blacks, women, middle-management enlisted
personnel who are "above average" in intelligence and abilities.

Program implementation has generally been aimed at (1) enhancing the servicemembers'
professional development, military effectiveness, and leadership abilities, (2) preparing
servicemembers for positions of greater responsibility in the service, (3) preparing
soldiers for productive post-service careers and (4) increasing servicemembers' self-
esteem and motivation for continued learning. In no known incident has a military
service purposely excluded any one of these objectives or designed funding limitations or
mechanisms to favor one of these objectives to determent ofor the exclusion of the other
objectives. Though there have been recent attempts to redirect TA policy to focus
exclusively on coursework recommended by training proponents, the military services
have not in the past co-opted tuition assistance appropriations for purposes of
supplementing military training at the expense of the other education program objectives.

A short historical profile of the Army voluntary education program follows:

1917-1918 During World War I education opportunities for members of the American
Expeditionary Force were provided by the Young Men's Christian Association (YMCA).
The Chaplains continued being the Army proponent agency for voluntary education until
the establishment of the Morale Branch of the General Staff of the War Department just
before the end of World War I. (Munson, 1921)
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1941-1956. On March 14, 1941, a small education element began functioning as part of
the Morale Branch of the Army. Between September 1941 and October 1943, the
Information and Education Program of the Army was developed. On October 25, 1943
the staff proponent for e:iucation within the Army shifted to the Director of Military
Training. This arrangement lasted only a few weeks when on November 10, 1943,
education was reassigned to the jurisdiction of the Director of Personnel and later to the
Chief, Information Office (CINFO). (Strehlow. 1967)

A review of Army Regulations beginning with AR 85-10, 23 March 1948, indicates a
general consistency among the objectives of the Army Education Program with those
presented in testimony before Congress by MG. Hartness. For example, the stated
objectives of the Army Education Program listed in AR 85-10 were:

a. Provide the education necessary for the soldier to perform his assigned duties
efficiently, and to enable him to understand the significance of those duties in
relation to the function of his unit and the over-all mission of the Army.

b. Enable the soldier to meet the educational requirements for promotion.

c. Provide continuing educational opportunities for the soldier.

d. Assist the soldier to employ his leisure time profitably and to satisfy his intellectual
interests. (p. 1)

AR 355-5, 11 May 1949, defines the term Army Education Program " as that part of the
educational system of the Army which is devoted to instruction in subjects normally
taught in civilian academic and vocational institutions for the purpose of raising the
educational level of the individual, and which is not a part of the training programs
established to meet military requirements." (p.1)

1956-present In 1956, the proponent agency was changed to the Army Deputy Chief of
Staff for Personnel (DCSPER) where it still remains. Only for a few weeks during World
War II has the primary Army staff responsibility for voluntary education ever fallen
under an Army director of military training. Even though staff ties have continually
existed with Anny training elements, particularly at major command and installation
levels, Headquarters Department of the Army has maintained voluntary education as a
separate staff function tied directly with personnel management, morale, human
development, and information. Numerous Army staff studies and reports have been
periodically prepared and presented on whether Army voluntary education (currently
known as the Army Continuing Education System (ACES)) should remain as part of the
Personnel Family or be integrated as part of military training. In each case the decision
has been to keep it separate as a "Personnel Function." Colonel Robert N. Waggener,
Director of Education at Headquarters Department of the Army, wrote in a 1976 Army
Decision Memorandum:

To be successful the education system must be integrated with the military personnel
management function and be a direct support of the recruiting effort. Additionally,
and perhaps more importantly, it must be perceived by individual soldiers as both
voluntary and personalized in nature. This is reflected in recruiting publicity and we
should, at all costs, maintain the credibility ofour advertising. We must not
inadvertently create the perception that education ' is just another Army training
program.' (Waggener, p. 2)
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AR 621-5, 20 February 1957, (the first Army Regulation with the voluntary education
program within the jurisdiction of the Army DCSPER), provides the following guidance
regarding tuition assistance:

Partial payment of tuition costs for voluntary off-duty study will be limited to
required courses of functional importance to the military profession in accredited
high schools, junior colleges (non-terminal curricula only), and 4-year degree-
granting colleges. Courses of functional importance to the military profession are
those comprising the subject matter fields of the academic curriculum of the United
States Military Academy as well as those authorized in various regulations of the 350-
series, pertaining to the training (schools) of military personnel personnel in civilian
educational institutions. See column 2, 3,or 4 of Part I of Accredited Higher
Institutions, United States Office of Education. (p.17)

This Army Regulation that established policies and authorized funds for "the general
educational development of military personnel" gave as one of its guiding "principles:"
Commanders who personally concern themselves in the general educational development
of their personnel contribute importantly to the Department of the Army's personnel
quality and prestige objectives." (p. 2)

David C. Berry, in his 1974 book Higher Education in the United States Army, cited a
number of ways higher education programs helped the Army and improved its image in
the civilian community. Specific contributions of the voluntary higher education
program to the Army include:

Increasing the soldier's military competence;

Improving the soldier's military leadership;

Improving the soldier's job performance;

Improving the soldier's morale;

Improving the soldier's ability to meet the Army's global responsibilities;

Improving the attractiveness of a career in the Army; and

Improving the image of the Army.

Berry also cites two specific contributions to society made by having higher education
programs in the Army:

A mon highly educated citizen; and

Increasing the soldier's post separation employability.

With the planning and advent of the all-voluntary force in the first half of the 1970's, the
voluntary education program received increased visibility. In a 1973 study entitled The
Army Education Program in the Volunteer Environment found that "opportunities to
continue education" had the "highest overall effect on for both officer and enlisted
personnel" regarding their attitudes on whether to stay in the Army or leave the service.
(p. III-18) This study concluded that : "The vast array of educational opportunities
offered by current educational programs are vital to the success of accession and retention



programs and they directly influence the ability of the army to achieve an all volunteerforce. " (p.III-19)

The August 7, 1979 Army Policy Statement signed by Clifford Alexander, Secretary ofthe Army, and General E.C. Meyer, Chief of Staff, Army, along with recommendationsfor improvement of the Army Continuing Education System gave new energies to adultand continuing education in the Army. Recommendation L. stated that the Army should"increase educational opportunities for soldiers and dependents through the Servicemen'sOpportunity College, skill-related education, apprenticeship programs, etc." Top Armyofficials spoke out for continuing education. For example, General John W. Vessey, thenVice Chief of Staff of the Army, listed the fundamental benefits derived from continuingeducation programs: (a) increased trainability, job proficiency and professionaldevelopment, a direct return on investment; (b) awakening of service members to theirown potential; and (c) an incentive that helps recruitment and retention of talent.
(Department of the Army, Vessey Speech, April 7, 1981) This theme was restated inChange 2, AR 621-5 (1983) by stating that the Army Continuing Education Systemsupports the individual by:

1. Enhancing the soldier's professional development, military effectiveness, andleadership abilities.

2. Preparing soldiers for positions of greater responsibility in the Army.

3. Preparing soldiers for productive post-service careers.

4. Increasing soldiers' self-esteem and motivation for continued learning. (p. 1-1)

The current Army Regulation 621-5 (dated 1 April, 1989; effective I May 1989, excerptsat Enclosure 7) cited ACES mission:

The ACES mission is to develop and implement a system of educational programsand services that facilitate the professional and personal growth of the soldier. (p.3)

It lists ACES goals as follows:

a. To enhance combat readiness by supporting the training community with
education programs.

b. To improve the quality of the force by developing education incentives thatsupports recruitment, retention, and sustainment.

c. To equip all soldiers to better contribute to society by providing education
programs appropriate for every academic level.

d. To enrich the quality of life in the military community by making ACES programsand services available to families and civilians.

e. To increase the effectiveness of ACES by improving management and
administration.

f. To strengthen the delivery of ACES programs and services by expandingopportunities for professia,:al development among the ACES workforce. (p. 3)
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Tuition Assistance policy in this Army Regulation echoes ACES goals listed above with
its "goal being relevance to Army readiness." It states that: "counselors, in concert with
commanders, must be diligent stewards of TA funds by exercising care and judgment in
determining which courses/programs have relevance and/or general value to the soldier's
military job. Furthermore commanders must ensure that soldiers using TA have potential
for continued service."

The Defense Manpower Data Center, in its May 27, 1988, study, provides the best overall
data and conclusions regarding the use of tuition assistance within the military services.
(See Enclosure 8 for Executive Summary and Section III: Tuition Assistance in the
Army. ) Major conclusions follow:

There is a strong and consistent positive association between participation in the
TA program and retention in the military. The association applies to both enlisted
and officers....

There is a strong and significant positive association between participation in the TA
program and enlisted promotions....

Judging from their courses titles, courses supported by Tuition Assistance funds are
practical and work-related. (Courses in business, mathematics, English, social
studies, computer and information science and psychology most frequently taken.)

TA usage is much higher among enlisted members than officers.

Blacks in the Anny and Navy are more likely than whites to participate.

Women are significantly more likely 1,aa men to participate.

Enlisted participation for Army and Navy is highest at grades E-5 and E-6 (middle
management NCOs/Petty Officers).

Participation rates increase consistently with AFQT scores.

This study found sufficient evidence to "put to rest any doubts about the practicality of
the courses supported by Tuition Assistance. TA-funded courses are, on the whole,
solidly related to occupational and professional development"

Attempt at Redirection in Tuition Assistance Policy in the Army and Some Other
services

Bushell, D.S., et al, in their 1990 HumRRO study entitled An Analysis of Overseas
Postsecondary Education Services, stated that United States Army, Europe (USAREUR)
by limiting tuition assistance to educational programs that are military job-related may be
violating Congrsssional intent (p.69)

During Spring 1991 Headquarters Department of the Army circulated a draft revision of
Army Regulation 621-5 that, if approved, would channel tuition assistance to disciplines
that "relate to the soldier's career field or to the competency skills and knowledge that
enhance soldier performance and career progression." (p. 5-1.) Enlisted, warrant
officers,' and officers' educational goals would have to be "consistent with"
recommendations made by military trainers in their specific military career fields. No
provisions are in the draft regulation for using tuition assistance for any programs or
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courses aimed at preparing soldiers for productive post-service careers or for increasing
soldiers' self-esteem and motivation for continued learning in any areas other than that
prescribed by military trainers in the Army's training base. For example, the
Commanding General of the U.S. Army Infantry Center at Fort Benning could, in effect,
restrict tuition assistance to only academic and vocational subjects that he deemed
directly related to professional and technical aspects of an Infantry soldier's career. This
judgment would affect the off-duty, voluntary postsecondary education choices of the
Infantry soldier wherever he was stationed and whatever duty he assigned for therest of
his military career.

Efforts are underway in some major Army commands to co-mingle education and
training functions so that education services officers, specialists, and guidance counselors
will assume military training functions thereby limiting, if not eliminating, their time and
work aimed at providing voluntary education opportunities for soldiers.

Academic researchers have become alarmed over this change in direction. Meredith
Ludwig and Holly Hexter, researchers at the National Center for Higher Education, in
their 1991 report entitled The Impact of the Military Drawdown on Student Assistance
Programs, recognized that "tuition assistance, which has been the chief vehicle for access
to voluntary education for active duty personnel, will likely be altered in scope and
focus." (p. 3) They wrote:

For its part the military seems to be turning its attention to linking education more
closely to the training experience and to long-term employment preparation.
Assistance resources and programs are being viewed in this framework. The result
may very well be a shift in resources from the support of traditional education to self-
directed education that can be applied to training goals. (p.1.)

The proposals to link continuing education within the military more close:, to
occupational specialty have reactivated a long standing debate about the purpose of
service-sponsored voluntary education. In recent years, the programs have reflected
the philosophy of the intrinsic value of a better educated force, and a full spectrum of
programs and services have been offered to assist in the servicemembers' personal
and professional development. In today's belt-tightening, however, it seems clear
that the services' "corporate" needs will take precedence over individual ones. "The
pendulum now appears to be swinging toward education linked to training,"
commented one military educator. "This change in philosophy will change the
nature of educational opportunities within the military." Added another educator:

There is a real danger that as monies get shorter, education will be subordinated to
training, so much so as to simply become an extension of training needs. The
strongest argument against this development is that it will not prepare military
personnel for life outside the military. Despite the fact that recruiting programs are
going to have to emphasize educational opportunities even more heavily, the hazard
is that education will simply get swallowed up by training. (pp. 16-17)

If funds and personnel resources justified to Congress and appropriated by Congress for
the voluntary education programs in the military services are used strictly for military
training purposes, adult and continuing education in the military has, indeed, been co-
opted. The voluntary nature and the individual's quest for learning have been
compromised. The Army's organizational training goal for the individual dictates his or
her educational goal during off-duty hours throughout active military service of the
servicemember.
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Perhaps there is hope. Christopher Jehn, Assistant Secretary of Defense , Force
Management and Personnel, at a meeting sponsored by the Office of Educational
Research and Improvement, U.S. Department of Education, May 15, 1991, made a sharp
distinction between military training resources (estimated at $12 Billion per year) and
Tuition Assistance ($175 million per year) and the GI Bill entitlements as resources
available to help servicemembers transition out of the military.

The Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, General Colin Powell, told the Army's Forces
Command in 1989:

As commanders, we can all think of instances in which the value of continuing
education has been demonstrated to us personally and professionally. We should
reflect on that value as it pertains to our uniformed and civilian components.

Continuing education strengthens the foundation for training and improved job
performance; it causes the force to develop intellectually, enhances promotion
potential, and allows individuals to work toward personal and professional goals
(Powell, 1990, p.1).

In a letter of 5 October 1990, addressed to every service member, General Powell
reiterated his support for postsecondary education opportunities.

I support the DOD policy of providing postsecondary education opportunities for all
active duty and Reserve Service members. I strongly advise you to take advantage of
the voluntary education program to catch up with your education before you leave the
military. The Military Services need well-trained, educated people. Your pursuit of
higher education will not only enhance your military job performance and chance
from promotion, but will also improve your job opportunities when you return to
civilian life."

A proposal being staffed in the Army would encourage each enlisted soldier to establish
an educational goal consistent with a Career Management Field Career Map dictated by
the Army's Training and Doctrine Command proponent agency for that career field and
then link tuition assistance with courses fulfilling that goal. For example, the Infantry
soldier would be channeled into the educational goals established by the Infantry School.
Unless the Infantry School is interested in the disciplines and degree programs that have
some relevancy to civilian jobs, these soldiers would, in all likelihood, be denied access
to programs through tuition assistance that would improve his job opportunities when he
returns to civilian life. These restrictions on educational goals raise serious questionson
whether a "voluntary" education will actually exist where individual learnersmake the
critical decisions regarding their educational goals or will Army trainers dictate those
goals and restrict use of funds appropriated by Congress for the "Voluntary Education
Program," under Title 10, Section 2007, simply as part of military training.

Summary

The Tuition Assistance Program remains the principal funding mechanism for in-service
college participation. As the military changes in the 1990s and this funding mechanism
competes for scarce dollars within the military structures, advocates for voluntary
education opportunities for servicemembers will be continuously challenged to assist in
the retention of this program. Since voluntary postsecondary education is not commonly a
high priority for the operationally-oriented military decision-maker, there will be
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temptation to sacrifice tuition assistance as budget cuts are made or, more likely as in
the case of the Army, to use these funds appropriated by Congress to supplement their
$12 billion military training budget. It will require wisdom and a genuine appreciation of
the potential of education for commanders and senior civilians in the Defense Department
budget process to realize that education programs are the foundation for combat training
of the coming century and to co-opt these opportunities lessens instead of strengthening
combat readiness.

When the going gets tough in the budget battles, as it inevitably will, this point of view
must be advocated by those in military uniform, in the civilian Defense Department
hierarchy and in Congress. General Powell's common-sense statements must be absorbed
in a conscious strategy for future development of U.S. military personnel development.
From the moment of recruitment and throughout the career of the U.S. servicemember,
educational programs must be provided that broaden and deepen his or her understanding
of not only the specific field of military expertise but alse the world in which the
servicemember lives. Redirection of the Tuition Assistance Programs will have the
greatest impact on minorities, women, middle management enlisted, and the military's
best and brightest. Beware!
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Rec.
117$. Sale of Army stores to educational institutions.1150. Military equipment for certain schools and col-leges.
1181. Detail of oMcers, warrant ofScers, and enlisted men

to certain schools and colleges.
1182. Supplies and stares for military instruction camps.1182a. Ordnance stores to colleges or universities.1183. Ordnance stores to Washington High School.1184. Ainzatusition for instruction In target practice.1185. Rifles and appendages for target practice in schools

having uniformed Corps of Cadets.
§1171. Cavalry School at Fort Riley."

The Secretary of War is authorized anddirected to establish upon the military reservation
at Port Riley a permanent school of instruction for
drill and practice for the Cavalry and light Artillery
service of the Army of the United States, and which
shall be the depot to which all recruits for such serv-ice shall be sent. (Jan. 29. 1387. ch. 72, § 1, 24 Stat.272.,

§ 1172. Post and garrison schools for enlisted men.
Schools shall be established at all posts. garrisons,

and permanent camps at which troops are stationed..
in which the enlisted men may be instructed in the
common English branches of education, and espe-
cially in the history of the United States; and the
Secretary of War may detail such officers and enlisted
men as may be necessary to carry out this provision.
It shall be the duty of the post or garrison com-
mander to set apart a suitable room or building for
school and religious purposes. (P.. S. 1 1231.) .

DERIVATION
Act July 28. 1866. ch. 299. 1 27. 14 Stat. 336.

Cross Rantarfects
Soldiers to be given Instruction along educational andvocational lines in addition to military instruction. seesection 1176 of this title.

§ 1173. Second lieutenants assigned to Field ArtillerySchool at Fort Sill for instruction.
Officers in the grade of second lieutenant in the

Field Artillery may be assigned, for the period of oneyear, to batteries stationed at the School of Firefor Field Artillery at Fort Sill, Oklahoma, for the
purpose of pursuing courses of practical instruction
in Field Artillery. (May 12, 1917. ch. 12. 40 Stat. 41.)
§ 1174. School detachments of enlisted men at serviceschools.

From the enlisted force of the Army provided by
law the President may authorize the organization of
school detachments at each of the service schools:
Provided, That nothing herein shall be construed as
to authorize an increase in the total number of en-listed men of the Army authorized by law. (Mar. 3,
1909, eb. 252, 35 Stat. 733,)

Coerricarion
-..A. provision formerly appearing in this section author-isig the appointment at the service schools of suchnonconamisidaned teems, mechanics. artificers, farriers.horseshoers 'end cooks as might be necessary, is nowcovered by section 804 and former section 805 of this.1lesJ. 1 0. 0102. July 10, 19:31..Inti. 91..

111175. Translator for Army service schools.
- CCWICATTOR, :
Section, act May 12. 1917. ch. 12, 40 Stmt. 41, pro-vided pay for.transistor who was to be appointed by com-mandant of 'the Army service schools.

Page 7718
$ 1174. Instruction of soldiers in addition to militarytraining.

In addition to military training, soldiers while inthe active service shall hereafter be given the oppor-tunity to study and receive instruction upon educa-
tional lines of such character as to increase their
military efficiency and enable them to return to civillife better equipped for industrial, commercial, andgeneral business occupations. Civilian teachers may
be employed to Add the Army officers in giving suchinstruction, and part of this instruction may consist
of .vocational education either in agriculture or themechanic arts. The Secretary of War, with the
approval of the President, shall prescribe rules and
regulations for conducting the instruction herein pro-
vided for, and the Secretary of War shall have the_
power at all times to suspend, increase, or decrease
the amount of such instruction cf17:.cd a_ hi.judgment be consister.: the regnIreiner::-.s of
military instruction and service of the soldiers.
(June 3, 1916, ch. 134. i 27, 39 Stat. 186.)

Coosa Itaritainecas
Instruction and entertainment in connection with wel-fare of enlisted personnel during World War II and forsix months thereafter, see sections 761 and 776 of Ap-pendix to Title 50, War.

§1i77. Vocational training.
CODIRWATION

aGet1031, act Stay 12, 1917, ch. 12, 40 Stat. 59, pro-vided training for enlisted men in agriculture or themechanic arts.

§ 1178. Application by retired officer for detail as pro-fessor in college.

DERIVATION
Act July 15. 1870. ch. 294. 123, 16 Stat. 320.

CODDICATION
Section, R. S. f 1260 and act Feb. 27, 1877, ch. 69, 1 1.19 Stat. 243,1s now covered by section 386 of this title alr-dr.ctiou 115 of Title 37, Pay and Allowances.

§ 1178a. Retired officer authorized to receive pay a.military instructor in high schooL
Notwithstanding any other provision of law. one

retired officer of the United States Arrny, acting.
professor of military science and 1..c.c:::cs
high schools of Washington, District of Columbia,
shall be permitted to receive, in addition to his re-tired pay, the pay of a teacher in the public high
schools of Washington, District of Columbia, not toexceed $1,800 per annum, under appointment by theBoard of Education of the District of Columbia and
Pliable from the appropriation for the expenses ofthe public schools of the District of Columbia.
(June 4, 1935, ch. 167. 49 Stat. 320.)
11173. Sale of Army stores to educational institutions.

'Under such regulations as the Secretary of War
may prescribe, educational institutions to which anOka of the Army is detailed as professor of mili-tary science and tactics may purchase from the War
Department for cash, for the' use of their military
students, such stores, suppliet, materiel of war, andmilitary publications as are furnished to the Army,such sales to be at the price listed. to the Army withSnood of transportation added: Provided, That an
moneys received from the sale of stores, supplies, ma-
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Memo 85-40-1

MEMORANDUM) W DEPARTMENTNo. 85-40-1 ) Washin: 25, D. C., '7 May 1947

POLICY FOR OFF-DUTY EXTENSION GROUP STUDY
. CLASSES OF THE ARMY EDUCATION
PROGRAM IN THE ZONE OF INTERIOR

1. Purpose. The purpose of this memorandum is to establish
policies pertaining to the use of such "Welfare of Enlisted Men"
funds, Project 501-07, which may be allocated by the Budget Division,
WDSS, after coordination with the Troop Information and Education
Division, WDSS, or allotted by the Troop Information and Education
Division, WDSS, specifically for providing off-duty-time classroom
education opportunities for military personnel on active duty in thezone of interior.

2. Use. These funds may be used under the Army Education
Program for the following specific purposes only:

,. Payment for services (on a fee basis) of civilian instructorsfor conducting group study classes in grade school, high school, tech-nical, vocational, or college subjects organized on an off-duty-time
basis at or near a post, camp, or station by the commanding officer.

h. Payment of tuition for extension courses taken by militarypersdnnel at a nearby accredited school or college during off-dutytime.

3. Size of classes. Classes will be organized on the L.tsis of aninitial minimum of 10 students, and will be discontinued when attend-
ance drops to five or less at three consecutive class meetings. Author-ity to deviate from this general principle may be requested when
initial application for funds is made or when subsequent circumstances
may make such a situation justifiable. (See par. 7d.)

4. Instructors. a. Qualifications. Instructors will meet the sameeducational requirements and standards required of instructors
teaching similar subjects in nearby public schools and or/colleges.

It. .Status. Instructors will not be appointed to positions in thecompetitive service as employees of the War Department but willhave the status of independent contractors engaged on a fee basis forservices separate and complete in themselves and not computed onper diem or other time basis.
2. Payment. Instructors will be paid on the basis of a specificfee for each individual teaching session; purely on a performance

basis, without any bulk, annual, or periodic basis. Payment will notbe made on a per diem, per hour, or other time basis, on in anymanner that contravenes existing dual compensation statutes, as out-lined in Civilian Personnel Regulation 130 (see also 22 Comp. Gen.362).

1
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(1) With the initial voucher for payment of fees to such
instructors the officer or other person responsible for
their employment will submit a supporting schedule of
fees for the involved services. Subsequent vouchers
will carry reference to the initial voucher with which
the supporting schedule of fees was filed.

(2) Each schedule of fees will be based upon a signed state-
mbnt from the local public school system, setting forth
the local prevailing rate of instructor attendance fees
paid for individual teaching sessions at classes similar
to those contemplated or in operation at the military
installation concerned.

5. Restrictions. Funds authorized under the provisions of this
memorandum may not be used- -

a. For the purchase' of textbooks or other instructional materials
or supplies, or for any other purposes except those authorized in
paragraph 2.

h. For payment of military personnel as instructors (AR 35-1320
and AR 35-2340). (Payments may be authorized from nonappropriated
funds by local funds councils to either civilian or enlisted instructors,
providingthe program is an off -duty educational program, the school
is by its very nature open to all personnel and is of a type to benefit
the,majority. Payments will be made from funds available to the
installation and no special grant from the Army Central Welfare Fund
is contemplated for this purpose. Attention is invited to the fact that
compensation in excess of $60 per month to enlisted personnel is
prohibited by paragraph 19g(1)(c), AR 210-50.)

6. Procedure. a. All requests for funds, authorized under the
provisions of this memorandum, initiated by commanding officers
of units and installations under commands listed in g below will be
submitted through channels in accordance with WD Circular 138,
1946, as amended. Requests should be submitted in form indicated
on figure 1 and/or figure 2 by initiating units and installations.

h. Requests for funds should be submitted far enough in advance
to allow action by higher headquarters and inclusion in quarterly
requests for funds made by commanding generals of Army Air Forces,
Army Ground Forces, Military District of Washington, and Armies.
Original requests submitted in form indicated on figure 1 and/or
figure 2 of this memorandum will be forwarded as supporting data
to quarterly requests for allocation of Project 501, Welfare of En-
listed Men, Quartermaster Service, Army, funds made by the above
headquarters to the Budget Officer for the War Department.

c. Funds from Project 501-07 for use under the provisions of
this memorandum may be obtained in the following manner:

(1) Army Air Forces, Army Ground Forces, and Military
District of Washington. Request for an allocation of
funds may be submitted by the commanding general to
the Budget Officer for the War Department, WDSS. The
requests will be referred for recommendation to the

2
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Chief, Troop Information and Education Division, WDSS.
Upon recommendation by the Chief, Troop Information
and Education Division, WDSS, the Budget Officer will
make the allocation of hinds.

(2) Armies. Requests for an allocation of funds may be sub-
mitted by the commanding generals to the D.,:,;L:t
for the War Department, WDSS. The requests will be
referred to the Chief, Troop Information and Education
Division. WDSS, for recommendation and necessary
coordination with Army Ground Forces. Upon recom-
mendation by the Chief, Troop Information and Education
Division, WDSS, the Budget Officer will make the all'--)-
tion of funds.

(3) Administrative and technical services. A request for an
allotment of funds may be submitted by the chic.'
of the several administrative and technical services to
the Chief, Troop Information and Education Division,
WDSS, Washington 25, D.C. Upon approval of the request
by the Chief, Troop Information and Education Division,
an allotment of funds will be made.

7. Screening criteria. a. Evaluation of the data included in the
letter rec"iesting funds as shown in figure 1 and/or figure 2 will be
the basis ..or approval of each request for an allocation or an allot-
ment of these funds.

b. In screening requests for funds the Chief, Troop Information
and Education Division, WDSS, will follow the principle of the great-
est good for the greatest number, since only limited funds are available.

a. Such basic courses as English, history, mathematics,
and subjects having a military value will be given preference over
such courses as calculus or thermodynamics, for example, which by
their nature are limited to the interest of a very few students.

Since it is the primary purpose of funds made available under
the provisions of this memorandum to provide group instruction
opportunities for military personnel, each request f :r lum1:; t., 1 .

used for the benefit of one individual, or of a group smaller than the
recommended minimum, will be submitted separately as specified in
paragraph 6. Each such request will be corsidered on the basis of
the specific circumstances in each case. In general, such requests
will not be approved except when it is shown that organization of an
instruction group is impracticable, when the requirements set forth
in paragraph 612 and c are met, and when the average cost for each
student is approximately the same amount as that which would be

3
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UBJECT: Application for Project 501-07. QUARTERMASTER SERVICE. ARMY. WEM Funds.
for Payment of Civilian Instructors under the provisions of War Depart-
ment Memorandum No. dated

HRU: (Used when applicable)

'0:

1. It is requested that $ be made available to (name of organization).
(location of organization). for the purpose of providing instructors for group
study classes for military personnel at this installation.

2. Classes will be conducted (on or off the post).

a. Textbooks for the classes will be obtained from (USAFI or other source).

3. The subjects to be offered: anticipated enrollment in each; weekly hours of
instruction and duration of each course follows:

Subject Enrollment Hours per week Length of Course

4. Information concerning each instructor follows:

Name Subject Teaching Cre- Previous Teaching Teaching Fee
dentials Held Experience

5. Arrangements (have or have not) been made with (name of school if have)

for the granting of credit on completion of courses.

the

d. The cost per student of the proposed program is $ . Total cost of
project is $

7. (fUrther justification for proposed program).

S. Proposed educational program will be coordinated, administered. and super-.

vised by (name of ISE officer). presently assigned to this Installation.

9. Local public school instructors are not furnished free of charge for such

program as Contemplated. as no adult education program is locally in existence on

which local schools may receive reimbursement from the State Department of Educa-
tion to additional enrollments.

10. Local Central Post Funds are not sufficient to establish the program
requested.

SlAned (CO or CO)

Figure 1. Sample form to request funds for instructors.
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SUBJECT: Application for Project 501-07, QUARTERMASTER SERVICE, ARMY,
WEM Funds, for Payment of Tuition for Extension Courses
under the Provisions of War Department Memorandum No
dated

TRIM: (Used when applicable)

TO:

1. It lo requested that $ bo made available to (Name of
organization), (Location of organization), for the purpose of
providing extension courses to military personnel during their of-
duty time at this installation.

2. Arrangements are underway with the (name of erheol, !

at to provide classes at (university campus, or on Post).
Cleave:, are expected to begin on approximately (date).

3. The subjects to be offered; anticipated enrollment in each;
weekly hours of Instruction and duration of each course follows:

.

Subject 'Enrollment Hours per week Length of course

4. Tho coat of tuition per student will be $ . Total
cost of the proposed program is estimated to be $

5. (Further justification for request).

6. Proposed educational program will be coordinated and
administered by (name of I&E officer) presently assigned to this
installation.

Signed (CO or CO)

Figure 2. Sample form to request funds for tuition

5
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required for one individual of a group of 10 or more studying
the same type of course.

(AG 112.5 (5 May 47))

BY ORDER OF THE SECRETARY OF WAR:

OFFICIAL:
EDWARD F. WITSELL
Major General
The Adjutant General

DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER
Chief of Staff

DISTRIBUTION:
War Department General and Special Staff DivisionsArmy Air Forces
Army Ground Forces
All armies, ZI
Military District of Washington
Administrative and technical services
Class I, II, and III installations

Copies of this memorandum are furnished only to agencies listed above.
See paragraph 6, AR 310-20.
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POLICY FOR OFF.DUTY CTENSION GROUP STUDY
CLASSES OF ARMY EDUCATION

PROGRAM IN ZONE OF INTERIOR

Changes)
No. 1 )

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Washington 25, D. C., 2 February 1948

Paragraph 2b, Memorandum 85-40-1, 7 May 1947, is changed
as follows, effective 1 July 1948.

b. Payment of 75 percent of the tuition costs per course per
semester or quarter for courses taken by military personnel at a
nearby accredited school or college during off-duty time. The max-
imum amount payable per course per semester or quarter is $25.00,
unless special approval to exceed that amount is secured from the
Chief, Troop Information and Education Division, Special Staff,
United States Army, Washington 25, D. C. Students will pay 25 per-
cent of the cost of the tuition to the school or college, plus cost of
books and any matriculation fees that may be charged.

(AG 112.5 (28 Jan 48))

BY ORDER OF THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY:

OFFICIAL:
EDWARD F. WITSELL
Major General
The Adjutant General

DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER
Chief of Staff, United States Army

DISTRIBUTION:
Headquarters, Department of the Army
Department of the Air Force
Army Ground Forces
All armies, ZI
Military District of Washington
Class I, II, and III installations

Copies of this memorandum are furnished only to agencies listed above.
See paragraph 6, AR 310-20.
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SENATE Rreoar
No. 1336

67: 1.

FORCES INFORMATION AND EDUCATION
PROGRAMS

MAT 13, 1954.Ordered to be printed .

?MULL, from the Committee on Armed Services, submitted
the following

REPORT
(To accompany S. 3401]

mmittee on Armed Services, to whom was referred the bill1) to authorize the furnishing of information, radio and tele-tertainment, and civilian education for personnel in theTortes, and for other purposes, having considered the same,favorably thereon with amendments, and recommend that theamended, do pass.

AHENDYENTS TO THE BILL

the bill as follows:
2, line 19, after the word "exceed", delete "75" and insertthereof "60".

end of the bill add the following new section:3. This Act and all authority conferred thereunder shellto at the close of July 31, 1956.

XXPLANATION OF THE AMENDMENTS

language (1) reduces from 75 to 60 percent theof tuition assistance which may be extended to serviceunder the bill, and (2) establishes a cutoff date of July 31,The reduction in tuition assistance was agreed to by thetal witness. With respect to the termination date of theappeared that the matters in the bill were of a nature thatsubject to periodic review in terms of authorizing legislation.
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2 ARMED FORCES INFORMATION AND EDUCATION PRO

PURPOSE OF TEE BILL

This bill proposes to provide statutory authority applicabthree military departments for the conduct of informs
educational activities for military personnel.

EXPLANATION OF THE BILL

Present authority is temporary and lacks uniformity
With respect to the Army and the Air.Force, present authothe conduct of the information and educational activities is coin the act of June 5, 1952, in the following language:
The Secretary of the Army 5 out of any moneys availableDepartment of the Army; to provide for entertainment and instructionmotion with the welfare of enlisted personnel * * *.
This authority expires MY 1, 1954.
With respect to the Navy and the Marine Corps, the onlnation for the conduct ofprograms of the types herein underis contained in annual appropriations acts. The bill proenact the foregoing temporary authorizations into law apphall services alike.

-

Objectives of information and .education prbgrams
The witness from the Department of Defense pointed outDepartment wishes to continue to provide its military persoopportunities to increase individual ability through training,cation,' and to provide information on citizenship, American;,and current events in a manner which will contribute to theof .personal responsibility to the general welfare of the Natioexpansion of existing programs is contemplated.

.As recommended by the Department of Defense the bill intuition assistance to service personnel authorized under thesection of the bill in an amount not to exceed 75 percent oftuition fees as charged by the cooperating civilian educationalLions. The committee reduced this assistance from 75 pe60 percent on the basis that the smaller amount was adequateOf testimony presented at the hearings.
The bill as recommended by the Department of Defensetended as permanent legislation. The committee felt, howeve;it would be prudent to reexamine this program after 2 years,operation and therefore fixed a termination date of July 31,1956.As was pointed out earlier in. this report, the militarycurrently have temporary authority for the conduct of the phekein to be authoriiid. No general expansion of existingwill eventuate as a result of the enactment of this legislation.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION BUDGET DATA

A similar bill, S. 1996, was recommended by the Depart/a.
.

Defense during the 1st session of the 83d Congress. The codid not take favorable action on S. 1996 but did extend thedate of the programs then in existence from July I, 1953, to1954, which action was approved by the Congress and became Plaw.
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t of the bill involves no increased expenditure of public
ation and education budget for fiscal year 1955

-tinder the existing temporary authority amounts to
'ch amount was presented to the House Committee

considering the Defense Appropriation Act of
and approved by the committee.
the Department of Defense recommending enactment

bill as a substitute for S. 1996 is attached hereto and
report.

OrtICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECIETART or DEFENSE,
Washington 25, D. C., April 23, 1954.

ausoxenza.,
on Armed Services, United States Senate.
During the 1st session of the 83d Congress the Depart-

lolonitted to the Congress a proposed legislative item to authorize
Wormation and civilian education for personnel in the Armed

was introduced in the Senate as S. 1996 and hearings
the Senate Committee on Armed Services. During this
arose as to the intended scope of the proposed legislation

or not the proposal should include radio and television enter-
s y the armed services in certain circumstances.

the De_partment of Defense has reexamined the entire proposal
the Bureau of the Budget concerning the type of legislation

the program. As a result of these studies. the Department
di. and the Bureau of the Budget concurs in this view, that

Cl bill be substituted for S. 1996.
contains the same substance as S. 1996 with the addition of
provide radio and television entertainment as well as infor-

education opportunities. The proposed draft cf bill, however,
`sad television entertainment to programs either overseas or in

Ourmdand
stations in the United States. It does. however.

broadcasts to emanate from the United States if they arearm.
Gat the attached draft of bill clarifies and more fully reflects the

'Department of Defense on this matter.
years,

0
R. A. BUDDERE

(For the Assistant Secretar).
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Excerpts from

Subcommittee Hearing on S.3401, to Authorize the
Furnishing of Information, Radio,and Television

Entertainment, and Civilian Education for Personnel in
the Armed Forces, and For Other Purposes, House of
Representatives, Committee on the Armed Services,

Subcommittee No. 3, Washington, DC, Monday, June
21,1954
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[No. 100]

SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING ON S. 3401, TO AUTHORIZE THE FUR-NISHING OF INFORMATION, RADIO AND TELEVISION ENTER-
TAINMENT, AND CIVILIAN EDUCATION FOR PERSONNEL IN
THE ARMED FORCES, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

Housz or REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON THE ARMED SERVICES

NSUBCOMILITIZE O. 3,
Washington, D. C., Monday, June 21, 1954.

The subcommittee met at 10 a. m. in room 304, House Office Build-ing, the Honorable Leroy Johnson (chairman of the subcommittee)presiding.
Mr. DUCANDER. The next bill,. Mr. Chairman, is S. 3401, an actto authorize the furnishing of information, radio and televisionentertainment, and civilian education for personnel in the ArmedForces, and for other purposes.
(S. 3401 is as follows:)

(S. 3401, 83d Cong.. 2d mes1
AN ACT To authorize the ft.ntishinic of information, radio and television entertainment, and civilianeducation for personnel In the Armed Forces. and for other purposes

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States ofAmerica in Congress assembled, That the Secretary of Defense and the Secretariesof the military departments may, out of funds appropriated for such purposes,provide information, radio and television entertainment, and such civilian edu-cational opportunities for military personnel as are deemed necessary to raisethe educational level of such military personnel in the interest of the militarypreparedness and security of the Nation. Such radio and television entertain-ment provided shall be limited to radio and television programs either overseasor in isolated posts, camps, and stations in the United States. Short waveprograms may be broadcast from the United States if beamed to overseas areas.The information provided may include such service newspapers, pamphlets,motion pictures, and other informational facilities as the respective Secretariesmay prescribe as necessary to inform properly and raise the educational level ofmilitary personnel. Educational opportunities may be provided by means ofservice operated or sponsored correspondence courses, locally conducted academicclasses, or such facilities as may be made available by those civilian educationalinstitutions as may be recognized as accredited by the Office of Education of theDepartment of Health, Education, and Welfare, or by the cognizant agency cfthe respective States.
Sic. 2. There are hereby authorized to be appropriated such funds as may benecessary to carry out the purpose of this Act. Tuition assistance to servicepersonnel, authorized under the first section of this Act, shall not exceed 60 percentum of such tuition fees charged by cooperating civilian educational institutionsand shall be in accordance with such regulations as the Secretary of Defense mayfrom time to time prescribe.
SEC. 3. This Act and all authority conferred thereunder shall terminate atthe close of December 31, 1956.
Passed the Senate May 17 (legislative day, May 13), 1954.Attest:

J. MARX Tales, Secretary.
Mr. DUCANDER. The witness is Maj. Gen. H. N. Hartness.The general has a prepared statement.
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STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. HARLAN N. HARTNESS, OFFICE OF
INFORMATION AND EDUCATION, DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

General HARTNESS. I am General Hartness, representing the De-
partment of Defense, Office of Information and Education.

Mr. JOHNSON. We would be glad to hear from you, General.
General HARTNESS. I have a prepared statement. which I shall be

very happy to read.
Mr. JOHNSON. We would be glad to hear it.
General HARTNESS. I wish to thank you for the opportunity of

appearing before your committee to give the views of the Department
of Defense on the proposed permanent legislation for information,
radio and TV entertainment and civilian education it the armed
services which your committee has before it for consideration.

I should like to state at the outset that the Department of Defense
believes that the authority contained in this legislation is extremely
important. The program provided in this legislation is an integral
part of the responsibilities of the Department of Defense to provide
for the defense and security of our country. Our recent experiences
in Korea have served to emphasize this fact. You doubtless recall
General Dean's statement on being interviewed on a national TV
program after his liberation from a Communist-prison camp when hestated:

I was convinced that I had not sufficiently stressed the information and educa-tion training of our own soldiers and I resolved that if I ever returned to activeduty with my soldiers of the United States that I would stress to a much greater
degree the information and education program.

As a distinguished combat leader, General Dean has stated his
convictions about the necessity for information and education forthe Armed Forces. Modern warfare demands more and more from
each individual serviceman. He must be thoroughly versed in the
principles of democracy and the concepts of freedom for which ourcountry stands. Ever-changing developments in international affairs,
as well as in national affairs, requires us to keep our service personnel
informed in timely fashion.

This legislation covers three broad aspects which I shall discuss
very briefly. The first aspect is the information phase of the programwhich has for its aims:

(a) Giving the individual serviceman an understanding of, and a
iliving belief in, our representative form of government, his responsi-

bilities and obligation to serve as well as the privileges he enjoys
under our form of government; the value and dignity

in
the indi-vidual; the faith and trust which we as Americans place n our fellow

man; and the missions of our Armed Forces, their relationships to each
other and the vital importance of each serviceman's contribution tothe program of national defense.

(b) Making each serviceman fully conscious of the national and
international problems which have an impact on his life, and which
affect his attitudes, and his conduct both at home and overseas.

(c) Acquainting the serviceman with the fallacies of false ideologiesand forms of government such as that of Communist Russia and
Communist China.

The necessity for effective information programs in the military
service is clearly pointed out in numerous places in the series of
reports which resulted from the investigation of the preparedness
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program by the Preparedness Subcommittee of the Senate Committee
on Armed services. The committee, in ite 36threport dated December
21, 1951, stated
good troop informatiOn programs contribute to good morale. The American
soldier,. if indoctrinated with the "why" of his service, accepts his militaryresponsibility with interest, courage, and devotion.I sin sure all of you are thoroughl_y_in agreement that our servicepersonnel mush be well informed. When they come into the serv-
ice they experience many changes from their former lives; they havebeen separated from their ;families and friends; they are in newsurroundings, in a new setting; they undergo rigorous training;. they
may be committed to immediate participation in military action if
the situation demands it. They have a right to know why all thishas happened to them. They must have a clear understanding of theprinciples of the democracy they have been called upon to defend.And they must be fortified against enemy propaganda.The education phase is designed to provide a program of academic

and vocational subjects in order that service personnel may (1)improve their value to the service; (2) have an opportunity to con-
tinue civilian education while in the service; and (3) make profitable
use of their spare time.

The educational
opportunities made available by the Armed Forces

have proved their worth from three points of view. The serviceprofits by the man's improved performance of duty and his increased
capability for the assumption of greater responsibility. The man him-
self increases his chances of promotion; improves his prospects for
civilian life after his service is completed; continues, though at reduced
speed, his civilian education program; and makes profitable use of
time that might otherwise bewasted or misused. The Nation benefits,
since our democratic form of goverriment

requires educated citizens in
the armed services as well as in civilian life.Years spent in the armed service must not be allowed to dislocate
seriously tho Nation's manpower balance. The continuance of large
numbers of men and women in the service would in normal course
greatly reduce and, as a minimum, delay the supply of technically
trained personnel. The educational programs conducted by thearmed service on off -duty time are substantially

counteracting this
trend and are helping to insure that the numbers of skilled personnel,
junior technicians, and others required in the military and in civilian
society do not fall to dangerously low levels.----The radio and television portions of this program have for their
purpose the support of the information and education programs. Ithink you will agree that to attempt to use the radio and television
solely for information and education purposes would soon result in
the loss of the bulk ofour listeners with a consequentdiminution of the
efficacy of the I: and E. program.These programs of information, entertainment, and education,
which had their beginning in World War II, have made a permanent
place for themselves. They have grown to be more and more of
necessity. Siiceinctly stated, the fundamental purposes of the infor-
mation, entertainment, and educational program are to contribute
to the effectiveness of the Armed Forces. The need for this legisla-
tion is all the more imperative at this time when large numbers of
young men are entering the armed services before they have completed
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their education or have developed positive attitudes toward theadvantages of American democracy and the responsibilities of citizen-ship. With the possibility of a prolonged emergency period and theconsequent universal obligation of young men to spend at least partof their lives in military service, these programs of information, enter-tainment, and education are indispensable to the advancement of theindividual and to the Nation as a whole. Their morale value aloneis incalculable.

The Department of Defense recommends that support of theseprograms be enacted into permanent law. The activities covered .bythis bill are those which are already established under temporaryauthority and for which funds have been appropriated. Enactmentof this bill will not involve any additional expenditure of publicfunds. It will, however, crystallize into permanent law a phase ofmilitary preparedness which, as has been pointed out, is increasinglymore and more a vital part of our defense planningI shall be happy to answer, to the best of my ability, any questionsyou may care to ask.
Mr. JOHNSON. What is your background, General?General HARTNESS. I beg your pardon, inr?Mr. JOHNSON. What is your background? Are you a professionalsoldier?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.Mr. JOHNSON. Have you come up through the ranks? How didyou finally attain your major generalship?General HARTNESS. I graduated from West Point in 1918. I havebeen in the service continually since.Mr. JOHNSON. In what branch?General HARTNESS. Infantry.

Mr. JoHNsoN. We have two men here who are combat soldiersand who have had experience. I would like them to ask you somequestions first. Then I may want to ask some more questions.General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. DEVEREVE. General, why is it in the naval service they didnot go in for this program as much as you did in the Army?General HARTNESS. I believe that the best way I can answer thatis to say that the Navy and also the Marine Corps believeand I amnot justifying it one way or anotherthat their training programs docover much of this type of information. The Navy does, in its basictraining, I know, do considerable work in citizenship, as does theMarines.

The Army up until recently has been extremely strong for thisprogram, and it is a program which we believe is of great importancein every phase of it. The Air Force is equally strong today.The Navy and the Marines both used material which our office, theOffice of Infirmation and Education of the Department of Defense,publishes. That is not only for discussions among their men, but toprovide their men with the reading material so that they can be betterinformed on these matters which I have discussed in this paper.Mr. DEVEREUX. You will remember that at one time there was agreat deal of resistance on the part of the Navy and the Marine Corpsto accepting any such program as this.General HARTNESS. I have heard of that; yes, sir.Mr. DEVEREUX. You do not know why they resisted it?
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General HARTNESS. Specifically I do not.
Mr. DEVEREUX. There is something related to this I would like toget an answer on.
How many officers do you have in the Department of Defense who

are connected with the Public Information Service? Does that come
under you?

General HARTNESS. I do not know t1.4t answer.
Mr. DEVEREUX. I see.
General HARTNESS. I am concerned with internal information.
Mr. DEVEREUX. I have no further questions.
Mr. JOHNSON. Any other questions?
Mr. BRAY. General, you state we already have legislation on this.Is it of a temporary nature?
General HARTNESS. No, sir; we have no legislation now.
Mr. BRAY. You do it, do you not?
General HARTNESS. By appropriation act only.
Mr. BRAY. You would have to appropriate every year anyway.

I cannot see any reason for this legislation. You are already doing
it, I know that from personal knowledge. The only reason I can see
would be to make it a philosophy for permanent law. Otherwise I
can see nothing to be gained by this legislation.

General HARTNESS. Well, it gives us a firmer foundation. As to
how much this particular matter is worth, that is a question. It will
eliminate the point-of-order proposition.

Mr. BRAY. What do you mean by the point-of-order proposition?
General HARTNESS. That our funds could oe eliminated by a point

of order on the floor.
Mr. BRAY. You mean you want legislation so that in the future we

cannot control the money?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; you can control the money.
Mr. BRAY. I think Congress can always do that, and I think it will

continue to do so.
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. BRAY. I just cannot see anything to be gained by this legisla-

tion; any right that you do not already have right now.
General HARTNESS. Well, it gives us a firmer basis. If I may put

it on this basis, it permits a long-range planning and assurance of
the American public that the Congress is behind this program.

Mr. BRAY. Congress appropriates the money. Everyyear we bave
to do that anyway, whether we have this bill or not. Regardless of
this legislation, if the Congress 1 year decided it was not going to
appropriate money, although I do not expect anything of that kind,
we certainly would not appropriate the money if we were not in favor
of the program, regardless of this legislation.

General HARTNESS. That is right; yes, sir.
Mr. BRAY. Then each year we have to go over the military budget

just the same, whether we pass this law or not. We can eliminate it
or put it in every year anyway.

General HARTNESS. But it does give all those concerned with the
program a feeling of permanency. I think that is universal, generally,
anions the higher individuals in the service, that they have a sense that
here is at least permanency to a program of tremendous value to the
services.
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Mr. BRAY. There is no question but that this program has somevalue. As to as I have been connected with the service, beginningbefore World War II, we have had this general plan. I have seen it
handled miserably poor and I have seen it handled very fine.

It seems to me it all depends upon who in the theater or the vicinityis handling it.
I am happy to say that the Army has not, within my knowledge,made it a bureau of propaganda to propagate certain philosophical

beliefs that may be believed some place in the country and not in
other places. I have seen that attempted to be done by certain officersand certain units took a very dim view of that, because they felt it
was being used for that.

Yet the more capable men who were running the program kept
entirely away from that.

Outside of just affirming a belief that we have already carried out
every year for a long time, I do not seewhat we would gain by OP.Do you; frankly?

General BARMEN. I believe there is at least a gain psychologically
and perhaps philosophically. It gives us that tremendous gain, inthat there is a recognition by the Representatives of our people thathere is a program worth while in every sense of the word on which
they have placed their stamp of approval by making it a permanentprogram.

Mr. BRAY. General, I do not care to take a lot of time on this.I kind of feel every year when we appropriate .the money we knowwhat you are doing with it. We certainly do not want to take astep to build up a propaganda bureaucracy of any kind within theArmy. I know the Members of Congress are certainly not in favorof that, and I know you are not.
General HARTNESS. Our policy has been in the pastand I assureyou it will be in the futurethat this is not a propaganda agency.
Mr. BRAY. I think you have stayed pretty clear on that. I wantto commend the Army for that. I have seen a few instances in the pastwhere you did not, but on the whole you have done much better than Ithought you would over the years with that weapon in your hands.
Mr. JOHNSON. General, so you think it would add to what wealready have by having a law on the books so that they could not

put this in the form of a rider, which, as you indicated, would besubject to a point of order? Is that you isea?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; I believe that not only from the pointof view of the services and the point of view of the Department ofDefense that this is important, but also we have quite a large educa-tional program off duty. The colleges and the universities, I am sure,would feel that greater support was given to this and more firm andpositive support were we to have such a law.
Mr. JOHNSON. Now letus look at this statement s. minute. Take (a),for instance. It says:
Giving the individual serviceman an understanding of, and a living belief in,our representative form of government, his responsibilities and obligation to serveas well as the privileges he enjoys under our form of government; the value anddignity of the individual; the faith and trust which we as American* place In ourfellowman; and the missions of our Armed Forces, their relationships to each otherand the vital importance of each serviceman 'a contribution to the program ofnational defense.

'3 3
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Certainly you could not expect the men to go into all of those things
after hours voluntarily. That is, a very great proportion of them
could not be expected to.

General HARTNESS. No, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. Furthermore, the men are 18% years old, are they not

when they get into the services?
General HARTNESS. When they are drafted; yes, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. I have lived in three different States of the Union,

and I know this is true in those Statesis it not true in most States?
by that time they ought to have their basic civics and understanding
of the American Gcvernment. Do you agree with that?

General HARTNLSS. I agree that they ought to; yes, sir. I do not
agree that they do.

Mr. JOHNSON. Oh, you do not agree that they do. Well, I think
that they do.

As you realize, there are some individualsand that is true in the
soldier class as wellwho are not particularly interested in this sort
of thing; is that not a fact?

General HARTNESS. That is true, sir, but if we can make them a
little more interested and can inculcate in themnot by just propa-
gandasome of these things about which we are talking we are doing
that much more gc od for the service and our country not only while
those young men Ind young women are in the service but when they
return to civilian life as citizens.

Mr. JOHNSON. Of course, when you enlist a man you enlist him for a
specific military job. Is this going to carve out of the time for that
job time to take up these matters?

General HARTNESS. No, sir. There is a program in the various
services which provides that certain matters be included in their
training. That is a very small portion of their training period. The
Army, for instance, has certain of what they call minimum standards
of requirements.

Mr. JOHNSON. To what are you referring? Minimum standards of
what?

General HARTNESS. Of information and knowledge.
Mr. JOHNSON. On what topics?
General HARTNESS. On various topics.
Mr. JOHNSON. On the structure of the United States Government?
General HARTNESS. On citizenship, among other things; yes, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. On the method of voting?
General HARTNESS. We give them that information on voting

information. This [indicating chart] is one of the things which I
have here, which we publish every 2 years. That is voting information
for the Armed Forces for every State, and that goes throughout the
services.

In addition to that there is a pamphletI think we have copies of
it herewhich augments that particular information.

Mr. JOHNSON. That is not required reading, though, is it, under
your rules?

General HARTNESS. No, sir; that is just voluntary reading. We in
the Department of Defense do not lay down any specific require-
ments. We provide the material which the services use to accomplish
the aims which have been set forth rather briefly in this paper which
I have read.
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Mr. JoHNsoN. How much of a man's time is taken? You said a
certain amount of his time when he is on duty is going to be taken
up with this.

General HARTNESS. That varies with the service. I think in the
Army it averages about 1 hour a week. I believe I am correct in that.

Mr. JoHNsoN. One hour a week?
General HARTNESS. That is on-duty. time.
Mr. JOHNSON. Does that include this next one, (b):
Making each serviceman fully conscious of the national and international prob-

lems which have an impact on his life, and which affect his attitudes, and his con-
duct both at home and overseas.
Is that not worthy almost of a man trying for a Ph. D., to understand
that problem?

General HARTNESS. No, sir. For instance, may I take it on this
basis: When our troops go overseas they are given prior to their
departure a very thorough, as I will call it, indoctrination on their
conduct overseas and what they can be expected to find overseas.

Mr. JOHNSON. Could I interrupt you right there?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. Under "conduct" you mean moral conduct?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. That is what you are trying to impress on them.

They are ambassadors, and they must. behave themselves?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; and their attitudes.
Mr. JoHNsoN. All right.
General HARTNESS. May we give to each of you a type of thing

which we produce to give to our servicemen going overseas?
Mr. JoHNsoN. Surely. We would be glad to have them. We have

some up here.
General HARTNESS. These are in printed form; We also produce

motion pictures. These are shown in the staging areas. These are
given in the staging_areas prior to their departure for overseas.

Mr. JOHNSON. What about the international problems? What are
you going to tell them about those?

General HARTNESS. Well, we can tell them a good deal, for in-
stance, about the United Nations and NATO, things which actually
our citizens should be informed about. We produce this material.
It is not necessarily all used in a discussion period, but it is available
to these young people to read.

In my trips around I have foundI will not say 100 percent interest;
I will not even say 75 percent interest; but I will say I have found a
great deal of interest; and we have letters which have been written to
us from young men and young women in the service as to how much
value they get from the material which is provided them for reading
purposes.

Mr. JOHNSON. Well, the libraries are fairly well attended, but not
by any manner of means up to 50 percent of the personnel, at the ones
rhave seen.

General HARTNESS. This is not the libraries so much. It is the
dayrooms and the other places which are frequented more than the
libraries themselves.

Mr. JoHNsoN. Then you have (a) :
Acquainting the serviceman with the fallacies of false ideologies and forms of

government such as that of Communist Russia and China.

4J
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General HARTNESS. We are in the process now of preparing materialwhich can be used in discussion hours with our servicemen on com-munism.
Mr. JOHNSON. I think the record in Korea amply justifies the factthat the average American boy, at least up to 99 percent, does notfall for any of that stuff. He sees through it. Do you not think so?General HARTNESS. I think that is true; yes, sir.Mr. Jomi.soN. I am heartily in favor of all of this, but it seems tome that it is a little too ambitious for the average GI. I was asecond lieutenant at one time in the Army. We did not get as muchof this as the GI gets here, if you give it to them. If it is voluntary,I think you are only going to touch a very small fraction of your men.General HARTNESS. This is not all voluntary.Mr. JOHNSON. As I understood your answer the mandatory partis a very small fraction of his available time, his duty time.General HARTNESS. That is true, sir. I would like to say. this:It has been my experience since I haveve been in this office, in visitingaround, that this material is pretty well received and pretty widelyread, even when it is not discussed.Mr. JOHNSON. If we put this in a statute which is a permanentlaw, which will continue from year to year, assuming that the tensionsof eoday last at least 5 years and maybe longer, how much a year willthis increase the present cost of this?

General HARTNESS. Increase the present cost?Mr. JOHNSON. Yes, sir.
General HARTNESS. Nothing.Mr. JOHNSON. Not at all?
General HARTNESS. No, sir. There is no additional money in-volved.
Mr. DUCANDER. The money has already been appropriated forfiscal 1955.
Mr. JOHNSON. It has been appropriated thisyear, but we will haveit every year.
General HARTNESS. Actually for the past 3 years our budget hasdropped slightly each succeeding year.Mr. JOHNSON. Is it not a fact that in the military groups, especiallyin the drafting of men, you have a very wide divergence of generalknowledge and intelligence, which varies, depending on what part ofthe country the people come from?
General HARTNESS. And their educational advantages; yes, sir.Mr. JonNsoN. Is that not true?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. Would the group which is the least trained in thisand the least skilled in it be the group who would get it, or would itbe the ones who are trained in it?
If you take States like my State, and Wisconsin and Oregon, theyhave a high level of education. Those boys know all of this in generalwhen they ia.e 1834 to 20 years of age.
General HARTNESS. The implementation of the program withineach command is one which the services themselves are responsible for.Mr. Joimsox. I see. Of course, you are familiar with the Army.Do you think the Army has been fairly successful in this?General HARTNESS.. I do; yes, sir.

42000-54No. 100-2
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some off-duty and some on-duty time. Here, for example, is anofficer and an enlisted man in the field who wants to continue hiseducation with this tuition assistance. There is no compulsion aboutthat. He makes a request to take courses and he is advised by theeducational adviser in the field, or if there is not one present thereat his immediate location, by the information and education officerwho has all the data and information at his disposal to advise thisyoung man as to what courses he can profitably pursue.Mr. JOHNSON. In developing this in the boy, do you have instructorswho do nothing but that?
General HARTNESS. No, sir.Mr. JOHNSON. I suppose that you give examinations to see whattheir advance has been.
General HARTNESS. The field is such that this does not give theexamination except for those people who are taking a compulsorycourse to bring their education to the fourth-grade level. The othercourses that I mentionedare taken at the UnitedStates Armed ForcesInstitute, which has headquarters in Madison, and the examinationof those courses is graded at Madison where we have 1 officer and 28civilian personnel operating the United States Armed Forces Institutefor an enrollment of approximately 300,000.Mr. JOHNSON. In what State?
General HARTNESS. Wisconsin.Mr. JOHNSON. You picked a good State, I will say that.The reason I am questioning_you about these things is because wewill be questioned about it. We want to be sure that this legislationis sound. It dwells so much on the radio and television and entertain-ment that it seems to me it is almost going to exclude the real advan-tage in learning something and having the boy develop an understand-ing of the American form and system of government.General HARTNESS. I do not believe so, sir, because on the radioand television both there are information and educational programs.Mr. JOHNSON. Sponsored by the Armed Forces?General HARTNESS. Yes.Mr. JOHNSON. Does the station provide the television sets so thatthe men can make use of them?

General HARTNESS. No. The company fund, or some equivalentfund, will have to provide the television sets. They will not be fromappropriated moneys.
Mr. JOHNSON. Who is involved in this?General HARTNESS. Every individual is involved in this.When you ask about the bigness, I would have to say where thegreatest number of persons are located.Mr. JOHNSON. For example, Camp Benning. Do they have a bigoperation like this down there?General HARTNESS. Yes.Mr. JOHNSON. And also at other stations like Fort Bliss? Do theyhave it at Fort Bliss?
General HARTNESS. Every post, camp, and station in the UnitedStates and overseas.
Mr. JOHNSON. This operation at Madison, Wis., is correspondence.General HARTNESS. That is correct.Mr. JOHNSON. Is there any way we can get the results from that,or form someone in your organization, as to what has happened
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how many have done well, how many are dropping by the wayside,
and so forth.

General HARTNESS. I can give you that to this extent: The other
day we had a little celebration out at Madison to celebrate the 12th
year of the existence of the United States Armed Forces Institute,
and we also had present the three millionth enrollee over its 12-year
period; in other words, we have averaged around 250,000 enrollments
a year from the inception of the organization, although in its earliei
years the enrollment was low.

Mr. JOHNSON. That sounds very encouraging, that there are that
many interested.

General HARTNESS. Today we have around 300,000. You have
asked me how many complete courses? Our average is better than
comparable civilian schools, although it is not too high. It will run
around 12 percent.

Mr. JOHNSON. How do you compare that with civilian schools?
Do they not graduate more than 12 or 12% percent of those that enter
the categories that you talk about?

General HA.taxEss. On local attendance they do, but such. schools
as the International Correspondence School, they are much lower than
we.

Mr. JouNsox. Of course, they touch such a small fraction of the
American public. I am talking about the public schools of our States.
They graduate practically everybody that enters into the high schools.

General HARTNESS. I cannot give you the answer on how manygraduate. I do not think that all people who start high school finishby a good deal.
Mr. JOHNSON. I think that you are right. My statement was a

little extravagant. The freshman crop do not all graduate.
Gene' at HARTNESS. I am sure that the percentage of those that

enter grammar school and high school and go on to college is ex-
tremelv small.

Mr. JOHNSON. It depends upon the requirements of the State.
Some States have requirements regarding education that almost force
them to go through high school; is that not true?

General HARTNESS. Yes, or-up to a certain age.
Mr. JOHNSON. We want to find out all we can about. this. You

were going to tell us some more about the Madison, Wis., results.
General HARTNESS. I have given you about as much as I can.
Mr. JOHNSON. That 12% percent graduate?
General HARTNESS. Complete a course once they enroll.
Now, these courses are vocational; they are mechanical and theyare academic. Madison goes through the second year of college in

its some 280 to 300 courses. I had an officer tell me that he enrolled
in a course to find out what it was about and to get the initial steps;
that he had never intended to complete the course, but that it would
give him a good insight into what it .0, as and what he could at some
later time use. I am sure that many of the young men who enroll
do that for the same purpose, not with the intention of finishing the
course but perhaps with the intention of getting some textbook which
he wants to use in his reference library.

Mr. JOHNSON. This is done by contract with the University ofWisconsin?
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General HARTNESS. The contract with the University of Wisconsinis only for the correction of papers.
Mr. JOHNSON. That is done by undergraduates, probably, at theuniversity.
General HARTNESS. Yes, or profesiors or associate professors.Mr. JOHNSON. You say that it has been in existence for 12 years?General HARTNESS. Yes.
Mr. JOHNSON. And you consider it a success, that the results justifyyour saying it is a success?
General HARTNESS. I think that there is no question about that.Mr. JoHNSON. I do not think there is any objection; it is just aquestion of whether it really produces the results to justify the expense.I am a little surprised also, as Mr. Bray was, that you terminatethis in 2% years. You can have a review of this without any term-ination.
General HARTNESS. That was the Senate's action.I also repeated section 2 we had in the bill as originally written 75percent tuition aid, and the Senate committee reduced to 60 percent.I was asked when I talked before that committee if it would adverselyaffect the program. I stated in my opinion it would.Mr. JoimsoN. If you think that it would be better to prolong thiswe can, of course, modify the bM. If you want to make any recom-mendations concerning the modification of the bill, we would be gladto hear them. If you want to sit down today and tentatively writethem out, we would be pleased to have you do so.General HARTNESS. My recommendation, and I cannot go anyfurther than I have stated, would be that the bill on a permanentbasis would be better.

Mr. JOHNSON. In other words, you would eliminate the 1956ftgure?
General HARTNESS. I think that that would be better.Mr. JOHNSON. What about the other part that you refer to?Would you like to have that changed, that 60 percent?General HAHTNEss. The Air Force and the Army both have verystrong tuition aid programs and I would ask the committee to listento Colonel McCormic.k of ihe Army and Dr. Ray of the Air Force,if I may.

Mr. BRAT. The way this bill is written here, section 2, the Govern-ment pays 60 percent of the amount and the soldier pays 40 percent."General HARTNESS. That is partially true.Mr. BRAY. That is what it says here:
There are hereby to be authorized and appropriated such funds as may benecessary to carry out the purposes of this Act. Tuition assistance of servicepersonnel, authorized under the first section of this Act! shall not exceed 60 percent= of such tuition fees charged by cooperating civilian educational institu-tions and shall be in accordance with such regulations as the Secretary of Defensemay from time to time prescribe.
There is no question about what that says.General HARTNESS. No, sir.-Mr. Buy. Today how much does a soldier have to pay?General HARTNESS. Today the soldier in the Army gets 75 percent.In the Air Force he gets 75 percent.
Mr. BRAT. General, this bill that you are working out, the firstthing that it does is to terminate, and the Congress has no idea ofterminating. Second, you increase the amount that the soldier has
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to pay to discourage him. It seems to me that you are doing nothinghere to encourage the soldier.
General }TARTNESS. These 2 provisions were .put in by the Senateand we came to the Senate with 75 percent provision and a permanentlegislative bill.
Mr. BRAT. You will admit that to pass this bill the way it is nowyou would be in worse shape than you are now.
General HARTNEss. No, sir.
Mr. BRAY. You have raised the percentage 15 percent. That ishow much more the soldier has to pay. That is correct, is it not?
General HARTNESS. The 75 percent has varied from time to time.
Mr. BRAT. Your 2 experts just testified that it was 75 percent todayand this would make it 60 percent. That is 15 percent worse off forthe soldier.
General HARTNESS. That is right. May I ask them to testify?

Mr. JOHNSON. I would like to have our counsel ask you 1 or 2questions and then we will be delighted to hear the others. Inci-dentally, undoubtedly there will be a very short session in the Housetoday.
(Discussion .off the record.)
Mr. DIICANDER I think it would be helpful if we develop, so thesubcommittee understands the matter exactly, what the problems orprograms are that are covered by this bill.
I know that there is a school program for people who do not havea fourth:grade education. That is compulsory up to the eighth grade;is that right?
General HARTNESS. That is in the Army.
Mr. DUCANDER. That is in the Army. is it true that the Air Forceand the Navy and the Marine Corps have such a program?
General HARTNESS. I do not believe that the Marine Corpshas thatproblem today.

STATEMENT OF COL. P. J. SPECIMAN, PERSONNEL DIVISION,
HEADQUARTERS, UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS

Colonel SPECEMAN. No; we do not. We did have it when we weretaking draftees. At that time at our recruiting training, .camps atParris Island and San Diego we were giving instructions in an effortto bring the level of education of the individual recruit to a fifth-gradelevel, working it into his training period at the recruit camp.Mr. DIICANDER. Then you just do not enlist anyone with less than
a fourth-grade education at this time?

Colonel SPECKMAN. That is correct.
Mr. DIICANDER. Now, General, what other schools are there withinthe Army itself, aside from the ones we have just mentionedcoveredby this bill?
General HARTNESS. Covered by this bill, this is the only educa-tional school involved.
Mr. DIICANDER. I see.
Now, in addition to the school up to the fourth-grade level in the: Army, then you have the United States Armed Forces Institute,which is a correspondence course school?
General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. DIICANDER. In addition to that, you have collaborating col-leges, do you not?
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General HARTNESS. In addition to that, we have two types, if Imay put it on that basis, of colleges involved in this program. Oneis what I will call, and what we commonly call, participating colleges.
Those participating colleges offer courses to include the fourth yearof college to all personnel in the services provided they are qualifiedto take those courses, and they meet obviously the requirements.We have today 32 of those colleges that are participating in thisprogram. I think that my figures may be a. little off, but around16,000 to 18,000 a year participate in that program.

Then we have the cooperating colleges, and there are some 200of those within the United States and overseas. Those colleges insubstance give on-the-ground courses. They either give thecourses at the post, base, or station, or they are close enough to thepost, base, or station so that the individual can go and take coursesat the particular institution.
Mr. DIICANDER. At that point, General, who pays these cooperatingcolleges?
General HARTNESS. That is the tuition aid that we are talkingabout.
Mr. DIICANDER. And there is no other charge to the Governmentfor that service?

-General HARTNE/38. To the Government, no, but to the man thereis because he has to pay in addition to his tuition for his textbooksand any incidental expenses that come along.
Mr. DIICANDER. Aside from the tuition assistance in the bill, thereis nothing in the bill to pay colleges anything above the tuition andassistance?
General HARTNESS. To these cooperating colleges; no.Mr. DIICANDER. Can you tell the subcommittee something aboutyour radio programs?
General HARTNESS. Yes. I would like to use some notes here toreduce my verbiage.
The Armed Forces Radio Service operates from 2 primary locations,1 in Los Angeles and 1 in New York. They have the mission of broad-casting information, entertainment, and educational services to allservice personnel overseas, and to 45 service hospitals in the UnitedStates. In order to accomplish its mission, the Armed Forces RadioService in Los Angeles accomplishes the following tasks: From broad-casting stations on the west coast, the use of which is provided bythe Voice of America, Armed Forces Radio Service, Los Angeles,broadcasts to the Pacific and the Caribbean areas 91 hours weekly.The avdrage weekly broadcasts consist of 23 hours and 30 minutesof news. That is up-to-the-minute news; 17 hours and 30 minutesof information and education features; 38 hours and 30 minutes ofsports and 7 hours and 35 minutes of other timely programs, plus3 hours and 30 minutes weekly given to informing all the stationsreceiving these programs information as to change of program orother contingencies about which it is essential that the receivingstations be informed.

Now, overseas, there are 72 of these receiving stations, some ofwhich are served by Los Angeles and some of which are served byNew York.
Now, the Los Angeles office provides to each of these 72 stationslocated a library package of records for 9 hours and 25 minutes
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broadcast time. Each of these weekly library packages averages 6hours and 55 minutes of information and educational features, 30minutes of sport feature programs and 1 hour and 45 minutes of 5-minute fill-ins.
These fill-ins are prepared to take care of the loss of 5 minuteswhich sometimes occur when programs are decommercialized.Now, I would like to dwell a moment on decommercialization. Allof the major radio broadcasting companies in this country have givento the Armed Forces the right to reproduce their programs without anycost and with the permission to decommercialize, take out all com-mercials from their pro ms, which means that a 30-minute programdecommercialized is o whittled down to 25 minutes, and that iswhat I mean when I say ' l-ins."They also provide a weekly overseas unit package of records. Eachpackage averages 50 hours of broadcast material for each week.Thirty-nine of these packages are furnished weekly. The reason thereare 39 is because this is in a circulating proposition and they do notstay in any one library but move from one place to another for use.In order to accomplish this mission of providing 72 radio stationswith permanent libraries and providing them with a weekly rotatingpackage, the Armed Forces Radio Service prepares under contract atan average cost of about 65 cents nearly 600,000 records a year. Thisaverage cost of 65 cents is in contrast to a commercial cost of 2 or 3times that amount.

That in essence is what Los Angeles does.
Mr. BRAY. The program is sent out from Los Angeles and is pickedup by these stations and then rebroadcast to the areas?General HARTNESS. Those are the shortwave programs.Mr. BRAT. I wondered how you did it.
General HARTNESS. The local stations overseas also may takeprograms of their own and put them on, but we do provide on-the-spotnews at least on the hour every hour.
Mr. BRAY. So that the stations overseas catch that on your short-wave station and rebroadcast it?
General HARTNESS. That is true.
Now, New York previously broadcast 33 hours and 15 minutesweekly to the North Atlantic, European, and North African areas.Of these 33 hours and 15 minutes, 5 hours are used for news broadcasts,8 hours and 10 minutes for education and information features, 13hours and 25 minutes for sports, and 3 hours and 35 minutes for othertimely programs, plus 1 hour and 20 minutes during the week to keepstations informed of changes in programs or other contingencies.The Armed Forces Press and Radio Services in New York alsoprovide materiels in the forin of clip sheets, mats, and editorial ser-vices to more than 1,300 service newspapers.The actual administration and operation of th e 72 overseas broad-casting sations are under the Army, the Navy, and the Air Force,with the Army operating 39, the Navy 8 and the Air Force 25.Tha Army also operates 37 transmitter relay stations, which, asindicated, are simply relays.That is briefly what the Radio Service does.Mr. Dzvzaztrx. When men take advantage of the educationalprogram, for instance, where the Government pays a certain per- ....r.4
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centage of their tuition, is that deducted from their rights under the
GI bill?

General HART:ass. No.
Mr. DEVEREUX. Now, do you feel, or does the Department ofDefense feel, that this question of civic education is the responsibility

of the Federal Government, or do you feel that something is necessary?General HARTNESS. We feel it is very greatly necessary.I would like to answer your first question a little more fully end saythis: Although I have no statistical proof, nor can I get any statistical
proof, I am firmly convinced that providing these young men andwomen with these educational opportunities, offduty, will cut down in
the ling run the costs under the GI bill of rights by providing them, or
paying a portion of, their tuition and getting them certain credits forinstitutions later on. That reduces their requirethent when they c,.o
back to civilian life and should automatically, put them in theirchosen professions, or chosen work, earlier than if they did nothing in
the service. and went into civilian life and took the whole business
under the GI bill of rights.

So I believe that we are saving the Government money in the longrun by doing this.
Mr. DEVEREUX. I remember when we got out the Korean GI billwe made certain

stipulations in it that if a person receivededucationaladvantages under a service program, for example, going to a businesscollege, then that would have to be deducted from his rights that hemight otherwise be entitled to when he left the service, but this is nottaken intoconsideration as far as thisparticular program is concerned?Am I correct?
General HARTNESS. I said "No," sir. I am still of that belief.Mr. JOENsON. On whom do you think the responsibility devolves

with regard to the education of the youth of the Nation, the States
or the Federal

Government?
General HARTNESS. I think probably both have some vital stake in

this, but if it is a question of categorically "Yes" or "No," I would say
that it is the States.

Mr. JOHNSON. That isuniversally conceded.General HARTNESS. Yes.
Mr. JOHNSON. That they are to educate the children of the country

and all that the National Government does is to offer advice and
things like that.

General HARTNESS. However, we say to the soldier, to the sailor,
the airmen, and the marine and the female compatriots, that when you
serve honorably for a certain period you will be given so much money
under the GI bill of rights to be educated.Mr. JOHNSON. That is a good program. These people fundamen-
tally go to State institutions; they do not go to national institutions
to be educated.

General HARTNESS. No; but they get their money from the Federal
Government.

Mr. JOHNSON. Certainly. We gave vocational training after the
First World War because we felt the men who put in their time and
made the sacrifices for their country ought to get something in the
way of training that would benefit them. It was a modest program
then, but it did considerable good, to my personal.knowledge.
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;: Mr. DEVRREUX. General, is there any question about forcing these
projrams on the various services?

tieneral.MaTNEss. Forcing them?
Mr. DEVEREUX. Yes.

...GentallafEARTNESS. No.
Mr. DEVEREUX. If they want to take them and carry them out,

all right; if not, they can do whatever they want to; is that correct?
:General HARTNESS. That is true.
Mr. Dzynazux. And they can take such parts of a program asthey wish?
General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. DEVEREUX. And let the rest go by?

. General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. DEvzaztrx. General, there is one thing that disturlis me a bit,whether or not you are going overboard on a propaganda and educa-tional program and trying to cover our responsibility in the services

rather than teaching leadership and teaching the people to live in arepresentative form of government, and that is, if rou can call it ademocratic service. I do not believe it is democratic, never will be,and 'never has been, and it cannot be, to be efficient.
. That is the thing that disturbs me and a lot of people in the service.

Have you in your experience had any indication that this purely educa-
tional or propaganda form is taking the place of fundamental responsi-
bility in the various services?

General HARTNESS. From my experience, no. If I have followed
your your question is: Do our people think that perhaps we are trying
to propagandize them, and that we are letting certain fringe things,
you might say, get the upper hand of what is the most important, andthat is, training our people to be the best combat fighters and the bestcombat teams it is humanly possible to make; is that your question?

Mr. DEVEREUX. That is partially it. Frankly, I ao not expressmyself very well. My thought is, with company grade officers,
whether they will put out a certain amount of this educational propa-ganda that vou have and think then, well, my responsibilities are over.In other words, they have held so many classes and that is that; they
can check that off and say," Well, I have taken care of my responsibil-ities as an officer."

General HARTNESS. I would not for a moment say that there arenot some who would do that. I am convinced that any commanderworth his. salt, who has anybody like that, will not have him verylong, or will straighten him out.
Mr. JOHNSON. In the statement thit you made about the broad-casts, you gave a certain number of hours for sports. What per-centage is that of the total hours?
General HARTNESS. About a third from Los Angeles.
Mr. JOHNSON. Of course, that is done primarily for morale, is itnot, and not for education? You would not include that in education?
General HARTNESS. That is true, morale, and it is also things these

young men have been accustomed to back in the States. Also, as Iindicated in my prepared statement, if we feed them nothing buteducation and education, we would lose our listener audience.
Mr. JOHNSON. I think you would. Every boy likes to hear sports,if he is a normal American boy, and that is a good investment.
Mr. DEVEREUX. Can you give us an example of what are some of

the educational programs that aro put out over the air?
....goommamalosmon



Mr. JOHNSON. Does this record that I have in my hand containone here? If it does, we want to take it upstairs andplay it.
General HARTNESS. I do not know what that program you havein your hand is.
Slr. JOHNSON. It is Invitation to Learning. It sounds like propa-ganda. I would like to hear it.
General HARTNESS. For instance, I have one week's program whichwas turned out. Here a few of the titles: "Adventures in Research,""University Explorer," "Behind the Story," "Hall of Fame,""Invitation to Learning," and "Last Man Out."Now, Last Man Out, deals with escape from behind the IronCurtain. It is a factual report. It is informational and educational."Stroke of Fate." "What If Alexander the Great Had Lived toContinue his Conquest of the World." "Ways of Mankind." "Youand the World."
And I think that we can include in information and educationperhaps the 3 hours that we give to the Protestants, the Catholic andthe Jewish faiths.
'Mr. JOHNSON. I think we all agree.
General HARTNESS. Those are some of the items.
Mr. DEVEREUX. How much of a staff do you have in the DefenseDepartment to coordinate the efforts?
General HARTNESS. Here in Washington I have 21 officers and 48civilians.
In USAFI I have one officer and 328 civilians.
In Los Angeles I have 48 service personnel and 100 civilians. Theservice personnel are not all commissioned. Quite a number of themare enlisted. In New York I have 32 military and 18 civilians.Quite a number of the military in New York are enlisted personnel.Mr. DEVERELIX. Do you borrow any from the various services toaugment your staff over -here?
General HARTNESS. My personal staff of 21 officers and the 47 or48 civilians are all permanently with me, although they are drawnfrom all of the services. There are ho borrowed personnel, and I donot carry anyone on temporary duty.
Mr. DEVEREUX. Can you give us a breakdown of the proportion offunds that will be used for' these various programs?
General. HARTNESS. Yes. USAFI, $3,043,000. Armed ForcesRadio Service, $1,750,000. Armed Forces Press and Radio Service,New York, $172,000. My office, $1,435,000.
Mr. DEVEREUX. That is for your pay and all of your expenses inthose different places?
General HARTNESS. That is for the pay of. the civilian personnel onmy budget. It does not include the pay of officer or noncommissionedRersonnel, nor does it include the 48 civilians who are in my office.There is $6,400,000 for the Department of Defense, Office of Informa-tion and Education. The total information and educational budget isslightly more than $14 million.
Now, if we calculate also the cost in money for pay of the officerpersonnel, of the enlisted personnel ihvolved in this program, and inthe program there are 739 officers in all the services and 3,260 enlistedmen and 335 civilians not budgeted specifically in the budget, we comeup with an additional $14,348,000, or a grand total of about $29,-400,000 for the entire program, or as I like to think of it, it costs forthis entire program, education, radio and everything, slightly under
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$10 per person in the service, or less than the cost of one pair of trous-ers, woolens, o. d. for a year.
Mr. JOHNSON. Does this include the pay you give to the radio com-panies? Is this on a Government-owned 'chain that you broadcast it?General HARTNESS. Yes.
Mr. Jonssox. So there is no compensation to the private com-panies?
General HARTNESS. All these 72 radio stations overseas belong tothe Government.
Mr. JOHNSON. I just wanted to be sure of that, so a total roughly of$30 million covers everything?
General HARTNESS. 'That is true, sirofficers, enlisted men andSO on.
Mr. DEVEREUX. With the exception of these post schools whereyou bring people up to the fourth grade or eighth grade level?General HARTNESS. That is actually an Army program, or a serviceprogram, and does not belong under my particular operation.Mr. DEVEREUX. It does inolude, however, the college correspond-ence school courses and the amount the Federal Government has toput up?
General HARTNESS. That is correct, and it includes the money forall of these cooperating and participating colleges as well as for theoperation of USAFI, this $29 million plus.Mr. DEVEREUX. In connection with that, are there any restrictionsas to the courses the individuals may take at these civilian correspond-

ence schools, or as a resident student?
General HARTNESS. The restrictions are based upon this: That hecannot take a course which does not lead him somewhere. I would-rather have Colonel McCormick or Dr. Ray speak specifically to thosequestions and as to those requirements.Mr. JOHNSON. In what connection. Genera!, do you have adviserswho sit down with a boy and talk to him about what he is aiming atin trying to dovetail him in the courses?
General HARTNESS. There are advisers in practically every baseand station, and these young people come down and sit with theadviser with a catalog from the particular college where he wantsto take a course, if that school is participating in our program, andhe is advised: "You are not qualified to take that course; therefore,there is no point in taking it."
Mr. JormsroN. Do you give any aptitude tests to see what theirpotential is for entering into any particular field of activity in civillife?
General HARTNESS. We do not. We do that only when they comeinto the service.
Mr. JOHNSON. How many years have you been in command of this?General HARTNESS. Slightly over 1 year, sir.Mr. JOHNSON. Apparently vou like it.
General TARTNESS. I think it is a great program. I think it isworth every nickel we have ever put in it, and every nickel we willever put in it.
Mr. JOHNSON. That is the kind of men we want in it, men whobelieve in it. Apparently you do. I want to compliment you onthe way you answer the question.
General HARTNESS. Thank you.

51_
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Mr. DUCANDER. There is one other thing that I do not think we
developed, and that is the television program.

General HARTNESS. I will have to answer that by saying they are
not yet developed. We are looking to the future.

Mr. DUCANDER. At the present time you have no television pro-
grams?

General HARTNESS. Yes; we have one program at Limestone,
Maine; one station that is set up by the Air Force. Our office has
none. We have our policies prepared and we are working toward that
end. The one at Limestone was th,; efilot model for the Air Force.
I have not personally seen it. Some of my people have seen it. The
Air Force are moat I was going to say extravagant but I will not
say extravaganthigh in their praise of it. The men out there are
thoroughly sold on it. It is a medium which serves not only an
entertainment requirement for these isolated bases and Limestone
is an isolated base, but it is a very fine informational and educational
medium. Actually, I think you are aware that many of our civilian
schools are now operating educational courses over the television
where the professor stands up and the classes may be here or else-
where, but sitting in front of the television. It has its potential there.
It has very great potential in that the commander will be able to talk
to his people, maybe not in person, but at a large base he can impel
his personality into a large number of men, maybe 10, 20, or 30 miles
away, so our television program is one which we feel also has a terrific
possibility, but one which is at present just in the process of being
developed.

Mr. DUCANDER. Would the television station only be at isolated
posts and stations?

General HARTNESS. In the United States; yes.
Mr. DUCANDER. Are there any plans that you know of to purchase

commercial programs, such as the Jackie Gleason show?
General H

J
a.HTNEss. No. I have lust finished signing, I cannot

count the number of letters, requesting the same authority that we
have with the radio people to get these programs without cost to us.
The letters are coming back now, and they are that the television
people are going to give us those programs without cost.

Mr. JOHNSON. Now we find that we are not going to have the
Consent Calendar this afternoon, so we will come back at 2 o'clock,
if that is convenient.

Mr. DUCANDER. Mr. Chairman before you adjourn the subcom-
mittee J have a statement from the National Association of Radio
and Television Broadcasters which should be inserted in the record.
With your permission I will do so at this time.

Mr. JOHNSON. Without objection the statement may be inserted in
the record.

(The statement is as follows:)
. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RADIO

AND TELEVISION BROADCASTERS,
nashington,,D. C., June 28, 1954.

Re S. 3401.
Hon. LEROY JOHNSON,

Chairman, Subcommittee No. 3, Armed Services Committee,
House of Representatives, if ashington, D. C.

MY DEAR MR. JOHNSON: On behalf of the National Association of Radio andTelevision Broadcasters, the business association of the radio and television



5087

bitastry, I wish to file the following comments with reference to S. 3401 nowbdbre Subcommittee No. 3 of the Armed Services Coimmittee.I 3401 is entitled, "A bill to authorize the furnishing of information, radiosat television entertainment, and similar education for personnel in the Armedaces, and for other purposes," and provides, inter alia, "That the SecretarydDefense and the Secretaries of the military departments may, out of fundsaaropriated for such purposes, provide * * * radio and television entertain-mat * * for .mllitary personnel * *" S. 3401 further provides that, "suchnio and television provided shall be limited to radio and television programssillier overseas or in isolated posts, camps, and stations in the United States."t has been the wise and historic policy of Congress to refuse the authorizationotGovernment-owned broadcasting stations intended to operate in competitionsib stations operated by private citizens. It is believed that it is the intent of6.3101 to continue this policy. However, it is believed that the bill as writtenismaibiguous with respect to this policy and may unintentionally establish sil-ting for the operation of Government-owned broadcasting facilities in compe-l:in with those operated by private citizens.The association believes that, before enactment, S. 3401 should be clarifiedtovide the following safeguards:iA definition of "isolated posts, camps, and stations in the United States"skid be included. It is submitted that a post may be "isolated" within theomenortly accepted definition of the word, and yet receive acceptable radio orteirision service. It is believed that the intent of S. 3401 is to authorize thearmed services to provide radio and television service where none is availableSim& commercial channels. This intent should be spelled out in unmistakable
the bill should guard against authorizing broadcasting stations operatedbythe armed services to cover any area larger than the immediate area of theputt camp, or station which the station is intended to serve.Further, the bill should guard against authorizing the broadcast of coin-medal continuity in competition with privately owned media. For example,inszeas within the United States where no commercial television service is avail-shiy it is highly probable that commercial radio service does exist, and to allowansrmed services television station to carry advertising material would subjectsuikradio service, as well as other private media, to governmental competition.kis submitted that S. 3401, if clarified by appropriate amendment, will ac-complish its purpose, and, at the same time, protect private enterprise againstcompetition from Government-owned stations.Sincerely yours,

AFTERNOON SESSION

HAROLD E. FELLOWS.

The subcommittee met at 2 p. m., Hon Leroy Johnson, member ofthesubcorami tte.3, presiding.
Kr. JOHNSON. The subcommittee will come to order.Maj. Gen. Harlan N. Hartness resumed the stand.)Ir. DEVERMIX. We'd like to have in the record just how Muchmaw you will have to spend on each of these programs, broken downforthe record?
General HARTNESS. Do you mean the Armed Forces Institute, forLaangeles and New York, and here in our office in Washington?J&. DEVEREUX. Yes, and how much goes into this indoctrinationpram for the men before they go overseas. That is all part ofyaw program, is it not?
reneral HARTNESS. Yes, except that the Army and Air Force alsoprice some material of their own.tir indoctrination program overseas consists essentially of these"hot to get along in" booklets or guides, plus motion pictures.Taw, I can take this and break it down into what I have, and I'dborary happy to answer any other.questions if I am not answering asyouwish?

--,
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Mr. DEVEREUX. All right, sir.
Mr. JOHNSON. Do you have any chart covering the outline of yourorganization, an organizational chartGeneral HARTNESS. I have no chart with me, Mr. Chairman.Mr. JOHNSON. Of how much goes into each particular branch?General HARTNESS. Maybe if I just start out here, it will come out.Mr. JOHNSON. All right.

General HARTNESS. We have in Washington, over here in buildingP-7, our Office of Information and Education, where the policies areprepared and the various doctrines are enunciated.My office works under the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Man-power, and Personnel Director John Hannah.Now, the total budget for the Office of Information and Education,Department of Defense, is $6,400,000.Of that the office in Washington here is budgeted for $1,435,000.La our office we have 21 military and 48 civilians. As I havestated, we are the policyraaloing agents for the Department of Defense.We do not, nor do we intend to issue, any positive orders to theservices for the way in which they shall operate and carry on thisprogram. It is our function essentially, as I have stated, to providepolicies and to provide materials to assist all the services in executingthe program.
Mr. Joaxsorq. You supervise the policy and let the other peoplecarry it out?

. General HerrtrEss. Yes, sir; but just how they will implement thatis a service matter.
Mi. JOHNSON. Yes.
General FLATNESS. Now, I believe each of you have certaincertain publications which were prepared such as You and your U. S.in which we have three of those thus far; the Declaration of Inde-pendence; Froedom and Responsibility; and, What America Meansto Me.

We have in the handsor rather 2 in the hands of the printer,and 4 either with the services for their comment and comparisons,following which they are ready to go to the services.We prepare 36 Armed Forces information pamphlets a year, andwe send those to all the services. The number of those runs to about185,000 per issue.
We prepare pamphlets such as How To Get Along in Germany, andHow To Get Along in North Africa, and How To Get Along inKoreaas a matter of fact we prepare a similar booklet which isavailable and diAributed to all of the personnel, which is furnishedthe personnel when they go to the various countries.We also provide these voting information pamphlets, a copy ofwhich is here, in addition to which there is a pamphlet giving moredetailed information which the services should have and which everyman or woman in the service has available to him through his votingofficer within the company, troop, or battery, and comparable, organi-zations in the Air Force, is:lavy, and Marines.We provide a weekly map also to all the services of immediate newsand events of the immediate importance, showing the vital areas ofthe world, and what is taking place there.Mr. JOHNSON. Is that a sort of news week?

General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; a news week map.



,:.:#,-tYMr..JottrisON. A map?
HARTNESS. Yes [spelling] m-a-p, -and the major newsi:rlteroized in that map.

Mr. JOHNSON. Such as what is going on, for instance, now in
*;,,7 Indochina. and Korea?

General HawriirEss. Yes, sir.
. Mr. DzvEnzux. Such as is posted, for instance, on a bulletinboard or something of the sort?a General HARTNESS. Yes.
.1.,Mr. JOHNSON. And, do you cover all parts of the world?

" General H.RTNEss. We cover various areas, a different area each
t week.

Mr. JOHNSON. For instance, Guatemala is in the papers now, andwould that be covered?
General HARTNESS. That will be put out, yes, sir.a, 'Mr. JOHNSON. You are also putting out this map covering Thetroubled areas of the world?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; the news area involved.Mr. JOHNSON. For instance, did you cover the event which

occurred in Egypt when Naguib was out temporarily, briefly, andthen back in?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.Now, in addition we prepare and distribute through the motionpicture services, motion picture films, one of which is entitkd "Report

to the Armed Services."That gives to all services a motion picture covering the latest devel-opments which can be given, that is, of course, to the units in the
field.

Classified material obviously wecannot publish.Mr. JOHNSON. For instance, would you cover the conference down
in Quantico?

General HARTNESS. No, sir.Then, we provide pamphlets such as are those I previously men-
tioned on Germany and on Japan, and that gives these men, prior totheir departure to these areas, a very clear

understanding insofar asmotion pictures can, covering the laws and customes of the country
to which they are going, and a further indoctrination on how to con-
duct themselves as good American citizens, and so forth.Mr. Joins/sox. Are you the judge of what goes out every Week,
General?

General HARTNESS. I am responsible for it, but this material is alsoused by the services as well as my office. It is also reviewed by theservices as well as my office. We work in complete cooperation.Then, we are also working on some other films today in which we
bring in outstanding people to discuss in a forum type of picture cer-
tain topics, for instance, "Communism," and on this we have had Mr.George Kennan in twice, one time for a general audience and another
time for an officer audience picture, which, in the first one, 40 servicepersonnel from all services, male and female, in an unrehearsedprogram asked him questions and he answered them.Mr. JOHNSON. You could not have had a better man.General HARTNESS. Yes, and the second was done by 17 officers andcivilians, students of the National War College, of all the grades orequivalent grades of colonel in the Army.
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They asked some very acute, very seeking, very searching, and veryfar-reaching questions of Mr.. Kennon, and which questions Mr.Kaman discussed with them on the practical as well as the statisticalaspects of Eolicy.
.11;ft'iJiixsoer. I think- you asked the best man you could get.General HARTNESS. Yes, sir, and we have had Mr. Bob Kennedy, ofthe State Department, discuss Southeast Asia as well.Mr. Jonzaox. Did you ever have Mr. Walter Robinson as yet?General HARTNESS. Not vet, sir.We are still projecting the program into the future. However,those are some of the main things which we in our local office. havedone.

Now the cost of that office
Mr. Joinisow. Could I ask you a question, first?General HA.RTNESS. Yes; certainly, sir.Mr. Jointsom. The purpose is to sort of orient the man in theservice in order that he may know what is going on and in order toput the little individual person into the bigger picture so that helmovis..vrhat is,going on, is that it?

Genera HARTNESS. Yes, sir.NOw, as I Mentioned, our budget in this office is $1,435,000. Thatincludes the cost of printing of these items, $425,000; motion picturefilms, $740,000; and other costs, $270,000.Mr. Joniacm. Have you had any difficulty in getting response tothese budgeted costs? .
Genera RAWNESS. In appropriations I appeared twice, once justafter I returned from Germany last year, and another time, thissPring-
Mr. WnsoN. Maybe I missed some of this because I wasn't here,this morning, but has there been any previous attempt to get anyauthorization?
General HANNAH. At the moment, sir, there is no permanent legis-lation. There wasnow, I'm trusting to my memorybut in 1941 or1942 an authorization for the Army to provide for the education andmorale of its service personnelthat authorizationagain I am trust-ing to my_memory,. ceased on the last June 30.. It'was extended for 1 month in the Senate, but the extension nevergo any farther so we are operating Without any legislative authoriza-tion of any kind at the present.

. Mr. WILSON. These activities
grew'out of certainwartime activities,and ou found it so helpful you think it should become a part of theestablishment, and now, you want permanent authority for it,is that. correct?

General HARTNESS. That is correct, and although there may notbe any shooting right just at this moment, there is a pretty "hot"cold war going on, and we have something around, as you gentlemenknow, 3 million in the services today.Mr. WILSO N. And, what you want to get into the statute is languagethat lays down a broad policy, and to have this in the armed servicesto give you authority to appropriate money?General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. WILSON. But that is a more or less continuous thing, is it not?General HARTNESS. That is correct, sir, but it does give stabilityto our program, and it gives a firm basis from which to work.
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WitsoN. It is very important to the morale of the troops.I know when we went on that trip to Korea fist fall I went up andsr-4-4... Visited in the little Quonset huts that had been set up to carry on thevarious aspects of the Armed Forces Institute, and it was very goodfor the men right up on the frontline to be able to continue their:education.
,General HARTNESS. That is correct, Mr. Wilson, and to put it mildlythey were crying for it as soon as hostilities ceased.Mr. WILSON. I know that it was a very good thing, the fact thatthey could continue their studies right up at the front.Mr. JOHNSON. Let this be off the record.

, (Thereupon, an off-the-record discussion ensued).v".Mr. JOHNSON. Back on the record. Proceed, General.General HARTNESS. Shall I proceed to the next item, sir?JOHNSON. Yes.
General HARTNESS. I will take the Armed Forces Institute inMadison. The budget$3,043,000: The procurement of educationsupplies and materies $1,493,000; supplies and storageall of theseinclude personnel costs, of course$248,000;

miscellaneous adminis-trative expenses, $327,000; operations for cost of lemons in service,$975,000, and that is broken down into lesson service reports, $374,000,which is the payment for the grading of lessons; preparation, review,and evaluation of educational material, $135,000; and testing service,$260,000; maintenance of records, $206,000.-I would like to point out in passing that the activities of USAFIEis increasing terrifically; each month our enrollment is going up andhas been for some time.
Mr. JOHNSON. How do you account for that, General, that theyhave now more time to look into these things?
General HARTNESS. I think there has been a greater impetus on thepart of the various commanders to give these people a greater oppor-tunity to afford themselves of this educational progrr.m, and alsoI think we would find thatwell, although the Korean fracas has beenquiet for some timeThat this impetus started immediately after thecessation of hostilities.
Mr. JOHNSON. We were over there last fall and found the entireantiaircraft forces were very much dissatisfied, is that true, General?General HARTNESS. I have been asked that question as to whatwould happen if these young men didn't have this opportunity andthe only thing I could say is that a lot of them would be in barroomsand other places far less desirable, Mr. Chairman.Mr. JOHNSON. It is, then, desirable that they get the benefit of a lotof these educational pro , General?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; it is available to every man and womanin the service.
Mr. WILSON. When I was in Korea last year we inquired into thisthing and most of the answers were negative, as to whether theywere taking it or not, and it certainly would be a wonderful thingfor that group, the antiaircraft forces, because they just sit there,antiaircraft and that's about all they have to do, it is wait for some-thing to happen.
General HARTNESS. Now, I don't know whether you would wanttowhether you ran into this situation overseas, or not, but we have6 of these cooperating colleges overseas, of which isthsiottrMaritat
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University; and, in the Caribbean the Louisiana State University;
in Europe the University of Maryland; and we have the American
International College up here in Springfield, Mass., which is in the
Northeast Command, and we have also used the University of Hawaii,
which is in Hawaii, and we have the European InstitutionI believe
it's called Sofia, which is a cooperating college, and the University
of the Philippines.

But, there are eight institutions either from America, from the
United States or locally on the ground who are providing these courses
off duty for our servicemen and women in all branches of the services.

Mr. Ducsrmr.s. And they send the professors right over there; dothey not?
General HAETNESS. Yes, sir; the professors are sent over there by

these colleges and universities.
Mr. Dzvzitzux. Are you including any part of this with academic

schools for children?
General HAZINESS. No, sir; I have nothing to do with that.
Mr. WrLsori. Under what department is that handled?

, General HearrxEss. That is handled by the various services them-
selves in their dependent school program.

Mr. DzvzRzux. What is this program you have just outlined,what is that called?
. .

General HAirrbizss. Based upon the original bill as prepared in the
Department of Defense it was to costand I am speaking generally
first and then I will speak a little more specificallyit was to cost the
Government 75 percent of the tuition, which is actually about 50
percent of the cost to the individual, because that tuition cost doesnot include any books or incidental expenses.

Now, I will have to call on the Air Force, the Army, and the other
two services for their budget allocations for the fiscal year 1955, butI believe I am correct in saying the Army has in its budget $300,000
for its tuitio_ ,n the Air Force has $1,299,000; the Navy has nothing at
all; and the Marines, I believe, have $40,000.

. That is, again, an individual service operated proposition.
Mr. DUCANDER. This is not available in the Navy and it will notbe in the ;fiscal year 1955?
General HA.RTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. DirCANDER. Doesn't the Navy find it helpful to the sailors,

and if not, can you give any reason why it does not?
General HARTNESS. I will have to ask for help on that answer fromthe Navy.
Commander T. J. MORIARTY. The Navy has quite a differentsituation than the other services.

. .Fortunately for us, in our officercorps we have, I think, a relatively
percentage of college graduates, and therefore, we don't feel

ithe need for this tuition program such so might exist in some of oursister services.
I suppose if we had the money available to us for this kind of pro-gram, we would feel we would put it into some of our service schools

which we have had to close in recent years.
Now, also, because of the kind of operation in which the Navy

engages, and only a relatively small number of our personnel would beeligible or available forour tuition aid, as most of our people are at
sea, and those most conveniently located, say, on shore duty wouldbe the only ones available to take advantage of it.
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Y" For those reasons we couldn't equitably adminster this program,.and therefore, for the Navy at this time, we are not participating inthe tuition-aid program.
`1.- DEVEREUX. Well, Commander, as far as correspondence schools

are concerned, you would have the same opportunity, would you not?Commander .NIORIARTY. In the correspondence school courses weparticipate wholeheartedly, and we do have a very high percentage of7.participation.
Mr. DEVEREVX. I'm talking about the University of Maryland pro-=-:Iiram, as well as the otheruniversities such as Louisiana and California.-:!-Commander MORL&RTY. We also participate in that manner. In.my previous statement I was thinking of the tuition-aid program.Mr. DEVEREUX. Isn't that the tuition-aid program?
Commander MonturrY. I don't think that properly comes underP1,-/..the tuition-aid portion of the thing, sir.
Mr. DEVEREUX. Then, I was a little bit confused. I thought youhad some resident issue to assist the people in Government, and alsoto assist the enlisted personnel by correspondence school procedures,who are also assisted by the Federal Government?
General HARTNESS. The University of Maryland operates an on-the-spot series of courses, Mr. Devereux.
Now, the extension courses, the correspondence courses are calledthe USAFIE, at Madison.
These other cooperative schools are the ones where they teach on.their campus if the enlisted personnel are close enough, or if the uni-versity is close enough to the base, and in the absence of that they sendan instructor or a teacher to the location, and that teacher conductsthat class right at that location.
For instance when I was at Fort Leavenworth, Kans., the Univer-sity of Kansas sent its professors into Fort Leavenworth to conductclasses for people in the post, and that is really a tuition - paid --a tui-tion-aid program.
Mr. JOHNSON. Thank you very much, General.
Mr. WiLsox. Well, under the tuition-aid program a servicemanhas a pretty free choice to attend whatever school he wants; isn't thatcorrect?
General HARTNESS. No, sir. He doesn't really have a pretty freechoice for this reason:
He is limited to the school in the area in which he is located and theschool which will provide that service in that area.In other words in Europe the tuition-aid program is with the Uni-versity of Maryland; in Japan and Korea it is with the University ofCalifornia and Sofia, and in the Caribbean it is with the LouisianaState University.
Mr. WILSON. Is the tuition-aid program which was covered, orwith which we were concerned during the war changed in the appro-priations act which covered the amount of participation in which theGovernment would enter?
General HARTNESS. If the item you are speaking about wasMr. Witsox. The Government, as I understood it, paid 50 percentof the cost of tuition, and now it pays 75 percent; is that correct?General HARTNESS. That has varied depending on the act and uponcertain rulings the details of which I am not thoroughly familiar withat this time.
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But, last year, in the appropriations act there was a provision thattuition aid could be granted to all enlisted personnel, and to com-missioned personnel up to and including the grade of first lieutenant,and corresponding grades in all other services.
The appropriation act as it stands today, takes that limitation offthe officers and provideswhich I think is just and fair and honor..ableall officers can take advantage of this tuition aid with the pro-viso that he must agree to serve 2 years after he has completed it.Mr. WILSON. But there is still Government participation in theprogram?
General HARTNESS. The appropriations act, as it was reported outof the House, provides for a limit of 75 percent of tuition aid. That iscorrect.
Mr. DUCANDER. Is that program general?
General MATHES& Yes, sir.
Now, let me see if I don't have a copy of the appropriations act.Mr. WILSON. That doesn't cover theUSAFIE?
General HARTNESS. No, sir. The USAFIE is not a tuition-aidProgram.
Mr. DUCANDER. He must pay a certain fee in order to take theUSAFIE?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir. Two dollars and as a matter of factwe turn in about $200,000 a year to the Trturer.
Mr. DUCANDER. How much does a man have to pay for a corre-spondence course of the University of Marylandlet's say he wantedto take a course in mechanical engineering and he is stationed at FortBliss, and further assuming he is !qualified to take such a course?General HARTNESS. That is going to require a little bit of explain-, if you will bear with me, sir.

. DUCANDER. All right.
General RAWNESS. MS soldier requests to take a course, A, let'ssay, at the University of Maryland, which we will use for an example;his educational adviser, or his information and education officer, orboth, will advise him, in substance, "You are qualified to take thatcourse," or, "You are not qualified to take that course," andlet'sassume that he is qualified:
He, then, makes an application for it.Then, that course costs, we'll say $15, but that is just the enroll-ment and matriculation and incidental cost..That does not include the cost of the lesson service, the correctionof the lessons, and the evaluation-and correction of the examinations.The soldier or officer, whichever the case may be, pays that $15,and USAFIE at Madison pays the cost of the grading of those lessons.Mr. DUCANDER. Is there any tuition assistance for this $15?General HARTNESS. No, not as we understand the tuition aid pro-vided for in this bill, no. He .gets nothing. We pay only for thegrading of the lessons and examinations.
Mr. WrrisoN. Actually the $15 is only a very minor portion of theoverall cost, is it not?
General HaRTNEss. Oh, yes.
Mr. JOHNSON. Now, do you ever send the students direct to auniversity to take such courses?
General HarrNuss. Our office does not; no sir.
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I.Mr. JOHNSON. Personally, I'm thinking of a case of a boy who is a
,,;,Insjor now. He went to the University of Georgia, and he took

ciertain. courses so that he could go in the'Comptroller General's
t?;(,.:Office, and all the time he was there he got paid, that is his ar

-r;" pay together with the quarters allowance, and all the other boneles.
General HARTNESS. Yes.
Mr. J 14\130V And the Air Force paid for whatever tuition there

was while he was at the university.
General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. Jormsox. But, that is not true in your program we are now

discussing?
General HARTNESS. No, sir.

C *Those courses are being taken today, I'm sure, in the Army, and
i am quite sure in the Air Force, but fam not sure about the Navy
and the Marine Corps, but they are sending officers to school to better
equip them to function as officers in this atomic age.

Mr. WILSON. Well, what we are talking about is the rider in the
appropriations act which is concerned with off-duty education, is it
not?

General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. WILSON. And, it does not have anything to do with the man's

career in service?
General HARTNESS. Well, incidentally it does.
Mr. WILSON. I mean it is not considered a part of his training at

the time?
General HARTNESS. Not a part of his military training
I thought I had a copy of the appropriations act andwell, I believe

it is section 630 which definitely states
ao more than 75 percent of tuition aid; no limitation on officer cr enlisted per-
sonnel, except that the officer must agree to serve 2 years upon completion ofhis work.

Mr. JOHNSON. Now, that was section 730 of the last appropriations
act for the armed services?

General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. DIICANDER. Is there any authority in this bill, General, and

if so, I hope I am not being redundant, but is there any appropriation
under this bill to send a man to the University of Maryland for 4 years?

General HARTNESS. No, sir, that bill provides for off-duty tuition-
aid assistance.

Mr. DUCANDER. And, the only time the tuition aid is paid is with
the, What do you call them, cooperative schools, where the instructor
is right on the spot and rives instructions right in the classroom?

General HARTNESS. That is correct.
Mr. DEVEREZJX. If a person happened not to be located in a

ersity town could he get any assistance under this provision tc
take off-duty courses?

General HARTNESS. Yes, indeed, he could. For instance, I was
out to the University of dmaha not so long ago, and there's an Air
Force base right on the edge of Omaha, Nebr., and the Air Force has
people attending the University of Omaha on off-duty hours, and
they are receiving tuition aid, and Dr. Ray, I think, can give you
further figures on that, and the same is true, I'm sure of the Army
where they are located close by these institutions, and as I mentioned

61
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previously, at Fort. Leavenworth the university sent their professors
right out to the post.

Mr. JOHNSON. How many officers have taken these courses, General?
General HARTNESS. I think I have those figures for you, Mr.

Chairman
Tuition-aid enrollments for the fiscal year 1953, in the Army there

were 6,013; in the Navy, 512the Navy did have a program then;
the Air Force had 28,000; and ,the Marine Corps 148, for a total of
34,000 officers for the fiscal year 1953. ,

Mr. Jon NsoN. What is the general purpose of that, if the men are
not taking that to help them become better officers?

General HARTNESS. I'd say that they are, that you are correct.
Mr. WI LsoN. Well, a man may not be a college graduate, and he

can take advantage of this added education, and certainly qualify
himself for further adva&ement.

Isn't that correct, General?
General HARTNESS. Weil, I think the better educated a man is, we

can take it pretty much for granted that he becomes a little bit better
man, and better able to do his job, and a little bit better able to
evaluate things, and better able to talk with people with whom he is
associatedand particularly those in civilian lifeand I believe you
will find this educational program as highly important particularly
when we realize the Air Force and the Army have a great number of
officers brought into the service during World War II and even since
then who, because of coming in at an early age, didn't get an oppor-
tunity to complete their formal education.

Mr. JOHNSON. You think that most of the Army officers are not all
intellectuals, then?

General HARTNESS. No, sir, but it helps.
Now, further answering your question, we had a total of 17,429 in

the fiscal year 1954 for the first 6 months, which is just about half of
what we had in the fiscal year 1953, and-7

Mr. JOHNSON. This, of course, might help in the transition. When
they leave the service, either when they are retired or when they
leave the service, help them that way in that by that time they might

received some specialized training, which is useful in helping
them to obtain a job after they leave the service.

Mr. WILSON. The purpose of obtaining tbis rider in the act was
more or less a guaranty that the man would not leave the service,
referring particularly to the commissioned personnel, which is the
reason they put the 2-year limitation in it.

Mr. JOHNSON. You wouldn't want to deny the fact that it certainly
broadens them and, perhaps, just from the standpoint of intellectual
ability alone the more they learn the better they are off, not to speak
of many other factors of .benefit to them?

General HARTNEPS. Yes, sir, but the higher you raise each indi-
vidual member of that combination, the better off that individual is.

Mr. DFYIIRETrA. Now, have you covered all the divisions of the
money?

General HARTNESS. No, sir; I haven't.
I have here section 730, if any of you would like to have it read.
It belongs to the committee itself, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. JOHNSON. Is that the bill before it was passed, or after it was

passed?

c .
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;,General HARTNESS. This was the bill as passed by the House, andit states as follows:
Sic. 730. No appropriation contained in this Act shall be available for thepayment of more than 7$ Der centum of charges of educational institutions fortuition or expenses for off-auty training of military personnel, nor for the paymentof any part of tuition or expenses for such training for commissioned personnel-who do not agree to remain on active duty for two years aftercompletion of suchtraining.

Mr. WILSON. That was passed by the Senate?General HARTNESS. Yes, sir; it was.The rider was not changed.
Mr. WILSON. All right.
General HARTNESS. Now, I'll go on with the other items:'Armed Forces, Los Angeles, $1,750,000; basis for requirementsradio program, $1,045,000; DDE commercialized program, $730,000;-original information and education program, $88,000; original enter-tainment programsthese programs specifically carried for servicepersonnel$87,000; other programs- music transcription library and-programs, special events, $140,000; short wave programs, $180,000;-procurement and storage costs, $388,000.Now, I might state that all of the 72 radio stations which areoperated overseas, are procured by the Armed Forces Radio Service,Los Angeles, but those which are under the administration of theArmy, the Army reimburses the Armed Forces Radio Service fortheir cost.

The Navy and Air Force do not.We are charged with budgeting for and providing for the radiostations which the Navy and Air Force administer.We are also charged with the maintenance of all radio stations fornonstandard parts.
Mr. WILSON. In other words that budget of a little over a milliondollars takes care of the 72 radio stations you mentioned?General HARTNESS. That is correct, Ivlr. Wilson, and the 45 hos-pitals in the United States on a closed-circuit type of reception.You see, we cannot broadcast in the United States.Mr. JOHNSON. You are convinced this program does a great dealof good, are you not, General?

General HAWrNESS. I am. Yes, sir.Mr. JOHNSON. And that is based upon your experience?General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.Then, we have the Armed Forces and Press Radio Service in thebudget, which is $172,000, of which the. Preis Service represents$110,000 of that amount.As I mentioned earlier, it provides news service to over 1,300 serv-ice newspapers. Tbis service includes the publicationand distributionof clip sheets, newspaper mats, precut stencils, and the maintenanceof all service newspapers and the furnishing of technical advices andassistance to editors of- service newspapers.The radio service budget at New York was $62,000. Of coursethere they are not involved in any of the recordings or the provisiona records for overseas service.They are essentially a short wave broadcasting service to Europe,and
Mr. WILSON. Do you have anything to do with the Voice ofAmerica?
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General HARTNESS. All our broadcasting is done by the Voice of
America, and it is done by them on time they do not use, and ifwe had
to pay for that transmission hi terms of the costs that are a matter ofrecord, our costs would go up, considerably.

Mr. DEVEREUX. Have you now broken down every item that comesin your office?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. JoriNnow. And we will hear from the Air Force and the Navy

on everythi they have?
General P. Yes, sir.
Mr. DEVEREUX. Do you have anything more, Mr. Johnson?
(No response.)
General HariTNES8. Now, I do not have a complete breakdown onall the budgets of all the services.
I have my own, and the total budgets of the Army, Navy, Air Force,and the Marine Corps.
But for specific breakdowns, gentlemen, I'll have to call upon other

specific representatives here.
I would like to make one more statement, if I may, before the various

representatives of the services come on: That, to place this bill in
harmony with the Appropriations Act I think the 60 percent feature
should be raised to 75 percent in the bill.

Mr. DEMANDER. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. joitrisoit. Mr. Ducander.
Mr. DEMANDER. I imagine you want to include, generally, the

temporary nature of the act?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir. I mentioned that this morning, andI do not see why, although itif it is the desire of Congress to doso
Mr. DEVEREUX. Well, it wouldn't hurt you very much if we hada chance to review it after 2 years, would it?
(No response.)
Mr.. JOHNSON. Wouldn't this be a better thing to make it permanentand provide that they should report on it after 2 years, or perhapsannually?
In other words, have it reported annually and let the Congress lookit over and make modifications or even eliminate the whole thing?
General HawrilEss. Well, I think a biennial report would be much

more desirable than the way it is now written.
Mr. Wirsorr. I notice this covers television, and while we discussedradio; does this, then, anticipate that you will ,..vet into television?General HARTNESS. That is correct, sir. We haveand when Isay "we" actually I mean the Air Force, which has moved into thatfield at Limestone, Maine, which is an isolated post.
We are taking steps to enunciate servicewide policies, and to getair clearances with the television people so that we can also use theirprograms.
Mr. JOHNSON. That is all in the record. Now, is it not?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. DIICANDER. Does this bill cover motion pictures for enter-tainment of Armed Forces personnel?
General HARTNESS. No, sir.
Mr. DEMANDER. You know what I meanwhere you buy moviesin order to show these movies on the base?
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General HARTNESS. The answer is still "No.':
. Mr. DUCANDER. This bill does not cover that?

General HARTNESS. No, sir. That's the motion-picture servicewhich does that.
Mr. DUCANDER. Would this bill cover the payment of expenses forentertainers?
General HARTNESS. No, sironly when we put on an originalprogram, produce an original program in Los Angeles, and when thatis done the cost is about one- tlhird of the standard cost.But most of the entertainers out there give their services withoutcostthe big name people like Bob Hope, and the others.Mr. DUCANDER. One more thing for the record: Am I correct thatthe Army had temporary authority, starting in 1942, which expiredwhen, General?
General HARTNESS. June 30now, I'm speaking strictly frommemorybut I think it was June 30, 1953.
Mr. DUCANDER. Consequently when going to the Appropriations

Committee this year, for fiscal year 1955 money, you had no authority?
General HARTNESS. That is correct.Mr. DUCANDER. And the Navy and Marine Corps have never hadany such authority?
General HARTNESS. That is correct. That was the War PowersAct I was speaking of.
Mr. WILSON. Now, this is an important piece of legislation and Iconfess I don't understand this "60 per centum" item in section 2of the bill, and is that in any way related to the 75 percent?General HARTNESS. The 60 percent was put in there by the Senatecommittee.
The bill came in from the Department of Defense at 75 percent,and with no section 3.
Mr. WILSON. Well, this is pretty broad coverage. They are askingfor all education, and it seems to me you are going to be in troubleif we let that go through with 60 percent in there.
(No response.)
Mr. DUCANDER. Did you not say, General, that is just for off-dutyeducation?
General HARTNESS. May I refresh my memory just one moment,please?
Educational opportunities may be provided by means of service-operated, or correspondence courses locally conducted and academiccourses of such facilities as may be made available by available

institutions and may be recognized as a credit.
Now, we come down here to services authorized, and this readsthat it shall not exceed 60 percentor 75 percent as it was originallycharged by civilian educational institutions, and civilian institutionsare those which actually provide off-duty education on or near postsor bases.
Mr. DUCANDER. But, not those written in the act, in other wordsthis is your definition of a, cooperative institution?
General HARTNESS. Yes.
Mr. Jonxsox. And, that is the way it has been run?
General HARTNESS, That is correct.
Mr. JOHNSON. And, you want that percentage increased to 75 per-cent?
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General HARTNESS. I think in harmony
i

with what the appropria-tions act has and in harmony with what s being done by Armyand Air Force today, that 75 percent is a far more desirable figure, Mr.Chairman.
Mr. Jonwsox. In other words your answer is yes?
General HARTNESS. Yes, sir.
Mr. DUCANDER. Was it not your point, Mr. Wilson, that there isnothing. in the act which prevents "on duty" education?
Mr. WILSON.. Yes; in case any educational activity was determinedat a later date to be worth while during the course of duty.As it stands, I think this cooperative educational institution ispretty well limited.
Mr. DEMANDER. Well it could be corrected, sir, by definition.Mr. Jonwsow. We could define that when we get into the revampingof the act.
Is that all of your testimony, General?
General HARTNESS. Yes, air.
Mr. Jorersow. Any more questions by anyone here?(No response.)
Mr. JOHNSON. Who is the next witness?
Colonel Mc Cosa:mit. My name is Col. Otis McCormick, Chief ofTroop Information and Education, Office of the Chief of Information,Department of the Army.
Mr. DEMANDER. Do you have a statement to make, Colonel?Colonel McConaacx. I have no prepared statement to read intothe record, and what I had to say has alreadybeen taken up, but thatwas the restoration of the 75-percent tuition aid.We want to get it restored.
I was going to go into the effect that it has had in the tuition-aidProgram, on the reduction in tuition aid.
Mr. JOHNSON. All right.
Colonel McConincx. For the fiscal year 1952 the Army had 75-percent tuition aid.
In the fiscal year 1953 the Army was prohibited by the annualauthorization from paying tuition aid to officers and therefore, tuitionaid for enlisted men was reduced to 50 percent. That resulted in areduction of enrollments in the officers' program by 23 percent over1952, and a 10-percent reduction in the enlisted personnel enrollment.Mr. Jonwsow. Do you think the mere fiscal aspect of that was thecause, Colonel?
Colonel McCounrcx. I believe it was the fiscal aspect of it; yes.The reports we got from the officers in the field was that the officersdid not feel they could carry the load when they had to pay all of thecosts.
During this fiscal year when the Army paid 75 percent for the en-listed men, the enrollment increased over 1953 some 67 percent.The officers were permitted up to the grade of lieutenant, werepermitted this tuition aid of 50 percent, and I am sure of this becausethat is what we had budgeted for it.
On that, the enrollment increased; I believe it was something like30 percent.
Now, some of that effect was, of course, tothat increase was due tothe cessation of hostilities in Korea, and the increase of enrollments inthe University of California, but all of it was not due to that particularfact; it was due to the increase in the tuition aid, and I am sure if

t; 3



5101

-r-tuition aid comes back to 7will.5 percent for all, that more officers who need
*.this additional education. take advantage of it.

Mr. JOHNSON. That is the basis of your recoinmendation, that we'increase it to 75 percent?
Colonel McConticH. Yes, sir; because, es has previously been

brought out here before, because 75 percent will probably amount to
'about 50-percent payment for the officers and 50 percent for the Gov-
ernment, because, you see, the officers must pay for their books also,
and if we decrease that to 50 percent, it will make the officer paymuch more than the 50 percent.

I might say we have made a study, and we find that many indus-
trial firms have tuition-aid programs for their employees---so----

Mr. JOHNSON. Is it similar in allocation of costa?
Colonel McCoamicx. Some are, and some are not, Mr. Chairman.
We have found that you can pick some industrial concerns that have

an educational program where, if an employee makes an A in his
course the firm will pay all his expenses; if he makes a B, they will
pay a certain part of it, and if he makes a C, they still pay some cer-tain part of it.
- There are many concerns in industry around the country doing that.

Now, some concerns in industry assist them in any course theywant to take. Others assist them in courses which will help them in
their employment in that particular firm, and they go to night schools,and so on.

Our program, of course, is a good credit program. We only allow
them to take courses at accredited colleges to work toward a degree ofsome sort, such as bachelor of arts, or bachelor of science or the equiva-
lent of any good, solid degree in education.

Mr. JOHNSON. We have a program something like that out in ourpart of the country, and some industries I have heard about send their
men to thisto business colleges like Harvard and Stanford, and Ithinl your program is something similar to the industrial program?

Colonel McCoRMIcK. Yes.
Mr. JOHNSON. Of course, in industry they are trying to train the

men better for their specific job, and you are not trying to do that, to
handle their jobs as Army officers.

It is a collateral matter, but, if they do get education and training
you think they will become better officers?

Colonel Mctoamtcx. As I stated before, many of them go to nightschoolsnot to get their educationthat is, not actually taking a
course which may help them in their program. Those you spoke
about going to Harvard and Stanford, go to take courses under our
program where the officer is sent full time.

Mr. JOHNSON. That is correct but they pay all expenses.
Colonel McComucx. Yes: but ours is off-duty and the officer is stilldoing duty.
Mr. JOHNSON. Yes; but you mentioned this full-time basis whera

an officer is being paid full time?
Colonel McCommx. Yes, sir; but that is not in this program.
Mr. WILSON. It seems to me this program is a good encouragement

to the GI benefit program. We have been talking about the drop in
enlisted men rates, and I think this sort of program might very well
keep men in the service as long as they have this partial payment by
the Government and some encouragement by the Government to

-complete their education.

4;:rirSk
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Mr. JOHNSON. Well, one of the provisions requires 2 years' addi-tional service following the completion of one of these programs andyou require the men if they take it, to serve 2 years more?Colonel McCoasticx. That is for the officers in the tuition-aidprogram, Mr. Johnson.
Mr. Joaxsoil. I think it would be beneficial to them in that way.Mr. WI ism. Mr. Chairman, Would you object to writing into

isection 2 a provision similar to the rider in the present appropriationsbill, which would more or less set up the same ground rule for theofficers, that if the officer took advantage of this tuition-aid program,they they would be obligated to serve a 2-year additional tour of duty?Mr. JOHNSON. I wouldn't object to that.
Mr. WILSON. I think if we took that into consideration and put itinto this section it might make it more acceptable to the Senate, ifthe Senate has approved the 75-percent payment with the restric-tion in it.
Mr. JOHNSON. Also, they might apply that same provision to theRegular officers when they get old enough to retire?Mr. WILSON. It would be the same provision even if this werebasic law and the rider were still in effect, they couldn't take advan-tage of it so why not put it in this law and eliminate the need for arider. I think it is a sensible safeguard to put i into the law.Mr. DRVEREUX. I think you might run into some difficulty if youhad that in a permanent law, because there might be some caseswhere an officer might want to resign for hardship reasons, and Ithink we must be very careful about that, to allow some adminis-trativewhat have youflexibility.

Colonel McComitvix. I think that could be taken care of byadministrative action.
Mr. DEvEazux. Could you furnish for the record a breakdown ofyour budgetnot that we don't want to go into all these details, but,lust furnish it for the record so we could refer to it if necessary?Colonel McCoaittcK. All right, sir.
Mr. joaxsox. Also if you have a chart which would show the pointsyou have made, and which you could give to the reporter, it would bevery acceptable.
Colonel MCCORMICK. I have a breakdown here:For information activities other than radio, which activities willinclude the printing of certain information material which our over-seas command prepares; also, it will include the pay of certain infor-mation specialists or writers; pay for information and certain materialthey purchase locally; pay for news service and other incidentalexpensesfor that we have $1,049,379; and for the oversee radiowhich the Army operates

Mr. DEVEREUX. Colonel, I think the committee would be satisfiedif you would just furnish it for the record and not read it into therecord now.
Colonel NfcCormicx. I can furnish it, but there are only 2 otheritems, overseas radio $1,106,090; and for education$4,153,531 fora total of $6,309,000.
Mr. WILSON. Just one point I wondered about, was the differencein the cost between the 60 percent of tuition fees and 75 percent, whatthat difference would be. Do you have such a figure?Colonel McCoamicK; As far as the Army is concerned, we estimate$300,000 for next yearone-fifth of which would be $60,000.
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11r. JOHNSON. Thank you very much.
-Mr. RAY. I am Dr. J. M. Ray, Chief of Education Services, Per--amine! Services Division, Headquarters, USAF:

le.. There are 2 or 3 more points I might make, several of which havehien made about the advantages of the tuition aid program underdiscussion in contradistinction .to the veterans' bill, where we en--courage a man to leave the service in order to pursue his education.the Air Force we have had 75-percent tuition aid. We have,under the present rider in the appropriations bill, had to cut outtuition aid for officers above the rank of first lieutenant.Thus, you have captains and on up in rank in the Air Force, fromthe point of view of educational attainment cut out from tuition aid,and these officers are then in the position to where if they left the serv-ice they could get or finish their education.
If they stay in the service they get no help at all.With regard to any particular figure you asked for a moment ago,in the Air Force there was saved by withholding tuition aid fromofficers, captains and up, about $260,000 last year.So, that is one of our points.
The way the Senatebill is written if you have 80 percent tuition aidactually what we have done is to extend tuition aid to officers, and all,and in order to bring in captains and up we may cut tuition aid forenlisted men by 15 percent from 75 percent and thus it would seemto me to be a quite convincing proposition that we are going sohave a little morale situation there.To get the ranking officers back into the program, we in our repre-eentation before Congress have brought about she reduction in en-listed men's tuition aid. We certainly don't want it and we of theAir Force have had 75 percent all along.
Mr. JOHNSON. Aren't part of the captains pilots?
Dr. RAY. A proportionate share; yes.
This thing really isn't so much as I see it, not so much whether aman can afford it. It's obvious a lieutenant colonel can afford topay higher tuition fees than someone else making less money.However, it is strictly an educational program and each one of themis a student strictly, and these professors when they come in call them,Mister rather than by their ranking title simply to capture a univer-sity room situation.
What we are really trying to do is encourage or underwrite theprogram, so there will- be a good program.

i
Mr. JoHNsox. But you do think that indicates discrimination?Dr. RAY. Yes, sir; I do. Now, I can't speak for our sister services,but that is my information from the very first time this distinctionarose between the enlisted men and the officers.
Mr. JOHNSON. We all know something about discrimination, it de-pends upon your viewpoint, but anyway, if you will put them all inthe same category and place their tuition aid at 75 percent whatiwould be the increase in cost over what it stands now?Dr. RAY. We would estimate roughly $250,000 in the Air Force.Mr. JOHNSON. How many Air Force personnel would be involved?Dr. RAY. I don't know, sir. I can't give you that figure offhandon that.

A number of officers above the rank of captain, I'd say, an esti-mate would be about 11,000 officers in our enrollments.
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10 § 2007 ARMED FORCES

§ 2007. Limitation on payment of tuition for off-duty training or education
(a) The Secretary of a military department may not pay more than 75 percent of

the charges of an educational institution for the tuition or expenses of a member of
the armed forces enrolled in such institution for education or training during his
off-duty periods, except that-

(1) in the case of an enlisted member in the pay grade of E-5 or higher with
less than 14 years' service, not more than 90 percent of the charges may be paid:

(2) in the case of a member enrolled in a high school completion program, all
of the charges may be paid; Ind

(3) in the case of a commissioned officer on active duty, no part of the
charges may he paid unless the officer agrees to remain on active duty for a
period of at least two years after the completion of the training or education.

00 The limitation in subsection (a) does not apply to the Program for Afloat
College Education.

(c)(1) Subject to paragraphs (2) and (3). the Secretary of the Army may pay not
more than 75 percent of the charges of an educational institution for the tuition or
expenses of an officer in the Selected Reserve of the Army `rational Guard or the
Army Reserve for education or training of such officer in a program leading to a
baccalaureate degree.

(2) The Secretary may not pay charges under paragraph (1) for tuition or
expenses of an officer unless the officer agrees to remain a member of the Selected
Reserve for at least four years after completion of the education or training for
which the charges are paid.

(3) The Secretary may not pay charges under paragraph (1)-
(A) for a warrant officer: or
(B) for an officer on active duty or full-time National Guard duty.

(Added Puh.L. 98 -525. Title XIV. § 1101(v111). Oct. 19. 1984. 98 Stat. 2918, and amended Puh.L.
99-661. Div. A, Title VI, § 651(a), Nov. 14, 1986. 100 Stat. 3887: Pub.L. 100-26. 4 3(41, Apr. 21.
1987. 101 Stat. 273.)

Historical and Statutory jotes
Codification. Section 3(4) of Pub.L. 100-26

made a technical amendment to the directory
language of section 651(2)(2) of Puh.L. 99-661 by
striking out "of" before "the following", which
amendment required no change in text. Such
amendment by section 3 of Pub.L. 100-26 etTec-
tive as if included in Pub.L. 99-661 when enacted
on Nov. 14, 1986. see section 12(a) of Pub.L.
100-26, set out as a note under section 774 of this
title.

Prior Provisions. Provisions similar to those
comprising this section were contained in the
following prior appropriation Acts:

Oct. 12. 1984, Pub.L. 98-473, Title 1, § 101(h)
(Title VIII, § 80171. 08 Stat. 1904. 1026.

Dec. 8, 1983. Pub.L. 98-212, Title VII, § 720.
97 Stat. 1441.

Dec. 21, 1982. Puh.L. 97-377, Title I, § 101(c)
(Title VII, § 7211, 96 Stat. 1833, 1854.

Dec. 29, 1981, Pub.L. 97-114, Title VII, § 721,
95 Stat. 1582.

Dec. 15, 1980, Pub.L. 96-527, Title VII. § 722,
04 Stat. 3084.

Dec. 21, 1979, Pub.L. 96-154, Title VII. § 722.
93 Stat. 1156.

Oct. 13. 1978, Pub.L. 95-457, Title VIII. § 822.
92 Stat. 1247.

Sept. 21, 1977, Pub.L. 95-111. Title VIII,
§ 821. 91 Stat. 903.

Sept. 22. 1976, Pub.L. 94-419, Title VII. § 721,
90 Stat. 1295.
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Feb. 9, 1076. I'ub.L. 04-212. Title VII, § 721.
Stat. 172.

Oct. 8. 1974. Pub.L. 93-437, Title VIII. § 321.
88 Stat. 1228.

Inn. 2. 1074, Pub.L. 93-238. Title VII. § 722.
37 Stat. 1042.

Oct. 26. 1972. Puh.L. 02-570, Title VII. § 722.
86 Stat. 12C0.

Dcc. 18, 1971. Pub.L. 92-204. Title VII. § 722.
85 Stat. 731.

Jan. 11, 1971. Pub.L. 91-668. Title VIII. § 822,
-84 Stat. 2034.

Dec. 29. 1969, Pub.L. 91-171. Title VI. § 622.
83 Stat. 483.

Oct. 17, 1968. Pub.L. 90-580. Title V, § 521.
82 Stat. 1133.

Sept. 29. 1967. Pub. L. 90-06. -tle VI, § 621.
81 Stat. 246.

Oct. 15. 1966. Pub.L. 89-687. Title VI, § 621,
80 Stat. 995.

Sept. 29, 1965. Pub.L. 89-213. Title VI. § 621.
79 Stat. 877.

Aug. 19, 1964. Pub.L. 88-446, Title V. § 521,
78 Stat. 478.

Oct. 17. 1963. Pub.L. 88-149. Title V. § 521.
77 Stat. 267.

Aug. 9, 1962. Pub.L. 87-577, Title V, § 521, 76
Stat. 332.

Aug. 17, 1961, Pub.L. 37-144. Title VI. § 621.
75 Stat 379
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July 7, 1960, Pub.L. 86-601, Title V. § 521, 74Stat. 353.

Aug. 18, 1959. Pub.L. 86-166, Title V, § 621,73 Stat. 382.

Aug. 22, 1958, Pub.L. 85-724, Title VI, § 623,72 Stat. 727.

Aug. 2, 1957, Pub.L. 85-117, Title VI, § 624,71 Stat. 327.
July 2, 1956, c. 488, Title VI, § 624, 70 Stat.471.

July 13, 1955, c. 358, Title VI. § 628, 69 Stat.320.

June 30, 1954. c. 432, Title VII. § 730, 68 Stat.355.

1986 Amendment. Subsec. (a)(3). Pub.L.99-661, § 651(a)(1), added "on active duty" fol-lowing "a commissioned officer".

10 § 2010
Subsec. (c). Pub.L. 99-661, § 651(a)(2), addedsubsec. (c).

Effective Date of 1986 Amendment. Section651(c) of Pub.L. 99-661 provided that "Subsec-tion (c) of section 2007 of title 10. United StatesCode. as added by subsection (a) (subset. (c) ofthis section). shall take effect on the date of theenactment of this Act (Nov. 14, 1986)."
Effective Date. Section effective Oct. 1, 1985,see section 1404 of Pub.L. 98-525, set out as anEffective Date note under section 520b of thistitle.

Legislative History. For legislative history andpurpose of Pub.L. 98-525. see 1984 U.S. CodeCong. and Adm. News. p. 4174. See. also, Pub.L.99-661, 1986 U.S. Code Cong. and Adm. News.p. 6413.
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Department of Defense

DIRECTIVE
July 23, 1987.
NUBER 1322.80111111111

ASO(FM4P)SUBJECT: Voluntary Education Programs for Military Personnel
References: (a) DoD Directive 1322.8, "Voluntary Educational Programs forMilitary Personnel," February 4, 1980 (hereby canceled)(b) Title 10, United States Code, Section 2007

.(c) Title 38, United States Code, Section 1775(d) Title 38, United States Code, Section 1796(a) and (b)
A. REISSUANCE AND PURPOSE

This Directive reissues reference (a) and implements references (b) through(d) for the operation of voluntary education programs in the Military
Services.

B. APPLICABILITY

This Directive applies to the Office of the Secretary of Defense (OSD),the Military Departments, the Organization of the Joint Chiefs of Staff (OJCS),the Defense Agencies, and the Defense Activity for Non-Traditional EducationSupporv(DAN7IS). The term"Military Services," as used herein, refers to theArmy, Navy, Air Force,
Marine Corps, and the Coast Guard (by agreement with theSecretary of Transportation when the Coast Guard is not operating as a Serviceof the Navy).

C. DEFINITIONS

1. Education Cen ter. Military installation office for voluntary educationand related education programs.

2. Functional Skills. Academic competencies essential to learning andperforming a military job (i.e., reading, writing, computation, and oralskills).

3. Off-Duty Time. Time when the Service member is not scheduled to per-:or= official duties.

4. Tuition Assistance. Funds provided by the Military Services to activeduty military personnel to pay a portion of the charges for voluntary educationprograms. Under Section 2007(a)(2) (reference (b)), a Military Department maypay all of the charges for high school completion
programs (enclosure 5).

5. Voluntary Education Programs. Programs of study in which Service=embers elect to participate (enclosure 2).
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D. POLICY

1. It is DeD policy to
=11;41.0...

a. Establish voluntary education programs (enclosures 3 aad 4) toprovide opportunities for Service members to achieve educational, vocational,and career goals (enclosure 1).

b. Allow Service members, subject to theequitements of military
duties, access to educational opportunities available to other eligible citi-zens. .

c. Provide equal access to, and suppoot of, educational opportunitiesfor all Service members.

2. Service members shall be encouraged to use voluntary education programsto ethance their military effectiveness and prepare for positions of greater
responsibility in the Military Services.

3. Participation in voluntary. education programs is usually limited to off-duty time unless otherwise directed by legislation or by Military Servici policy.

4. Voluntary education programs of the Military Services shall:

a. Be geared to programs, courses, and services provided by 'institutionsand organizations, including high schools, postsecondary vocational and technical
schools, colleges., and universities, accredited by accrediting. associations
recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation (COPA) and the Depart-
ment of Education (ED) (enclosure 4).

b. Include the resources and programs of other Federal agencies, suchas the E.D, the Department of Labor (DoL), and the Veterans Administration (VA),and cf the states, when possible.

c. include educational guidance and counseling by qualified personae

E. RESPOHSIB/L/7IES

1. The Assistant Secretary of Defense (Force Manarement and Personnel)
(ASD(TM&P)) shall:

a. Provide overall policy guidance and periodically rev iew voluntaryeducation programs.

b. Maintain liaison with the ED, DoL, VA, other arpropriate Federal
and state agencies, and educational associations to implement this Directive.

c. issue DoD Instructions to implement this Directive, as needed.
dee

d. Modify the enclosures to this Directive, as needed.

7
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e. Exercise policy control over the Defense Activity for Noe-
Traditional Education Support (DAMS) (enclosure 7).

1111

2. The Secretaries of the Military Departments shall:

a. Provide educational staff, finances, and other resources, within
available manpower and fundinL, for the operation of voluntary education pro-
grams, consistent with this Directive, applicable DoD Instructions, and the
IIneeds of the Military Services.

IIb. Issue regulations governing the conduct of voluntary education
programs to comply with this Directive, applicable DoD Instructions, and
the needs of the Military Services.

c. Maintain liaison with the ED, DoL, VA, other appropriate Federal
and state agencies, and with national educational associations, as needed.

I
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I

I

d. Appoint a-representative from each Military Service to serve on
the DANTIS Working Group established in enclosure 7.

e. Assign, on a rotating basis, a senior enlisted Service member
(ES-E9) to serve as the DANTES enlisted advisor.

3. The Secretary of the Navy shall:

a. Serve as the DoD Executive Agent for DAKTES and report to the
ASD(FMa?) on this program.

b. Support DANTES consistent with the policy guidance established by
ASD(FMa?).

INFORMATION REOUIREMEKTS

This Directive prescribes the use of the following forms:

1. AD Form 295,. "Application for the Evaluation of Learning Experiences
During Military Service."

2. DA Form 1572, "Test Log (DANTES and Others)."

3. DD Form 1996, "DANTES Test Inven...ory Log (Daily, Monthly)."

4. DD Form 2004, "DANTES Independent Study Application."
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u. rr.7:77vt DATT AND /MFLEMEKTATION

This Directiveis effective immediately. Forward one copy of implemer.tiztdocuments to .thc.Assistant Secretary of Defense (Force Management and Personnel)within 120 days.

Willi ma Taft, IV
Deputy Secretary of Defense

Enclosures--7
1. Guidelines for Participating Personnel
2. Guidelines for the Military Services to Establish Voluntary EducationPrograms
3. Criteria for Obtaining Education Programs and Services
4. Criteria for Selecting Institutions to Deliver Education Programs. andServices on Military Installations
5. Tuition Assistance for Service Members Participating in Education

Programs
6. Other Education Programs for Service Members
7. Responsibilities of the Defense Activity for Hon-Traditional EducationSupport (DARTS)
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GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING PERSONNEL

A. The voluntary education programs of the Military Services and the education
support programsof DAMES are established for active duty Militarg Service
members.

B. Each Military Service shall provide educational services and facilities,
including tuition assistance and testing, to personnel of other Services
(including the Coast Guard) who are assigned for duty at installations of
the host Service. However, the Department of Transportation is responsible
for tuition assistance and testing costs for Coast Guard personnel, except
when the Coast Guard is operating as a Service of the Navy.

C. The Military Services may extend their education programs to all members
of the Reserve components.

D. Th- Military Services may allow family members of active duty personnel
and Dr.D employees and their family members to participate in installation
education programs on a student-funded, space-available basis.

E. Participation.by civilians, who are not directly employed by the Depart-
ment of Defense or other Federal agencies and who are not family members of
DoD personnel, may be allowed in locations where an education program offered
on an installation is not otherwise conveniently available. Participation in
such programs on a student-funded, space-available basis after the registration
of active duty personnel, civilian employees, and family members may be an
important contribution to community relations.

F. DANTES will extend education support to members of the Reserve components
and Coast Guard at the request of the Services, subject to the availability of
resources.
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GUIDELINES FOR_ TUE MILITARY SERVICES TO ESTABLISE 111
VOLUNTARY EDUCATION PROGRAMS

A. Each Military Service shall establish comprehensive voluntary education
-programs that encompass a broad range of educational experiences including,
but not limited to, functional skills development, high school completion
programs, occupational/technical programs, and associate, baccalaureate, and
advanced degree programs.

B. The Military Services shall provide support essential to operating an
effective voluntary education program. This support includes:

1. Adequate trained staff to conduct program needs analysis, counsel
students, procure education programs and services, and manage the Education
Center and assigned subcenters and learning centers.

2. Adequate funds. [II

3. Adequate and appropriate classroom, laboratory, library, and office
facilities and equipment.

4. A review of the program's quality and effectiveness.

111
C. Each Service member shall receive educational advisement or program counsel-
ing at each new duty station, and at suitable intervals during the member's
military career.

[II

D. Each Military Service shall maintain participants' educational recordsand
plans, shoving educational accomplishments, military training, and educational III
and career goals.

E. Each Military Service shall provide for the continuing professional
development of the education services staff, and shall provide funds for this
purpose.

F. Educational programs shall:
011

1. Support and reinforce the skill specialties of the Service member.

2. Lead to a credential signifying satisfactory completion'of the
e4ucatioc program, such as a certificate, diploma, or degree.

3. Include a functional skills program, as required, that allows personnel III
to upgrade their reading, computation, and communication abilities in support
of military occupations. Functional skills programs may include English as
a Second Language (ESL).

Ell

4. Include program and course offerings that comply with the installation's
education plan. Duplication of course offerings on the installation should be ill
avoided.

S. Be described in a comprehensive brochure that lists available courses
and programs with specific tines they are scheduled. 111

2-1 6-0



Needs assessment is the foundation for establishing meaningful andcost-effective education programs. The Ailitary Services shall requireinstallations ta%nenduct an annual needs assessment for education programsand services.-_ Based on the needs assessment results, each installation shalldevelop an education plan for Implementing a voluntary education program.

B. The Department of Defense prefers that state planning for postsecondary
education take into account the education needs of military personnel, includ-ing family members and civilian employees serving on military installationswithin state boundaries. Therefore, education services officers at installationswithin the United States annually shall advise appropriate state postsecondaryplanning, advisory, or governing agencies of the results of the education needsassessments on installations within their boundaries.

.1a

2-2
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CRITERIA-FOR OBTAINING EDUCATION PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

06.
A. To obtain.raducation programs and services on an installation, the appro--

. priste military installation official shall inform institutions thit programs

are needed in particular curriculum areas. The geographic location of an
institution shall not be a factor in the search for suitable institutions,
although the geographic proximity of an institution may be a selection factor.

B. A military installation seeking an 00-site education program under section

A., above, shall provide, to interested institutions able to conduct that program,
information pertinent to preparing an education services proposal. Such

information shall include:

1. The level and subject or discipline desired.

2. An abstract of the installation's needs assessment supporting the
probable student population for the program.

3. Facilities, equipment, and supporting services available at the instal-

lation.

4. Information contained in enclosure 4 of this Directive.

5. Evaluation criteria for selecting institutions.

6. Special 'program needs:

a. Format, such as evening classes, independent study or short
seminar, with an explanation of the students' special needs:

b. Flexible scheduling to meet the operational requirements of the

installation.

C. Scheduling classes on a rotating basis to ensure an opportunity for

program completion.

7. Institutional policies:

a. Extent of transfer of applicable credit from other programs or
institutions, and from nontraditional and extra-institutionallearning sources.

b. Recognition of credit based on military training or experience.

c. Minimum and typical length of time needed for completing the

program on a part-time basis.

d. Met:be:ship in the Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC).

8. Administrative and student services to be provided by the institution.

C. Institutional proposals shall include:
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1. Requirements for completion of undergraduate and graduate programs,

such as admissions tests, theses, comprehensive examinations, course require-

ents, and other degree or diploma requirements. ..
. :

2. Class:iise criteria (minimum per class or average of classei).

3. Evidence that the applicable accrediting body has approved the proposed
extension of service before the program begins.

4. Agreement to have new programs evaluated by the appropriate accrediting
body during the first year of operation on the installation and at-appropriate

times thereafter.

5. Evidence that the institution meets the requirements of the state where

its main campus is located.

6. Evidence ths,t the appropriate postsecondary planning, advisory, or

governing agency in the state where the installation is located has been

notified of the extension of educational services.

D. Criteria to be used for evaluating institutional proposals follow:

1. Appropriate installation or major command personnel shall evaluate

institutional proposals using the criteria established in this Directive. 6r....k 7)

2. Cost may sot be the sole criterion for selecting an institution.

However, provided:other criteria are met, cost may be a determining factor.

See enclosure 5, section F.

3. The fact that an institution is located in the same state as the

installation requesting education services shall not be a factor in evaluating

its proposal. The geographic proximity of the institution to the installation

may be considered.



1322.11

CRITERIA FOR SELECTING INSTITUTIONS TO DELIVER EDUCATION
PROGRAMS AND SERVICES ON MILITARY INSTALLATIONS

'IPT.,

To be selected; institutions must:

'A. Be chartered or licensed by a state government or by the Federal

B. Be accredited by an agen7..y recognized by the COPA and ED.

C. Conduct programs only from those offered or authorized by the main campus III
in accordance with standard procedures for authorization of degree programs by
the institution.

D. Involve the main campus in approving installation-based program:, in
faculty selection, assignment, and orientation; and in teaching, monitoring,
and evaluating the programs. Adjunct or part-time faculty shall possess the
same or equivalent qualifications 411 ftll-time, permanent faculty members.

E. Deliver courses on installations that carry identical credit glues, repre-
sent the same content and experience, and include the same student evaluation
procedures as courses on the maim campus.

F. Accept credits for courses given off-campus at the same value as those
given on campus.

G. Include credits from courses taken off-campus in establishing academic
residency to meet degree requirements.

E. Provide library and other reference and research resources that are
appropriate and necessary for the academic offerings.

:. Maintain the same admission, grading, and graduation standards for the
same programs on the main campus.

:. Ensure regular and frequent communication between campus-based faculty
and administrators and off-campus representatives.

K

K. Use appropriate techniques to evaluate program effectiveness, such as extm-
ioations scored by external norms, student course critiques, faculty monitoring
of classes, and faculty review of final examinations.

L. Provide students with regular and accessible advisement services.

M. Charge tuition and fees that correspond to those charged to nonmilitary
clientele, except when the need for a variance can be documented. High enroll-
ment courses must be used to underwrite the expense of offering small, elective,

1111-and laboratory courses germane to the curriculum.

N. Comply with 38 U.S.C. 1775 (reference (c)) regarding State Approving Agency
(SAA) approval of courses.

6.1 E,
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0. Provide evidence of compliance with 38 U.S.C. 2796 (reference (d))

regarding limitations on advertising, sales, and enrollment practices. 7t1s

section requires;- among other things, that institutional publications and

claims be smiths= false or misleading.

Note. Correa: approval of the program by the applicable SAA for veterans'

educational benefits is adequate evidence for sections N. and 0., above.

m.

4-2



1222.8 (Ent: c.

TUITION ASSISTANCE FOR SERVICE MEMBERS
-PARTICIPATING IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS

A. Tuition Assistance shall be available for Service members participating to
.postsecondary education programs consistent with this Directive.

B. The use of DoD-appropriated funds to support Service member participation
in off-duty voluntary education programs shall be limited to the payment of
not more than 75 percent of the institution's tuition and related instructional

charges: As an exception, payment of up to 90 percent of these charges may be
made to enlisted active duty Service members in grades E-S and above with fewer
than 14 years of service on the course starting date. Payment of 100 percent'
may be made for Service members in off-duty high school completion programs.
No DoD-appropriated funds shall be used to pay for the tuition or expenses of
commissioned officers who do not agree to remain on active duty for 2 years
after completing the supported education.

C. Tuition Assistance shall not be authorized for any course for which the
Service member is receiving reimbursement in whole or in part under any other
provisior of the law except as stated in this Directive, when the payment
would constitute a duplication of benefits. Service members must complete
financial disclosure items on all applications for tuition assistance and
must update these disclosures as necessary.

D. Tuition Assistance shall not be provided to military personnel who
have been convicted, by any court of general jurisdiction, of any crime that

involves the use of force, trespass, or the seizure of property that is under

the control of an institution of higher education and that prevents officials

or students at such an institution from engaging in their duties or pursuing

their studies.

E. Tuition Assistance shall be used for postsecondary institutions accredited

by a national or regional accrediting body recognized by the COPA and ED.

F. A cost-effectiveness determination must be made when providing Tuition
Assistance, to include availability of Tuition Assistance funds and the

relative costs of similar programs. This determination is in addition to

the criteria stated in subsection D.2.; enclosure 2, subsections F.1 and 7.4.;

and enclosure 3, subsection D.2.

O. be Military Services shall determine the use of Tuition Assistance for

nonpostseccndary education.
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OTHER EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR SERVICE MEMMYS

A. pa SCHOOL:PROGRAMS
e

I. All Service members with less than a high school education shall have

the opportunity to attain a high school diploma or its equivalent.

2. No Military Service shall issue
Service members based on performance on
school-level performance on these tests
Services only after a state, territory,
the appropriate credential.

a certificate or similar dcument to
high school equivalency tests. High
shall be recognized by the Military
or local civilian agency hos awarded

3. Although the Services and DANTES may not issue high school credentials,

they are not precluded from assuming the costs related to high school

equivalency or proficiency testing and credentialing.

B. NONCREDIT PROGRAMS

1. The Military Services shall select functional skills and other non-

credit programs based on the predetermined needs of the installation personnel

and the ability of the provider to match the instructional level of the program

to the learning level of the student population.

The Military Services shall provide functional skills programs, ESE

training, and other noncredit programs necessary or required for personnel

to upgrade their skills to support their military occupations.

6-1



RESPONSIBILITIES OF TIC DEFENSE ACTIVITY FOR
NONTRADITIONAL EDUCATION SUPP3RT (DAMS)-tr

. aimZ
A. TIT MISS/ONAND FUNCTIONS OF DAMS

II::,ZZ.E (LazI -,

1. The mission of DAMES is to support the voluntary education
functionsof asp and the Military Services by administering nontraditional education

IIprograms, managing specified contracts for education services, providing educa-tional and informational materials, conducting special projects and develop-mental

III

activities, and performing other management and education support tasks.

2. The functions of DAN-TES are to:

a. Manage examination and certification programs.

b. Administer an independent study support system.

c. Provide for the operation of the United States Armed Forcesinstitute (USAFI) and the DANES testing transcript system.

d. Manage the military evaluations program contract and related
functions.

e. Manage the Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC) program con-tract and related functions.

f. Provide for the centralized procurement and distribution of
educational reference and counseling publications to Education Centers.

g. Provide guides, materials, and information to the Services' educa-tion personnel on extra-institutional and nontraditional education, examinationand testing programs, alternate delivery systems and other matters regardingthe military voluntary education programs.

h. Serve as the American Forces Information Service's point of contactfor information on voluntary education.

i. Develop and disseminate informational and training materials and
resources on DAK:ZS programs.

j. Monitor developments in DAMS program areas, provide reports and
recommendations on innovations, and conduct special projects or studies.

k. Provide other support in mission areas as directed by ASD(TM&P)
policy guidance.

- E. MT RO:Z (F DASTES

1. DANES is an integral part of the DoD voluntary education program; --
provides programs and services consistent with the educational goals and mis-
sic= of the Department of Defense. The forms of support supplied by DAY:ZS make
possible central procurement and management within the Department of Defense,

7-1
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preventing duplication of effort. DAMS' programs provide educational oppor-
tunities for members-el the Services and assist military personnel in achievingprofessionalnmm personal educational objectives.

2. The Diiickor, DOTES, is authorised to have direct liaisontfith
educa-

tion services officials of the Military Services and with appropriate Federal
and state agencies and educational associations in matters related to theDAMS mission and assigned functions.

C. POLICT CONTROL OF DANTES

1. Annual policy guidance for DAMES shall be provided by ASD(FM&P). The
guidance shall be transmitted to DANTES through the Executive Agent (Secretary
of the Navy).

2. Policy recommendations shall be developed with the advice of an all-Ser-
vices DANTES Working Group chaired by the ASD(FM&P), or designee. The Director,
DANTES, shall serve as the Executive

Secretary of the Working Group and prepare
the agenda and minutes of meetings.

3. The Director, DAKTES, shall ensure that DANTES complies with applicable
DoD guidance. The Director shall report to the ASD(FM&P), or designee, on the
plans, operations, and progress of DAMES.
D. EXECUTIVE AGENT

The Secretary of the Navy is assigned as Executive Agent for DANTE!. The
Navy shall provide resources and logistical support for the operation ofDAYTES according to ASD(FM&P) guidance.

7-2



Enclosure 7

excerpts from

Army Regulation 621-5

1 April, 1989



chapter 1
Goners)

1.1. Purpose
This regulation

a. Supplements DoD Directive 1322.8.
Voluntary Education Program for Military
Personnel.

b. Establishes policies, goals. and respon-
sibilities for the Army Continuing Educa-
tion System (ACES).

c. Delegates authority for managing
ACES programs and services.

References
Required and related publications and pre-
scribed and referenced forms are listed in
appendix A.

1-3. Explanation of abbreviations and
terms
Abbreviations and special terms used in this
regulation are explained in the glossary.

1-4. Responsibilities
a. The Deputy Chief of Staff for Person-

nel (DCSPER) will
(I) Establish policies consistent with

Federal statutes and Del) Directive 1322.8.
(2) Defend and provide fiscal resources

for ACES programs and services.
(3) Determine .the need to continue,

modify, or cancel ACES programs on an
Army -wide scale.

(4) Provide technical ussistance to
MACOMs.

b. The Deputy Chief of Staff for Opera-
tions (DCSOPS) will

(;) Integrate ACES on-dut) programs
(chap 4) into training schedules.

(2) Re Army staff proponent for Military
Occupational Specialty Improvement Train-
in; (MOSITI as outlined in AR 351-1.

c The Deputy Chief of Staff for Intelli-
gence (DCSTN7) will be Army staff propo
:sent for Mission Required Language
Training.

d. Chief of Public Affairs will
( 1) Publicize ACES programs and

services.
(2) Assist in determining appropriate fo-

cus and emphasis concerning publicity and
pro:notion of ACES programs and services.

c. Commanding General, U.S. Army
Recruiting Command (CG, CSAREC)

(1) Coordinate with HODA all ACES-re-
lated advertising for policy review before
their release.

(2) Provide HQDA results of research
and analysis regarding impact of education
on advertising.

f. Commanding General. U.S. Army
Training and Doctrine Command (CG.
TRADOC) will-

1) Conduct IlSEP 1 and provide gui-
dance for the conduct cif ESEP i to other
MACOMs.

(2) Manage the operation of the Army
Apprenticeship Program (AAP) and the
Army/American Council on Education
Registry Transcripts System (AARTS).

g. MACOM Commanders will
(1) Manage and deliver all ACES pro-

grams and iervices.
(2) Provide procedural guidance consis-

tent with this regulation to their
subordinate elements.

(3) Plan for. defend, and provide fiscal
resources to installations.

(4) Direct installations to conduct annual
needs assessments.

(5) Provide technical assistance to
insutilations.

(6) Submit to HQDA recurring reports
as indicated in paragraph 1-12.

(7) Support MO= as provided in AR
351-1.

Ii. The Personnel Officer. Personnel Ser-
vices Center (PSC) will establish procedures

so as to ensure that
(1) Incoming and departing soldiers pro-

cess at the AEC.
(2) DA Form 669 (Educational Develop-

meat Record) will be included in the official
field file and forwarded to the next duty
station.

1-5. Geographical boundaries for
educational services
CONUS installations are responsible to pro-

. vide educational services in those areas of
responsibilities established in appendix B.
OCONUS installations will provide services
in those areas of responsibilities assigned to
them by their respective MACOMs.

1-6. ACES mission
The ACES mission is to develop and imple-
ment a system of educational programs and
services that facilitate the professional and
personal growth of the soldier.

1-7. ACES goals
c. To enhance combat readiness by sup-

porting the training community with educa-
tion programs.

6. To improve the quality of the force by
developing education incentives that sup-
port recruitment, retention, and
sustainment.

c. To equip all soldiers to better contrib-
ute to society by providing education pro-
grams appropriate for every academic level.

d. To enrich the quality of life in the mil-
itary community by making ACES pro-
grams and services available to families and
civilians.

e. To increase the effectiveness of ACES
by improving management and
administration.

f. Te strengthen the delivery of ACES
programs and services by expanding the op-
portunities for professional development
among the ACES workforce.

1-8. Soldier educational goals
a. Enlisted soldiers will
(1) Master academic skills needed to per-

form duties in their primary military occu-
pational specialty (PMOS).

(2) Earn a high school diploma (or
equivalent) before completion of first
enlistment.

(3) Earn an esimoiate *gum swam VI

professional certificate in a field related to
soldiers military occupational specialty.

b. Warrant officers will earn a degree. li-
cense, or professional certificate in field re-

lated to their specialty.
c. Officers will pursue graduate study in a

field related to one of their specialties.

1-0. Relationship between the ACES
and commanders
The ACES is the commanders' education
program. The flexibility of commanders in
managing the ACES fiscal resources and
their involvement in selecting soldiers for
participation in ACES programs and ser-
vices are essential to ensure maximum bene-
fits to the Army and the soldier.

1.10. ACES staffing
es. Major Army commands ( MACOMs)

and Army education centers (AECs) will be
directed by professional Department of the
Army civilian (DAC) educators designated

as directors of education and education ser-

vices officers (ESOs).
b. MACOMs will establish a directorate

and a staff of DAC professionals to inclucie
when required. a language coordinator and

a budget analyst.
c. Installation AECS will
(1) Be staffed in accordance with AR

750.4 and DA Pam 570-551.
(2) Be aligned with the Installation Di-

rectorate of Personnel and Community Ac-
tivities (DPCA) per AR 5-3.

d. ACES personnel will meet security re-
quirements outlined in AR 604-5 and AR
604-10.

1-11. Policies
a. At least one AEC will be estattlishcd

on each installation having a troop strer.gth

of 750 or more.
b. All ACES programs and services will

be delivered by the AEC and supported by
the Army Learning Center (ALC). (Sec AR

621-6.)
c. Contracting and acquisition prizice

durcs arc as follows:
(I) The acquisition of CONUS (including

Alaska and Hawaii) educational programs
conducted during the off -duty hours will be
through a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) between installations and accredited
institutions. (See chap S for procedums.)

(2) The acquisition of educational pro-
grams and services (CONUS or OCONUS)
other than those discussed above in para-
graph 1-10c(I) will be contracted in accor-
dance with the Federal Acquisition
Regulation (FAR) and the Army FAR.

(3) Counselor positions will not be
contracted.

d. On-duty.and offsanty instructional ser-
alma will he provided by institutions accred-
ited by institutional accrediting bodies
recognized by the Council on Postsecondary
Education (COPA) and the Department of
Education (DOE).

AR 621-5 UPDATE

/94-i
BEST COPY AVA M tieNCVIUJ111 1 J WA .CAT TC TTRI



11771111111111"1111Pr..(2,cory :chit Accounts. Fi-
end Accounting Mice (F &AO).

vice
(S)

. 1.-Accounting Division. Ac.
t Maintenance Activity, F&AO.

wads
4

(4) Copy 4AEC Suspense Filc.
(s) Copy 5DA Form 669. orsoldier.

d. Application for independent study

-curses.
(1) TA for independent study courses is

said only after successful completion of
(turns. Soldiers expecting TA reimburse.
:lent must be counseled before enrolling.
'ounsclors will record aoprovaliclisapprov.
t of independent study course on DA Form

Soldiers will follow the procedures
chww--
(ea' Apply on DD Form 2Ctet (Defense

4.ctivity for Non-Traditional Education
.apport (DANTES)) and report to the
'-.EC for counseling.

(b) Complete course(s) and present to the
'S(1 within 00 days of completion the fol.
'wing: your copy of DD Form 2004, verifi-
ation of payment of tuition, and evidence
f course completion.
(2) The ESO will complete and verify

DD Form 139 (Pay Adjustment Authorize-
ion). and forward to Commercial Ac-
counts, F&AO.

c. TA Recoupmenc
(1) Soldiers will reimburse the Army

xhen the following actions occur. unless
:ircumstunces are clearly beyond their con-
:rol AS certified by their commander:

when soldier withdraws from class.
(6) When soldier fails to make up an "in-

-thinplete" 'grade within time stipulated by
he institution or 120 days. whichever

:owes first.
to When :o:clier receives at; academic

:allure due to non-attendance.
(di when a commissioned officer fails to

:ompletc service commitment ac specified in
:,aragruol:

(2) The ESC) will establish a working re
-:ilionship with the F&AO and the PSC to
..:.sure that TA recoupment is accomplished
tcpeciinously. in addition. the ESO

(o) Complete OD Form 1131 (Cash Col-
ieciion Voucher). to effect cash recoupment:
!1"

(h) Complete DD form 139 when soldier
is unable to make cash payment.

Include course title, course dates,
name of institution. amount of tuition. and
accounting classification on both forms.

(d) Submit forms to the F&AO and en-
sure funds are credited to the P879732
account.

f TA payments to educational institu-
tions. Procedures outhned below pertain to
COMM installations. OCONUS installa-
',ions will follow procedures in accordaoce
with lc ; command contracting agency
requirements.

(1) The ESO will request from the instal-
lation comptroller a funding target based on
the estimated TA requirements.

(21 The installation comptroller will issue
a funding target to the ESO for the total
fund requirement.

6

(3) A recordable obligation occurs
against the amount when the ESO approves
DA Form 2171. The ESO approval consti-
tutes certification that funds are available
and are. as such. obligated by the Army to
the institution in the amount indicated on
DA Form 2171.

(4) ESO certification will be made only
after the issuance of a funding target, except
when soldiers are required to register for
classes before a new fiscal year begins. (For
example, when registration is required in

September for classes beginning October.)
The ESO will provide a separate request to
the installation comptroller stating the esti-
mated TA requirement. The ESO will ap-
prove DA Form 2171 and type the
following next to item 13e, DA Form 2171:
"This requirement is included iii thc finan-

cial plan of this installation for FY00. Pend-
ing the availability Of funds, the accounting
classification to be charged will be
P000000."

(5) The ESO will number sequentially
DA Form 2171 and follow form distribu-
tion procedure outlined in paragraph
3 -11.c.

(6) The ESO will maintain a continuing
record of obligations incurred which shows

current unobligated balance remaining. If
additional funding is required. the ESO
must submit a separate request to installa-
tion comptroller.

(7) The institution will submit an invoice
to the ESO at the address listed in DA
Form 2171, item 13.d for the Army's por-
tion of TA. The invoice must identify
soldiers by name and social security account
number; it must include course and number,
inclusive dates. and location of course.

(8) The ESO will review the invoice for
errors and verify dollar amounts; and pre-
pare a SF 1034 (Public Voucher for
Purchases and Services other than Personal)
and forward to the Commercial Account
Activity. F&AO. (See AR 37-107, pars
5-12d.)

g. TA and Pell Grants. Tbc ESO will re-
quest institutions to provide recurring re-
ports regarding soldiers receiving Pell
Grants. TA can only be authorized for the
balance of tuition not covered by the grant.
In the event TA overpayment to institution
exists. ESO will coordinate with local
F&AO to recover these funds.

Chapter 4
On -Duty Programs

4-1. General
On-duty progra s are designed to develop
educational coeMencies required for job
performance. qualification, and career
growth. They will be job related, conducted
during duty hours. and directly tied to sol-
dier professional development. They will be

fully funded and at no cost to the soldier.
They include: Basic Skills Education Pro-
gram (BSEP) I and II. Advanced Skills Ed-
ucation Program (ASEP), lob Skills

AR 621-5 UPDATE
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Education Program (.1Sk.P). tnaissnss-e-
Second Language (ESL) and Mission Reign-
ed Language.

4-2. BSEP I
BSEP I provides basic academic competen-
cies necessary to complete initial entry
training (IET) successfully.

a. Eligibility. Command selected soldiers

who have a recognized educational deficien-
cy in IET.

b. Enrollment. Commanders will refer el-
igible soldiers to the AEC. TRADOC will
establish enrollment criteria.

4-3. BSEP 11
BSEP 11 provides job related basic skills
competencies necessary to enhance job
proficiency.

a. Eligibility, Command selected soldiers

who have a recognized educational deficien-
cy: or do not meet reenlistment require-
ments; or have a general technical (GT)
score of less than 100.

b. Testing and Enrollment. Commanders
will refer eligible soldiers to the AEC. The
ESC. will administer the Test of Adult Basic
Education (TABS) Level D. Soldiers not
achieving the following scale scores will be
scheduled for enrollment: Reading 582.
Math 58E, and Language 581.

4-4. ASEP
ASEP enhances educational competencies
Of noncommissioned officers which support
their career development and growth. ASEP
will be limited to the following subject ar-
eas: Supervision (General. Personnel.
Human Relations); Management (Basic.
Personnel. Computer Literacy); Communi-
cations (Verbal. Effective. Writing. Counsel.

ing); and Math.
a. Eligibility. Command selected non-

commissioned officers who demonstrate
high leadership potential.

b. Enrollment. Commanders will refer
eligibles to the AEC for enrollment.

4-6. JSEP
JSEP provides a standardised cu-rieulum
that enhances academic knowledge and
skills required for job performance and
tea growth.

4-6. ESL
ESL. provides second Language soldiers with
English language skills needed to Perform
military duties.

a. Eligibility. Command selected soldiers
who have difficulty in speaking or under-
standing English.

b. Testing and Enrollment. Commanders
will refer eligible soldiers to the AEC. ESO
will administer the English Comprehension
Language Test (ECLT). Soldiers scoring be-
lo 70 (enlisted) and 90 (officers), respec
tively, will be enrolled in ESL.



0) Re01101 *Pal Invest's:snot report and

make eoentnihdations.
(21 Submit reoort. with recommends-

ono to PERSCOM (TAPC-PDE) to or.

rive within two weeks from their receipt
from installations.

c. DCSPER will make final recommen-

dations to DANTES
d. Director. DANTES will take correc-

tive action.

Chapter 3
Tuition Assistance (TA)

3-1. General
TA provides the soldier an opportunity for
professional and personal development by
defraying a major portion of educational ex.
penses while on active duty. TA will be tied
directly to retaining quality soldiers. en.
hancmg their professionalism and increasing
the combat readiness of the Army.

3-2. Authority
Tuition assistance is authorized for off-duty
education under provisions of Title JO USC

2007

3-3. Soldier educational goal
All eligible soldiers must declare an educa-
tional goal before TA can be authorized. It
must be stated in terms of credential and
discipline desired. i.e., certificate. Computer
Science: AS. Electronics: BA, Management.
etc. Goal must be recorded on the DA
Form 664 and on Form 2171 (Request for
Tuition AssistanceArmy Continuing Edu-
cation System) in block 6d.

a. Goal relevance to ,4rrny readiness.
Counselors. in concert with commanders.
must oc diligent stewards of TA funds by
exercising care andludgment to determining
which courscy /program:. have relevance
and /or general value to the soldier s

too. Furthermore. commanders roust en-
sure that soldiers ip,ing TA have potential
for continued service.

b. Goat Changes. Goal changes arc au-
thorized only after approval h- soldier's
commander and subsequent review by the
counselor.

3-4. TA rates and calculations
a. TA may be used to defray tuition costs

up to the following rates: (Due to resource
constraints, rates are subject to change
HQDA will publish amended guidance as
necessary.)

(1) 100 percent for courses leading to a
high school diploma.

(2) 90 percent for enlisted soldiers E-5
and above with less than 14 years of service.

(3) 75 percent for all other soldiers.
6. TA is authomed on a course -by-

course basis. It will be calculated based on a
unit of credit expressed in semester hours
(SH) or quarter hours (QH) equivalent:
SH QH. Calculations are the moon-
sibility of the institution.

(11 One SH w 13 boors of classroom
contact hours plus 30 hoursdamask MP
aration: or

(2) One SH w 30 hours of laboratory
work plus 1$ hours of outside preparation:
or

(3) One SR w not less than 45 hours of

shop instruction.

3-S. TA lionktatkuis
TA will be limited to tuition rests. untrue-
Pone fees in lieu of tuition. and laboratory/
shop fees specifically required as a condition
of course enrollment. TA will not pay for
books, took, and/or equipment.

3-5. TA app!icetion
All requests for TA must be processed using

DA Form 2171, except for independent

study courses.

3-7. EfigiblItty for TA
TA is authorized for eligible-es 0-94

iers on active duty.
ctive duty members of other Services

who are supported by an AEC under provi-
sions of an Interserviee Support Agreement.

3-8. TA uses
TA is authorized for

a. Offschity courses leading towards a di-
ploma. certificate. or degree.

b. One credential each at the dcertificate.

associate. baccalaureate, rad-

uate level. es-wely
c. Independent study courses listed in

DoD 1322.8-C.
d. Independent study courses offered by

institutions listed in DoD 1322.S-C.
Independent study. technology anist-

ad. and/or alternate delivery courses offered

by institutions listed in the DANTES Guide

to Educational Delivery Systems.
f. Independent study courses offered by

institutions listed in the DANTES National
Home Study Council Schools and American
Association of Bible Colleges.

g. Credit-by-examination.

3-9. Commissioned officers active
duty commitment
Commissioned officers applying for TA
must have at least 2 years of active duty ser-
vice remaining from date of course comple-
tion (Title 10 USC 2007). They are required
to reimburse the Army the amount of TA
which resulted in the active duty service
commitment if they voluntarily, or because
of misconduct, fail to complete service com-
mitment (Title 10 USC 2005).

3-10. TA prohibitions
TA funds will not be authorized for

e. Courses that lead to * lower or lateral
level credential already obtained regardless
of who funded the previous credential.

b. Courses or creditby-examination not
approved on DA Form 2173 before the be-

ginning of the course/exam. (Independent
study courses must be approved on DA
Form 669 before beginning of courses.)
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c. Audited or repeated count.
et Additions! courses when soldier has

an existing incomplete grade.
e. Courses taken and not completed. ex-

cept when
(1) failure to complete was beyond sol-

dier's control: or
(2) Soldier his reimbursed the Army.
f Courses for which soldier is being re-

imbursed (in whole or in pert) under anoth-

er provision of law if payments duplicate
benefits from the Federal Treasury (Title 38

USC 1781).
g. Courses determined by the counselor

that do not suggest a reasonable likelihood

for successful completion.
h. Commissioned officers attending full-

time schooling under provision of AR
621-1.

i. Active Guard and Reserve (AGR)
commissioned officers and RC warrant of-

ficers (Title 10 USC 2007).
j. Soldiers Ragged under provisions of

AR 6004-2.

3-11. Functional requirements
a. Counseling. All soldiers must be coun-

seled before TA is approved. The counselor
will monitor soldier progress towards estab-

lished educational goal. and will assist the
soldier to obtain an evaluation plan from
the institution to ensure that courses taken

apply towards goal. In addition. the coun-

selor must
(1) Explore all funding alternatives

before committing TA funds.
(2) Make a cost-effectiveness determina-

tion. (When two courses of the same level.

content. and purpose are available, and fit
the soldier's educational goal. then the less

costly course should be selected. This does

not have the intent of enrolling soldiers in
the least expensive course. It is meant as a
guide in reviewing similar courses.)

(3) Explain TA reimbursement
requirement.

(4) Annotate TA approvalidisapproval
on DA Form 669.

b. Application for resident courses and

credit-by-examination
(1) Soldiers will apply using DA Form

2171. They will obtain unit commander's
signature and return the DA Form 2171 to
the AEC soon enough to permit approval
and processing before course begins.

(2) Commanders will review all TA ap-
plications to verify that the soldier

(a) Is not !lagged under provision of AR

6004 -2.
(b) is enrolling in courses (or taking an

exam) that have relevancy and/or general
value to the soldier's military job.

(c) Anticipated duties will permit class
attendance or exam administration.

(d) Will have 2 years remaining on active
duty upon completion of course. if commis-
sioned officer.

c. ESO responsibility. The ESO is respon
sible for the completeness. accuracy. and

distribution of DA Form 2171. The form
will be distributed as follows:

(1) Copy 1-- Institution.
5



e. ilisk Skills Education Program
issEP). Advanced Skills Education Pro-
s-raw (ASEP). and Englisb-as-a-Second-
Language (ESL) instructors must possess at
least a bachelor's degree and a current state
teacher certificate in the appropriate subject
area. Local commands will establish re-
quirements for Headstart/Gateway
instructors.

f. Military adult family members and
DoD personnel may take part in ACES pro-
grams on a space-available basis, unless pre-
cluded by other Department of State. DoD.
or DA/garrison/community directives.

g. ACES programs and services will be
(1) Justified by an annual installation

needs assessment.
(2) Consistent with Army needs. availa-

ble resources, and established funding
priorities.

(3) Provided to all eligible soldiers as-
signed to installations regardless of soldier's
assigned unit.

(4) Accessible to eligible soldiers during
lunch hours and oil' -duty hours.

h. Funds (P879732) arc prohibited to in-
stitutions thet

(1) Discriminate on the basis of race. col-
or. religion. sex, Of 7natiorial origin (FAR
52.222-26).

(2) Bar Armed Forces recruiting person-
nel from their premises (Public Law
92-436).

i. Funds (P879732) will not be used for
(1) Army personnel test administration

as outlined in AR 61I-S.
(2) MOS Improvement Trr.ining

(MOSIT).
( 31 Mission Required Language

Training.
(4) Reserve Component (RC) soldiers en-

'rolled in on-duty basic skills program and
off -duty collegiate programs.

(5) Courses, programs. and Services not
contained in this regulation.

1-12. DA Form 1821-R (Army
Continuing Education System (ACES)
Quarterly Participation/Cost/
Evaluation Report)RCS
(CSGPA-1679)
This report must arrive at HQDA by 31
January. 30 April, 31 July, and 31 October.
Reporting periods are I October-31 De-
cember. I January-31 March. 1 April-30
June. and 1 July-30 September. The cutoff
date for collection of data will be the last
day of December, March. June, and
September.

1-13. Research and development
(R&D)

R&D is a HQDA responsibility. Use of
P879732 funds to support R&D at
MACOM or installation requires HQDA
approval.

4

Chapter 2
Counseling and Teiting

Section
Counseling

2-1. General
Counseling is a process of developing a
counselor /soldier relationship appropriate
to informing, testing, evaluating, and plan-
ning toward the achievement of educational
goals that enhance the quality of the soldier
and the readiness of the Army. Counseling
also supports the soldier's carver decision
process and preparation for civilian educa-
tion pursuits after transition from active du-
ty. The success of ACES is directly
dependent upon an effective counseling
program.

2-2. Functional requirements
a. The ESO will establish a working rela-

tionship with commanders to maximize sol-
dier presence at counseling sessions, testing
sites. and class attendance.

b. Commanders will refer all soldiers to
the AEC for counseling within 30 dayrof
arrival at each new permanent duty station.

c. Counselors will counsel individually 1111
soldiers during the initial 30-day period and
schedule follow-up counseling sessions, to
monitor soldier progress toward education-
al. vocational, and career goals.

d. All soldiers tient be counseled before..
participating in programs and services out-
lined in this regulation:

e. DA Form 669:
(1) Initiation and Maintenance.
(a) DA Form 669 is the major record of

the soldier's counseling and educations/
progress. It contains personal information
regarding educational counseling, results of
various types of tats. and a record of aca-
demic/vocational course work. The form
will be initiated and maintained at the AEC.

(e) The counselor will initiate DA Form
669 for each soldier at the first permanent
duty station. The form will be also initiated
by the counselor upon PCS or separation if
the soldier does not have the form on file at
the AEC. Close coordination between los-
ing/gaining AECs is essential to minimize
DA Form 669 loss.

(c) Participation in all ACES programs
and services will be recorded on DA Form
669. All entries will be complete, legible.
and in sufficient detail to enable counselors
to follow case history.

(2) Disposition.
(al DA Form 669 is an official part of

each soldier's Military Personnel Records
Jacket (MPRJ) and will be- transferred to
the gaining AEC in accordance with AR
640-10.

(h1 Upon a soldier's separation from the
Army, DA Form 669 will be forwarded to
the transition point/activity. Personal docu-
ments contained in form will be returned to
the soldier.

(c) The transition point/activity will in-
clude DA Form 669 in the MPRJ for sepa-
ration processing and historical Ming, snd

AR 621-5 UPDATE

will make final form disposition in accor-
dance with AR 640-10.f All soldiers transEioning from active
duty will be counseled individually concern-
ing their veteran's educational benefits no
later than 150 days before their transition
from active duty. The counselor will record
this counseling on DA Fcrm 669 and will
require soldier's signature attesting to that
counseling. The counselor will tailor each
counseling session to the specific needs of
each soldier and provide necessary informa-
tion to permit the soldier to make an in-
formed career choice (Title 10 USC 1046).

g. In conjunction with the Educational
Assistance Benefits Counseling, soldiers will
be given education. transition counseling re-
Tiling to their tentative career decisions.
The counselor will follow procedures out-
lined in appendix C, and use DA Form
5751, (Veterans Educational Assistance
Benefits Counseling Worksheet) as a guide.

Section II
Testing

2-3. General
a. Testing is an integral part of the coun-

seling process. It is a primary counseling
tool used to assist soldiers in achieving per-
sonal and professional goals. The Defense
Activity for Non-Traditional Education
Support (DANTES) supports the ACES
testing program. The ESO is authorized to
administer

(1) Tests giving academic recognition for
non-traditional education.

(2) Diagnostic. placement. and achieve-
ment tests.

(3) Interest inventories.
(4) Certification exams.
(5) General Education Development

(GED) exams.
b. DANTES testing services, procedures

and policies are found in DoD 1322.8-H,
The DANTES Examination Program
Handbook. All DANTES related catalogs'
handbooks may be ordered thru DANTES.
Peesacola, FL 32509-7400.

2-4. Reporting test losses/
compromises

a. The ESOs will follow instructions out-
lined in DoD 1322.8 -H. .In addition, the
ESOs will

(I) Immediately notify HQDA via mes-
sage with information copy to respective
MACOMs and DANTES.

(2) Immediately notify commander and
request appointment of an investigating
officer.

(3) Notify DANTES with name. unit
and phone number of investigating officer.

(4) Ensure that investigation is per-
formed in accordance with AR. 15-6 and
DoD 1322.8-H.

(5) Submit report of final investigation to
their respective MACOMs (with copy to
DANTES) within 60 days of the date the
case wiee opened.

b. MACOMs will

4/
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At the request of the Director for Education Policy (FM&P) (MM&PP), the
Defense Manpower Data Center conducted a study of participation in and outcomes
of the Tuition Assistance program.

The sample for the study was the sample previously drawn for the 1985 DOD
Survey of Officers and Enlisted Personnel. Service education centers provided record
data on sample members who had used Tuition Assistance funds. The education record
data were merged on a case -by -case basis with data from the 1985 DOD Survey and
data from DOD administrative files. The present report is based on the merged file
which contains data from these three sources. The study includes data on the Tuition
Assistance programs in the Army, Navy and Air Force, but not on the Marine Corps,
which could not be included because of the widely dispersed locations of its education
records.

Data collected for the study somewhat underestimate the extent of Tuition As-
sistance usage but present a fairly clear and consistent picture of TA users and of out-
comes associated with participation in the program. Among the study's chief
conclusions are the following:

There is a strong and consistent positive association between participation
in the Tuition Assistance program and retention in the military. The as-
sociation applies to both enlisted personnel and officers and is evident in
several different bivariate and multivariate analyses.

There is a strong and significant positive association between participation
in the TA program and enlisted promotions in both bivariate and multi-
variate analyses.

Judging from their titles, courses supported by Tuition Assistance funds are
practical and work-related.

The study provides detailed information about the users of Tuition Assistance
in each Service:

Approximately 30 percent of current Service members have pursued volun-
tary education of some kind while in the military; about half of these have
participated in the Tuition Assistance program.

In all Services, TA usage is much higher among enlisted members than
among officers.

Participation in the TA program is substantially higher in the Air Force than
in the other two Services. An estimated 24.1 percent of Air Force mem-
bers participated in the program at some time, compared to 9.5 percent of
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those in the Army and between 5.2 percent and 10.9 percent of those in the

Navy.

In the Army and the Navy, enlisted participation in the Tuition Assistance
program is highest at grades E-5 and E-6. In the Air Force participation is
relatively high at those grade levels, but is also high among E-2s.

Participation by officers declines with grade level in all three Services.

In the Army and Navy, the TA participation rate reaches a peak at age 25.

In the Air Force it is relatively high at age 25, but also high at age 20.

Blacks in the Army and Air Force are more likely than whites to participate
in the Tuition Assistance program: 10.9 percent of blacks in the Army have

used TA, as compared to 8.8 percent of whites. In the Air Force the com-
parable figures are 25.8 percent and 23.9 percent. There are similar ten-
dencies in the Navy, but they are not statistically significant.

Women in all three Services are significantly more likely than men to par-
ticipate in the Tuition Assistance program. The difference I; greatest in the
Navy, where women are more than twice as likely to use TA as men.

In all three Services, TA participation rates tend to increase with level of
education, up to the college graduate level; the rates then drop sharply.

Participation rates increase consistently withAFQT scores.

The demographic characteristics of Navy TA users in this study are similar to
those reported in the Naval Training Systems Center's recent "Demographic Analysis

of the Navy Tuition Assistance Program."

The study also supplies information on the institutions providing courses sup-

ported by Tuition Assistance and on the types of courses taken:

In each Service, more TA-sponsored courses are provided by the Univer-
sity of Maryland than by any other educational institution.

The second largest provider for the Army is Central Texas College; for the
Navy, National University; and for the Air Force, the City Colleges of
Chicago.

A few institutions provide a relatively large proportion of all courses taken
under Tuition Assistance. The five largest providers account for ap-
proximately half the courses taken by Army members, one third of those
taken by Navy members, and one fourth of those taken by Air Force mem-
bers.

In all three Services, business courses are the type most frequently taken
with Tuition Assistance funds. The next most frequently taken courses are

ii



mathematics, English, social sciences, computer and information sciences,
and psychology, though the specific order varies by Service.

These six types of courses account for roughly 70 percent of all those taken
with Tuition Assistance funds.
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III. Tuition Assistance Participation In The Army

In the 1985 DOD Survey of Officers and Enlisted Personnel, 24,196 Army mem-
bers completed and returned questionnaires. The Army education centers sub-
sequently provided useable Tuition Assistance information on 2796 of those soldiers,
a "provisional" participation rate of 11.6 percent for the survey respondents. (Participa-
tion rates for all of the Services are "provisional" primarily because some education
centers did not respond to the request for records, but also because in some cases
military members could not be linked to specific education centers, as noted in Section
11.) Since the survey sample is stratified, a weighted rate is appropriate; the weighted
response/participation rate is 9.5 percent. This means that the 2796 individuals whose
records we received are characteristic of 9.5 percent of the Army.

The 9.5 percent of soldiers who have taken Tuition Assistance courses, and for
whom it was possible to collect TA records, comprise 10.4 percent of enlisted person-
nel in the Army and 3.2 percent of officers. Army enlisted personnel are therefore
more than three times as likely as officers to participate in Tuition Assistance. There
are at least two reasons for this disparity. Officers, of course, incur an obligation to
remain in the service for two years after taking a TA course, and this obligation no doubt
depresses their participation rates relative to those of enlisted members. In addition,
because officers, as a rule, already have college degrees, they may feel less need for ad-
ditional education than enlisted members. Data presented later, in Table 111.7, show
that personnel who have college degrees are much less likely to participate in TA than
those who have some college but no degree.

Because the enlisted participation rate is higher and because enlisted person-
nel greatly outnumber officers, the vast majority of TA participants are enlisted mem-
bers. The weighted estimate of TA participation among Army enlisted members, based
on these data, is 57,830, while that among officers is only 2763. While these figuresun-
derestimate overall participation in the program, for reasons noted above, they are
reasonable measures of the orders-of-magnitude differences between Army enlisted
and officer participation in the program.

Table 111.1 shows weighted participation rates by paygrade for Army enlisted
members and officers. Considering participation by paygrade for enlisted personnel,
TA usage increases from the E-3 level to a peak among E5s and E6s and then declines.
(E-1 and E-2 estimates are based on small sample numbers and may not he reliable.)
Enlisted members at the ES and E6 levels are sergeants, many of whom have made
long-term commitments to the military and may he striving to advance their careers, in
part by obtaining more education. Usage among officers appears to he greatest among
0 Is and to he negligible at paygrades 04 and above. Officers at paygrades 04 and above
may lack the time to participate and the benefits of participation to their careers may
he marginal. However, the number of sample cases of Army officers using TA is small
(151), and the error terms around the percentage estimates at each grade level are large.
In general, the sample of Army officers taking Tuition Assistance courses is too small
to permit reliable statistics to he calculated separately for them.
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Table 111.1

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance

By Paygrade (Army)

PAYGRADE
EVER

USED 1A
USED TA
SINCE 1984

El 7.9 7.0

E2 7.1 6.9

E3 5.7 5.6

E4 8.6 7.1

E5 14.4 11.1

E6 15.4 9.6

E7 12.2 7.2

E8 7.3 5.3

E9 6.4 2.9

01 8.1 7.4

02 6.2 5.1

03 3.9 3.2

04 and above 0.8 0.7

Because those who have been in the military longer have had more oppor-
tunities to participate in the TA program at some time or other, one would expect usage
to increase with longevity, and therefore, to a considerable extent, with paygrade. In
fact, if records were maintained throughout a member's service life and the use of TA
had followed a stable pattern for the last 20 years, one would expect the participation
rate to rise monotonically with longevity, unless TA users leave the service earlier than
non-users.



It is possible to control for the effects of length of time in service, however, by
looking at the recent participation of Army members in the program, in this case par-
ticipation at any time after the beginning of 1984. The second part of Table 111.1
presents these data. The pattern for recent participation parallels that for participa-
tion at any time, indicating again that usage is greaust among E5s and E6s. Longevity
does not appear to affect this pattern substantially.

Table 111.2 shows the percentage of Army members in each age group who have
ever used TA (as indicated by their education records) and the percentage who have
used it since 1984. Usage increases steadily from age 19 to a peak at age 24 and
decreases thereafter. (Although the categories 26-30 and 31-35 have 'higher percent-
ages, each category covers five years, rather than one, and the percentages for each year
of age are necessarily lower than the total. Combining categories was necessary to ob-
tain sample numbers large enough to be reliable.)

Because the opportunities for using Tuition Assistance at least once increase
with age, as they do with longevity in the Service, these effects are again controlled by

Table 111.2

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance

By Age (Army)

AGE
EVER

USED TA
USED TA

SINCE 19;4

19 2.9 2.9

20 5.5 5.4

21 6.1 5.9

22 7.6 5.9

23 7.8 6.9

24 11.0 9.1

25 10.5

26-30 13.0 9.8

31-35 11.9 8.1

36-40 8.6 4.9
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examining the participation of Arm:. .,embers in the program since 1984. The last
column of Table 111.2 shows that react participation, like cumulative participation, in-
creases to a peak at ages 24 and 25 and decreases thereafter. The fact that the dif-
ference between the percentages in the two columns increases with age means that
some older members have taken courses before 1984 and are not represented in the
second column.

Tables 111.3 and 111.4 show TA participation rates by race for black and white
Army members. (The sample numbers for other racial groups participating in TA are
too small to yield reliable estimates.) Both tables indicate that black soldiersare more
likely than white to participate in Tuition Assistance. According to the estimates in
Table 111.3, 10.9 percent of black members have ever used TA, as compared to 8.8 per-
cent of white soldiers. Viewed differently, (in Table 111.4), black soldiers make up 26.2
percent of the Army, but they constitute 30 percent of Army participants in the Tuition
Assistance program, while whites make up 68.6 percent of the Army and 63.5 percent
of TA users.

Table 111.3

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance
By Race (Army)

RACE
USED TA

White

Black
8.8

10.9

Table 111.4
Distribution of Population and TA Participants

By Race (Army)

TARACE
POPULATION PARTICIPANTS

White
68.6 63.5

Black
26.2 30.0

10
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There are also some marked differences in participation rates by sex. As is evi-
dent in Tables 111.5 and 111.6, women in the Army are more likely than men to par-
iicipate in the Tuition Assistance program. Altogether, 14.0 percent of the women in
the Army have participated at one time or another, as compared to 9.0 percent of the
men. Women constitute 9.5 percent of active duty personnel in the Army, but they
make up 14.0 percent of those in the Army who have ever participated in TA.

Table 111.5

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance

By Sex (Army)

EVER
SEX iiSEDTA

Male 9.0

Female 14.0

Table 111.6

Distribution of Population and TA Participants

By Sex (Army)

TA
POPULATION PARTICIPANTS

Male 90.5 86.0

Female 9.5 14.0

Evidence from other studies (Becerra, 1983) suggests that women and
minorities are more likely than white men to view the military, and especially the Army,
as a channel of upward social mobility. The data on participation in the Tuition Assis-
tance program are consistent with this pattern. One would expect to see a tendency
among women and minority members to take advantage of the educational oppor-
tunities afforded by TA as a means of upward mobility.

An analysis of TA participation by education level is shown in Table 111.7. The
education variable comes from the DEERS file, which in turn is created from data sup-
plied by the Services. The data are supposed to reflect current education level, but the
extent to which an individual's file is updated after entry into the military varies. To
the extent that in-Service education is included in the reported education levels, the
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relation between education and Tuition Assistance becomes a matter of definition:
education level appears to be positively associated with Tuition Assistance usage be-
cause TA participation raises the education level of the participants. It is possible to
control for this colinearity by again examining TA participation in general and par-
ticipation since the beginning of 1984. Examining rece.,t participation minimizes the
probability that the TA usage will be reflected in reported education levels.

Table 111.7

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance
By Education Level (Army)

EDUCATION EVER
USED lA USED TA

SINCE 1984
1 year high school 2.6 2.6
2 years high school 7.2 6.4
3-4 years high school 6.3 5.4
High school graduate 9.9 7.7
1 year college

14.7 10.0
2 years college

13.6 9.6
3-4 years college 16.8 11.0
College graduate

6.1 4.8
M.A. equivalent

0.8 0.6
Ph.D. equivaylent

Table 111.7 indicates that TA usage increases fairly steadily with level of educa-
don, reaching a peak just short of graduation from college. TA participation is most
pronounced among soldiers who have attended college but not received their degrees.
Between 14.7 and 16.8 percent of those with some college have participated in the Tui-

4

tion Assistance program at some time. as compared to 6.1 percent of college graduates
and 9.9 percent of high school graduates with no college experience. Recent usage by
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education level shows the same pattern, suggesting. among other things, that TA usage
is not a major factor in reported education levels. In general. it seems that those with
college degrees are less likely than those with some college to feel that they need ad-
ditional education, while those with only high school degrees may he less academical-
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ly inclined or more likely to think that a college degree is out of reach, especially given
their other commitments. Those in the middle probably stand to gain the most from
an investment of time and effort in taking courses supported by Tuition Assistance.

In general, one would expect those with higher AFQT scores, i.e. those with
higher measured verbal and mathematical aptitude, to be more interested than others
in taking courses under Tuition Assistance. Table 111.8 shows that this expectation is
correct. The association between AFQT level and TA participation is very marked;
with only one minor exception, each increase in AFQT level registers a corresponding
increase in the percentage of Army enlisted members participating in Tuition Assis-
tance. Combining this finding with the results of the analysis by education level, one
would expect to find the highest rates of participation among those with high AFQT
scores and some college exper;ence, but no college degree. These individuals clearly
have the aptitude for college but for various reasons entered the military before com-
pleting college. It seems likely that for this group especially the Army provides the op-
portunity, the motivation, or both to continue with a college education.

Tab 111.8

Percentage Using Tuition Assistance

By AFQT Level (Army Enlisted)

AFQT
EVER

USED TA

I 14.1

11 11.3

lIla 10.1

111b 9.4

IVa 9.8

IVb 9.0

IVc 8.0

Table 111.9 lists the twelve educational institutions most frequently used by TA
participants in the Army, together with the number and percent of TA-funded courses
each has supplied to Army members in the DM DC sample. The educational programs
for military personnel sponsored by the University of Maryland and Central Texas Col-
lege clearly provide the largest numbers of Tuition Assistance-funded courses, together
accounting for more than one third of all TA-supported courses taken by Army mem-
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and distribution" (0.4 percent). At a finer level of detail, the types of courses takenmost frequently are "general business and management" (4.3 percent), "accounting" (3.0percent), and "general business administration and management" (1.4 percent).
The second most frequently used type of TA course, comprising 13.1 percent ofthe total, falls under the heading of"letters." Most of these are commonlycalled Englishcourses. In this category, the three types ofcourses, taken most often with Tuition As-sistance are "composition" (5.6 percent), "general English" (3.9 percent), and "speech,debate, forensics" (1.6 percent).

Courses in the social sciences are taken almost as often as those in letters, ac-counting for 13.0 percent of the total. Among the social sciences, Army TA participantsmost often select history courses (5.2 percent), followed by courses in sociology (2.7percent), and political science (2.4 percent).

Mathematics courses are also relatively popular among those in the Armyreceiving Tuition Assistance. Math courses constitute 9.6 percent of the total. Thegreat majority (8.3 percent) of these courses are in general mathematics.
The courses most frequently taken by Army members who use Tuition Assis-tance seem either to be directly work-related, as in the case of business or writing cour-ses, or to be among the building blocks ofa liberal arts education and therefore at leastindirectly work-related, e.g. social sciences, math, and psychology.

Many of the less frequently taken courses also seem to be directly work-related.In the trade and industrial category, for example -- the seventh most frequent -- thelargest percentage of soldiers are taking courses in vehicle and mobile equipmentmechanics and repairs (2.5 percent). Other practical, apparentlywork-related coursesinclude those in computer science, protective services, foreign languages (2.4 percentout of 3.6 percent are German language courses), health (where "diagnostic and treat-ment services" is the type of course most often taken) and so on. Even some of theprogram titles that seem less practical may be deceiving. For example, under "personaland social development" (2.8 percent) the mostfrequently taken type of course is "basicskills" (2.3 percent), and the majority of courses under "home economics," fall in thesubcategory of "vocational home economics," where "food production, management,and services" is the most frequently used.
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Table 111.10

Frequency Distribution of Army

Tuition Assistance Courses

Business 19.4
Letters (English, Composition, etc.) 13.1
Social Sciences 13.0
Mathematics 9.6
Computer and Information Sciences 7.1
Psychology 5.8
Trade and Industrial 4.6
Public Affairs and Protective Services 4.2
Foreign Languages 3.6
Personal and Social Development 2.8
Life Sciences 2.5
Health
Visual and Performing Arts 1.7
Law 1.6
Philosophy, Religion. and Theology 1.5
Physical Sciences 1.3
Home Economics
Engineering 1.2
Communications 0.9
Education 0.7
Multi/Interdisciplinary Studies 0.5
Industrial Arts 0.4
Library and Archival Sciences 0.3
Area and Ethnic Studies 0.2
Military Sciences 0.1
Consumer. Personal. and Misc. Svcs. 0.1
Liberal/General Studies

Total 100.0

For the 2796 soldiers in the DMDC Army sample known to have used Tuition
Assistance, records of 7952 courses were received, an average of slightly under three
courses per person (2.84). The six types of courses taken most frequently are business,
letters, social sciences, mathematics. computer and information sciences, and psychol-
ogy. Together these six account for somewhat over two thirds of all TA courses taken
by soldiers (68 percent).

The largest number of Army TA courses, 19.4 percent, fall under the heading
of "business." There are three 2-digit subcategories in this broad category: "business
and management" (16.5 percent). "business and office"(2.5 percent), and "marketing
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hers. The University of Maryland provided 20.2 percent of the courses and CentralTexas College provided 13.1 percent. The first five institutions in the list supplied al-most half of all the courses for which Army members used Tuition Assistance.

Table 111.9

Educational institutions Most Often
Used by Army TA Participants

Educational
Number ofInstitution

TA Courses
Percent of
Army TA
Courses

University of Maryland
1606 20.2

Central Texas College
1045 13.1City Colleges of Chicago
622 7.8

Fayetteville Technical Institute (NC) 345 4.3
Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University (FL) 215 2.7
Saint Leo College (FL)

195
Fort Steilacoom Community College (WA) 158 2.0Pike's Peak Community College (C')) 138 1.7Big Bend Community College (WA) 125 1.6
Northern Virginia Community College 117 1.5El Paso Community College (TX) 106 1.3Hawaii Pacific College

100 -1.3

Table 111.10 shows the major categories of TAfunded courses taken by Armymembers. These are the broadest "program categories" in the National Center forEducation Statistics' Classification of Instructional Programs. Within each programcategory. sub-programs are numerically coded at two-, four-, and six-digit levels ofspecificity. The degree of generality at the finest level of detail, the six-digit level,
varies, but one can think of a program at this level as approximating the curriculum ofa college department (e.g. history, economics, sociology) or as approximating certain
types of courses within a department (e.g. psycholinguistics, psychometrics,psychopharinacology).


